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Definitions

In this annual report, unless the context otherwise requires, the following terms shall have the meanings set out below.

“Annual General Meeting”

“AOS”

“Board”

“CEC”

“China” or “the PRC”

“Company” or “our Company”

“Company Secretaries”

“Cypress”

“Director(s)”
“EPS”
“Executive Director(s)”

“Grace Cayman”

“Grace Shanghai”

“Greater China”

“Group”

an annual general meeting of the Company to be held on 15 May 2015 at 2:00 p.m.
at the Conrad Hong Kong, Pacific Place, 88 Queensway, Hong Kong;

Alpha and Omega Semiconductor Limited, a Bermuda exempted company
incorporated in September 2000, is a designer, developer and global supplier of a
broad portfolio of power semiconductors;

the board of Directors of the Company;

China Electronics Corporation (F B & F {5 8 E ¥ & B 5 R 2 &), a company
incorporated in the PRC in May 1989 and a substantial shareholder of Huahong
Group;

the People’s Republic of China, but for the purpose of this annual report and for
geographical reference only and except where the context requires, references
in this annual report to “China” and the “PRC” do not include Taiwan, the Macau
Special Administrative Region and Hong Kong;

Hua Hong Semiconductor Limited, a company incorporated in Hong Kong with
limited liability on 21 January 2005 and, except where the context otherwise
requires, all of its subsidiaries, or where the context refers to the time before it
became the holding company of its present subsidiaries, its present subsidiaries;

the company secretaries of the Company;

Cypress Semiconductor Corporation, a company incorporated in California in
December 1982 which was reincorporated in Delaware in February 1987, and an
independent third party;

the director(s) of the Company;
earnings per share;
the executive director(s) of our Company;

Grace Semiconductor Manufacturing Corporation, an exempted company with
limited liability incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 5 October 1999 and a wholly-
owned subsidiary of our Company;

Shanghai Grace Semiconductor Manufacturing Corporation (/87 1 EERER
[R/27]), a company incorporated in the PRC on 20 December 2000 and a wholly-
owned subsidiary of our Company;

a geographic region including China, Taiwan, the Macau Special Administrative
Region and Hong Kong;

our Company and our subsidiaries or, where the context so requires, in respect
of the period before our Company became the holding company of our present
subsidiaries (or became such associated companies of our Company), the business
operated by such subsidiaries or their predecessors (as the case may be);
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“HHGrace”

“HHNEC”

“HKS’
“Hong Kong”

“Huada”

“Huahong Group”

“Huahong Technology
Development”

“Huahong Real Estate”

“Independent Non-Executive
Director(s)”

“INESA”

“Listing Rules”

“Merger”

“Microchip”

“Nationz”

Definitions

Shanghai Huahong Grace Semiconductor Manufacturing Corporation (/&2 # 72 /)
AR /A F]), a company incorporated in the PRC on 24 January 2013 and
a wholly-owned subsidiary of our Company;

Shanghai Hua Hong NEC Electronics Co., Ltd. (E/8FEMINECEFAR AT, a
company incorporated in the PRC on 17 July 1997 and a wholly-owned subsidiary
of our Company;

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong;
the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the People’s Republic of China;

CEC Huada Electronic Design Co., Ltd. tRFPEFEARETRAERET L), a
company incorporated in the PRC in June 2002 and a subsidiary of CEC, which is a
substantial shareholder of Huahong Group;

Shanghai Huahong (Group) Co., Ltd. (E/&ZE 4 (@) R A7), a company
incorporated in the PRC on 9 April 1996 as Shanghai Hua Hong Microelectronics
Co., Ltd. and renamed as Shanghai Huahong (Group) Co., Ltd. in 1998, and a
controlling shareholder of our Company;

Shanghai Huahong Technology Development Co., Limited (/8RR AR A
&]), a company incorporated in the PRC on 10 May 2010, a company 50% held by
and consolidated with Huahong Group and 50% held by HHNEC, and a connected
person;

Shanghai Huahong Real Estate Co., Ltd. (b/8ZE T F X FR A F]), a company
incorporated in the PRC on 28 October 2011 and a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Huahong Technology Development;

the independent non-executive director(s) of our Company;

INESA Holding Group (L/8EEZER (£E) BR2AA]), a state-owned company
incorporated in the PRC in December 1993, and a controlling shareholder of our

Company;

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited, as amended or supplemented from time to time;

the merger of Grace Cayman and Hua Hong Semiconductor (Cayman) Inc., an
exempted company established by the Company in Cayman Islands;

Microchip Technology Incorporated, a company incorporated in Delaware in 1989,
a shareholder of our Company;

Nationz Technologies Inc. (BIR i BRAF]), a company incorporated in the
PRC in 2000 and an independent third party;
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Definitions

“NEC”

“Non-Executive Director(s)”

“ON Semiconductor”

“‘QST”

“‘RMB”

“SAIL”

“SFC”

“SFO”
“Shanghai Huali”

“Shareholders”
“Stock Exchange”

“TMC”

NEC Corporation, a company incorporated in Japan and founded in 1899 as
Nippon Electric Company, Limited;

the non-executive director(s) of our Company;

ON Semiconductor Corporation, a company incorporated in Delaware and spun
off from Motorola Inc. in August 1999 and the parent company of one of our
shareholders, System Solutions Co., Ltd., formerly known as Sanyo Semiconductor

Co., Ltd., a company incorporated in Japan on 3 July 2006;

QST Corporation (/& ERHEABRAF]), a company incorporated in the PRC on
13 September 2012 and a connected person;

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC;

Shanghai Alliance Investment Ltd (/&8 EFR 2 E]), a company incorporated
in the PRC on 26 September 1994, and a controlling shareholder of our Company;

the Securities and Futures Commission of Hong Kong;

the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong), as
amended or supplemented from time to time;

Shanghai Huali Microelectronics Co., Ltd (/&% HMETHR AR, a company
incorporated in the PRC on 18 January 2010 and a connected person;

holders of ordinary shares in the capital of the Company;
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited; and

Beijing Tongfang Microelectronics Co., Ltd. (At REFHEFHR AR, a company
incorporated in the PRC in 2001 and an independent third party.
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Key Financials

2014 2013 2012

US$ million US$ million US$ million

Revenue 664.6 584.7 571.5
Gross profit 197.8 125.4 117.9
Gross profit margin 29.8% 21.5% 20.6%
Net profit 93.1 61.8 59.7
EPS (US$) 0.11 0.08 0.07

31 December

31 December

31 December

2014 2013 2012

US$ million US$ million US$ million

Net current assets 5715 279.9 212.2
Net assets 1,465.5 1,056.2 963.8
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Key Financials

Revenue
US$ million
800

700 664.6

600 571.5 584.7

500
400
300
200

100

2012 2013 2014

US$ million

100
93.1

80

61.8
59.7
60

40

20

2012 2013 2014

06  HUA HONG SEMICONDUCTOR LIMITED

Gross Profit Margin

%

29.8%
30

0060 21.5%
! ()

0%
2012 2013 2014

uss$

0.1

0.10

0.08

0.08

0.06

0.04

0.02

2012 2013 2014



LETTERTO
SHAREHOLDERS

———

Wel{:umes the Listiqg of

| Semiconductpr Limited
ST L AR A\

._HIM

MY !Il :'!I' |Il‘l
i il

e

Hua Hong Semiconductor Limited was listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on 15 October 2014
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Letter to Shareholders

Dear Shareholders:

Thanks to your trust and support, Hua Hong Semiconductor Limited was successfully listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited in October 2014. We are pleased to report the operating results of the
Company for the year. With its continued focus on market development at home and abroad, the Company was
successful in improving these results dramatically.

As of the end of 2014, the Company had already experienced 16 consecutive profitable quarters and achieved a
record high in both sales revenue and gross margin. In particular, the sales of US$665 million represented a year-on-
year increase of 13.7%. The gross margin reached 29.8%, up 8.3 percentage points from the previous year, and the
net profit reached US$93 million, a year-on-year increase of 50.5%.

In 2014, the Company’s annual wafer output increased by 15.3% as compared with 2013, with an average capacity
utilization rate of 93.5% and an overall production yield of 99.2%. We ended 2014 with a total monthly processing
capacity of 129,000 8-inch wafers from our three 200mm fabs in Shanghai. This production capacity will be further
increased step by step to a total monthly capacity of about 139,000 by the end of 2015.

At the same time, the Company’s shipment of chips for smart cards reached 3.14 billion pieces, of which 2.66 billion
chips were for SIM cards, accounting for approximately 50% of the global market share. As the world’s largest 200mm
wafer foundry for power discretes, our accumulative shipments exceeded 3.4 million wafers. In addition, the Company
has also achieved outstanding performance in light-emitting diode (LED) lighting, smart meters, communications and
automotive. We serve customers from Greater China, Japan, Europe and North America.

In technology research and development, we have an extensive and highly competitive technology platform spanning
the 1um to 90nm technology nodes, strategically focused on the advanced geometries of 0.13um, 0.11um and 90nm.
Our technology platform covers embedded non-volatile memory, power discretes, radio frequency, analog and mixed
signal, and power management integrated circuits (ICs). We are also developing various micro-electromechanical
systems (MEMS) solutions on an ongoing basis for these high-growth markets.

In 2015, based on the foundation of our smart card business reaching another record high, we will significantly
increase our banking IC business, another high-growth opportunity. Through close cooperation with our long-term
technology partners, who are also our best clients, the Company will improve product competitiveness in all our
endeavors and provide a green platform to manufacture chips with lower power consumption, higher efficiency and
smaller size. We aim to seize high-margin and high-growth opportunities, in particular applications that promote global
technology development, including the Internet of Things and automotive electronics. We sincerely hope that you will
continue to lend us your valued support.

In conclusion, we would like to express our highest respect and deepest gratitude to you.

Mr. Wenbiao Fu Mr. Yu Wang
Chairman and Executive Director President and Executive Director

Shanghai, China
24 March 2015
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Corporate Information

Corporate Introduction

The Company is a global, leading pure-play foundry focused on research, development and manufacturing of
semiconductors on 200mm wafers for specialty applications, in particular embedded non-volatile memories and power
discretes. We also offer foundry services for advanced RFCMOS, analog and mixed signal, power management IC and
MEMS. We are well positioned to capture new growth opportunities in these markets.

The semiconductors we manufacture are incorporated into a wide range of products in diverse markets, including
consumer electronics, communications, computing, industrial and automotive. Importantly for our customers, we also
offer a range of design and other value-added services.

We currently offer a broad and deep manufacturing platform spanning the 1.0um to 90nm technology nodes. Within
this range we place strategic focus on the advanced geometries of 0.13um, 0.11um and 90nm.

Through our subsidiary HHGrace, we operate three fabs in Shanghai with one of the largest 200mm wafer processing
capacities in China of 129,000 wafers per month.

We will continue to improve our product mix, capture higher-margin and higher-growth opportunities and pursue
capacity expansion strategically and profitably.

We are the trusted technology and manufacturing partner to both our international customers and our home market
in China. We served over 600 customers across 20 countries, including some of the world’s leading semiconductor
companies such as AOS, Cypress, Huada, Microchip, Nationz, ON Semiconductor and TMC.

The Company currently has approximately 3,700 employees led by an experienced and talented team. We realize that

one of our major competitive advantages is our motivated and skilled workforce. We strive to embody the spirit of the
four cornerstones of our work ethic: Disruptive Innovation, Confidence, Initiative and Teamwork.
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Corporate Culture

Corporate Information

f %e o ~
Vision
We empower our customers
through continuous
innovation
. J
(o s 8
Mission

Creating value for
shareholders, customers

and employees through
collaboration, innovation and
being a good corporate citizen

frs ) )
Spirit
Disruptive Innovation,
Confidence, Initiative and
Teamwork
\_ J J
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Corporate Information

Milestones

The following are the important milestones in our business history to date:

Grace Cayman

KHHNEC licensed the O.13pm\
SONOS technology from
Cypress for the production of
eFlash.

established
Grace Shanghai.

commenced

HHNEC was
established.

Grace Shanghai

production of 0.25pum
eFlash for automotive
engine control units.

Grace Shanghai licensed the
SuperFlash technology from
Silicon Storage Technology,
Inc. (SST) for the production

@f eFlash. J

2006

2004

KHHNEC commenced its foundry \
services.

Grace Shanghai commenced

HHNEC successfully production of 0.20pm PC chipsets.

pilot-ran a DRAM

production line. Grace Shanghai commenced

production of 0.25/0.18um
Qtandalone NOR Flash.

/

12

HUA HONG SEMICONDUCTOR LIMITED

—/

KHua Hong Semiconductor was \
incorporated in Hong Kong as the
holding company of HHNEC.

HHNEC commenced production
of embedded EEPROM for China’s

Qational ID card. J




Corporate Information

~

KAccumulated shipments by HHNEC
of power MOSFET exceeded two
million wafers.

Accumulated shipments by

Grace Shanghai and HHNEC of
SuperFlash-based ICs exceeded
\ one million wafers.

KThe intra-group \

restructuring pursuant
to the Merger

was substantially
completed.

KHHNEC commenced
production of 0.35um BCD
semiconductors.

HHNEC commenced production of
600V SUNFET and 1200V NPT IGBT.
HHGrace delivered
magnetic sensor
samples for mobile
applications.

N

Grace Shanghai
commenced production of
Q).18um eFlash.

The Merger between Hua Hong
Semiconductor and Grace Cayman

was completed. j

J N
Annual shipments by

/

- N

HHNEC commenced

ua Hong

production of 0.13pum
SONOS eFlash.

Grace Shanghai and
HHNEC of 0.13um ICs
for SIM cards reached
approximately 1.8

Semiconductor was
successfully listed
on the Main Board
in Hong Kong on 15

Grace Shanghai commenced billion units. October 2014.
production of the 0.13um Logic

and MCU, and 0.12um NOR HHGrace delivered
Flash. KHHNEC commenced \ 90nm eFlash samples.

production of 0.18um BCD
semiconductors.

Grace Shanghai commenced
production of 0.13pum
eFlash based on Superflash

technology.
N ¥ J

Annual Report 2014 1 3



Corporate Information

Major Awards & Recognition

No.

14

Year

2010

2013

2013

2013

Awarding Organization

The Office of the National Science and
Technology Major Projects

Electronic Engineering Times — China, a
magazine for the electronics industry in
Greater China

The State Council of the People’s Republic
of China

China Electronics Enterprises Association
(CEEA)

HUA HONG SEMICONDUCTOR LIMITED
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Awards & Recognition

The 2010 Outstanding Contribution Award

2013 China Fabless Award — Most Recognized
Foundry

The 2013 National Scientific and Technology
Award — Second Prize

2013 China Electronic Information Industry
Model Enterprise
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Year

2013

2014

2014

2014

2014
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Awarding Organization

The Asia Pacific Quality Organization (APQO)
China Information Industry Trade Association &
China RFID Industry Alliance

China Semiconductor Industry Association
(CSIA)

China Semiconductor Industry Association
(CSIA) & China Electronics Materials Industry
Association (CEMIA)

The State Golden Card Project Coordination
Leading Group Office

Corporate Information

Awards & Recognition

The World Class Global Performance
Excellence Award

2013 China Internet of Things Technology
Innovation Award

2014 China Top Ten Semiconductor
Manufacturers

The 8th (Year 2013) China Semiconductor

Innovative Products and Technology Award

2014 Golden Ant Award on Industry
Coordination for National Golden Card Project
Achievements
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Business Review

Business Overview

Shipments, Capacity, and Utilization in 2014

° Increased customer demand lifted wafer shipments to 1.4 million in 2014, a 14.6% increase over 2013.
° Our monthly capacity increased by 5,000 wafers per month to 129,000 wafers per month.

o Utilization increased to 93.5% from 84.0% in 2013.

Markets Analysis and Growth Segments

We derive 96.5% of our revenue from the sale of semiconductor wafers.

Revenue by service type 2014 2013

% %
Wafers 96.5 96.9
Others (masks, probe cards, etc.) 3.5 3.1
Total 100.0 100.0

Revenue contribution from systems and fabless companies increased to 75.6% of our total revenue in 2014, compared
to 67.5% in 2013.

Revenue by customer type 2014 2013

% %
Systems and fabless companies 75.6 67.5
Integrated Device Manufacturers (IDMs) 24.4 325
Total 100.0 100.0

China remained our largest market in 2014, contributing approximately 53.6% of our total revenue. Our second largest
market, the United States, contributed 20.8% of our total revenue for the same period. We will continue working
closely with our customers, leveraging our scale and technology leadership to address opportunities in the global
semiconductor markets, particularly in fast growing China.

Revenue by geography 2014 2013

% %
China' 53.6 49.8
United States 20.8 25.0
Asia? 10.0 8.9
Europe 9.1 7.2
Japan?® 6.5 9.1
Total 100.0 100.0

| Includes Hong Kong.
2 Excludes China and Japan.
3 Includes a major customer in Japan that was acquired by a U.S. headquartered company in 2013.
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Business Review

Embedded non-volatile memory (eNVM) revenue contribution increased to 41.8% of our total revenue in 2014,
compared to 34.8% in 2013. Analog and power management revenue contribution increased to 15.5% in 2014,
compared to 12.4% in 2013.

Revenue by technology platform 2014 2013

% %
eNVM 41.8 34.8
Discrete 18.5 19.5
Analog and power management 15.5 12.4
Logic & RF 14.1 20.5
Standalone non-volatile memory 9.1 11.5
Others 1.0 1.3
Total 100.0 100.0

The revenue from the more advanced process technology nodes of 0.13um, 0.11um and 90nm increased to 39.1% of
our total revenue in 2014, compared to 31.5% in 2013, as a result of our strategic focus on these geometries.

Revenue by process technology node 2014 2013

% %
< 0.13um 39.1 31.5
0.15um & 0.18um 20.4 25.8
0.25um 0.8 2.4
> 0.35um 39.7 40.3
Total 100.0 100.0

Consumer Electronics and Communications were our first and second largest end market segments, together
contributing over 75% of our total revenue in 2014.

Revenue by end market distribution 2014 2013

% %
Consumer Electronics 50.5 455
Communications 274 29.8
Computing 10.0 14.9
Industrial & Automotive 121 9.8
Total 100.0 100.0

1 8 HUA HONG SEMICONDUCTOR LIMITED



Business Review

Business Strategies for Improved Profitability

Continue to Improve Product Mix, Capture Higher-Margin and Higher-Growth Opportunities

We continue to shift our product mix towards higher margin and higher growth opportunities. The key end market
applications include smart cards, microcontroller units (MCUs), automotive, smart grids, LED lighting, wearable
devices and connected sensors via the Internet of Things (loT). We believe these applications are fast-growing and the
relevant semiconductor products should command higher margins.

Continue to Engage in Research and Development of Differentiated Advanced Technologies

We differentiate ourselves from our global peers through the depth of our specialty process technology portfolio and
our focus on advanced technology nodes on 200mm wafers. We continue to engage in research and development
(R&D) projects that are expected to result in better production yield, smaller die size and lower power consumption
in order to maintain and grow our market leadership and maintain our competitive advantage. Our ability to develop
our own advanced technologies and to co-develop specialty technologies with our customers and partners remains a
cornerstone of our economic success.

Continue to Realize Merger Synergies

Key benefits from our merger in 2011 include greater manufacturing flexibility, an enlarged customer base, a more
comprehensive and complementary product portfolio, increased economies of scale and a stronger financial base.
Additionally we have been able to leverage the enlarged business to negotiate more favorable terms with suppliers.

Pursue Capacity Expansion Strategically and Profitably

We have been using the net proceeds from our global offering to invest prudently to expand our manufacturing
capacity. We have readily available areas within our current fabs that enable us to expand capacity without having to
undertake substantial infrastructure projects.

Strengthen Collaboration with Key Customers and Continue to Provide High Quality Service
We continue strengthening and deepening relationships with our key customers through strategic alliances on critical
design and product development roadmaps. We believe such collaborative relationships solidify our position with our
customers, enhance our competitiveness and accelerate our drive for deeper market penetration.

Annual Report 2014 1 9



Business Review

Research and Development

For years, we have been a technology leader in smart card IC manufacturing and we are now the largest smart card
IC foundry in the world. We shipped 3.14 billion smart card chips, including 2.66 billion SIM card chips in 2014,
accounting for approximately a 50% share in the global market. Such significant growth has mainly benefited from the
applications of Java smart cards driven by the mobile communication market.

By leveraging technology and R&D advantages, we have delivered multiple project wafers on 90nm to selected
customers. The 90nm program is expected to start production by the end of 2015, and it will primarily be used in smart
cards and consumer products.

We place emphasis in our R&D to address new business opportunities by enhancing our integration capabilities
across different technologies. Specifically, we are focused on the integration of our eNVM and RF technologies to
provide cost-effective solutions for wearable devices, |oT and automotive applications. Our 0.11um ultra-low leakage
embedded flash technology with RF capability is expected to be in production in the first half of 2015. This technology
will be used in wireless MCU applications for the loT market. Additionally, we are engaged in R&D of RF products
using silicon on insulator (SOI) substrates for improved performance, lower power consumption, and lower cost for
wireless RF front-end modules.

Sensors are a new growth opportunity for our Company, in particular those that utilize MEMS technology. We are
working together with customers to develop MEMS sensors for the mobile markets. The single-chip 3-axis MEMS
accelerometer, developed by one of our customers on our MEMS technology, has successfully passed functional test.
We will expand our capabilities into other MEMS sensor opportunities such as micro-bolometers, pressure sensors and
gyroscopes for the IoT market.

In the high-voltage power discrete business, a new generation of field-stop insulated-gate bipolar transistors (IGBT)
has successfully reached mass production. We are planning to launch the third generation super junction MOSFET
(SJINFET) technology platform with state of the art performance in 2015. This will consolidate our leadership in power
discrete devices by providing customers with low-cost and high-performance solutions.

During 2014, our Group achieved over 400 patent filings as a result of our R&D efforts. R&D projects generated
significant innovations, resulting in a continuing increase in issued patents and patent applications. We view our patent
portfolio as an important factor in ensuring our competitiveness and a critical entry barrier for competitors. We will
continue to expand and vigorously defend our intellectual property portfolio.

20 HUA HONG SEMICONDUCTOR LIMITED




Business Review

Outlook for 2015

We are in an exciting period, ready to serve the increasing demand for 200mm wafers. The PRC government considers
the domestic manufacturing of semiconductor products as being strategic and key for Chinese economic growth. We
believe we are well positioned to benefit from the strong demand in the smart card market, especially for domestic
bank IC cards. We intend to take full advantage of the introduction of MCUs and MEMS sensors into the IoT market in
2015, a key sales growth factor.

The traditional MOSFET business will continue to benefit from the very large market size and demand from tier-1 IDM
customers. The product mix will be further improved by introducing more SINFET and IGBT products for the popular
applications in booming areas, such as portable equipment, 4G networks and cloud computing.

In the power management IC field, we expect to grow on the 0.35um and above nodes for products in consumer,
computing and industrial applications. We believe that the 700V BCD process technology may become the mainstream
technology for LED lighting starting in 2015.

We will continue to use the net proceeds from our global offering to invest prudently to expand our manufacturing
capacity and R&D capability by procuring high quality, pre-owned factory-refurbished equipment to manage our
capital expenditure. We believe we can increase our 200mm manufacturing capacity to approximately 139,000 wafers
per month by the end of 2015, and 164,000 wafers per month by the end of 2016.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Financial Performance

2014 2013 Change
Us$’000 US$'000

Revenue 664,586 584,719 13.7%
Cost of sales (466,815) (459,270) 1.6%
Gross profit 197,771 125,449 57.7%
Other income and gains 23,886 30,605 (22.0)%
Fair value gain on an investment property 1,127 2,095 (46.2)%
Selling and distribution expenses (7,206) (8,052) (10.5)%
Administrative expenses (85,053) (69,043) 23.2%
Other expenses (2,433) (199) 1,122.6%
Finance costs (12,136) (16,479) (26.4)%
Share of profits of an associate 4,856 6,437 (24.6)%
Profit before tax 120,812 70,813 70.6%
Income tax expense (27,722) (8,964) 209.3%
Profit for the year 93,090 61,849 50.5%

Explanation on Items with Fluctuation over 5%

Revenue
Revenue increased by 13.7% from US$584.7 million in 2013 to US$664.6 million in 2014, primarily due to increased
demand for eNVM, discrete, analog and power management ICs.

Gross profit

Gross profit increased by 57.7% from US$125.4 million in 2013 to US$197.8 million in 2014. The increase was
mainly attributable to increased revenue, improved product mix, higher utilization and decreased depreciation and
amortization expenses.

Other income and gains

Other income and gains decreased by 22.0% from US$30.6 million in 2013 to US$23.9 million in 2014. The decrease
was mainly due to (i) less interest income as an entrusted loan was paid back by an associate in 2014, and (ii) nil
foreign exchange gains due to the strengthening of US dollar in 2014.

Fair value gain on an investment property
Fair value gain on an investment property reflected an increase in valuation on that investment property. Market value
for this property remained stable in 2014, resulting in less increase of its fair value as compared to 2013.

Selling and distribution expenses
Selling and distribution expenses decreased by 10.5% from US$8.1 million in 2013 to US$7.2 million in 2014, primarily
due to a better control on marketing expenses.

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses increased by 23.2% from US$69.0 million in 2013 to US$85.1 million in 2014. The increase
was mainly due to (i) increased labor expenses, (i) one-off listing expenses, and (iii) increased dormitory rental
expenses.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Other expenses
Other expenses increased from US$0.2 million in 2013 to US$2.4 million in 2014, mainly because of foreign exchange
loss in 2014 due to RMB depreciation.

Finance costs
Finance costs decreased by 26.4% from US$16.5 million in 2013 to US$12.1 million in 2014, mainly due to the
decrease in bank borrowings.

Share of profits of an associate
Share of profits of an associate decreased by 24.6% from US$6.4 million in 2013 to US$4.9 million in 2014, due to
decreased profit realized by the associate.

Income tax expense
Income tax expense increased from US$9.0 million in 2013 to US$27.7 million in 2014, as a result of increased taxable
profit and withholding tax accrued on dividend distribution.

Profit for the year
As a result of the cumulative effect of the above factors, profit for the year increased from US$61.8 million in 2013 to
US$93.1 million in 2014. Net profit margin increased from 10.6% in 2013 to 14.0% in 2014,

%
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Financial Status

31 December

31 December

2014 2013 Change
US$’000 US$'000

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 568,626 579,304 (1.8)%
Investment property 191,533 191,098 0.2%
Investment in an associate 42,030 45,115 (6.8)%
Available-for-sale investments 230,512 172,219 33.8%
Other non-current assets 56,330 56,095 0.4%
Total non-current assets 1,089,031 1,043,831 4.3%
Current assets
Inventories 93,988 99,229 (5.3)%
Trade and notes receivables 107,509 105,525 1.9%
Other current assets 50,185 79,915 (37.2)%
Pledged deposits 2,583 2,072 24.7%
Cash and cash equivalents 646,773 317,045 104.0%
Total current assets 901,038 603,786 49.2%
Current liabilities
Trade payables 63,532 60,227 5.5%
Other current liabilities 184,349 162,119 13.7%
Interest-bearing bank borrowings 81,690 101,513 (19.5)%
Total current liabilities 329,571 323,859 1.8%
Net current assets 571,467 279,927 104.1%
Non-current liabilities
Interest-bearing bank borrowings 183,031 265,012 (30.9)%
Deferred tax liabilities 11,988 2,527 374.4%
Total non-current liabilities 195,019 267,539 (27. 1%
Net assets 1,465,479 1,056,219 38.7%

Explanation on Items with Fluctuation over 5%

Investment in an associate

Investment in an associate decreased from US$45.1 million as of 31 December 2013 to $42.0 million as of 31
December 2014. The decrease was mainly due to receipt of dividends distributed by the associate, partially offset by

the profit shared from the associate in 2014.

Available-for-sale investments

Available-for-sale investments increased from US$172.2 million as of 31 December 2013 to US$230.5 million as of 31
December 2014. The increase was mainly due to i) the additional investment of $57.2 million paid to Shanghai Huali,
in which we hold 17.72% of equity interest, and ii) an investment of US$1.7 million to QST, in which we hold 16.41% of

equity interest.

Inventories

Inventories decreased from US$99.2 million as of 31 December 2013 to US$94.0 million as of 31 December 2014,
primarily due to a lower unit cost of work in progress as a result of improved fab utilization.
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Other current assets

Other current assets included prepayments, deposits and other receivables, and due from related parties. The total
amount of other current assets decreased from US$79.9 million as of 31 December 2013 to US$50.2 million as of 31
December 2014, mainly due to the recovery of an entrusted loan from an associate in 2014.

Pledged deposits
Pledged deposits increased from US$2.1 million as of 31 December 2013 to US$2.6 million as of 31 December 2014,
largely due to the issuance of more letters of credit at the end of 2014.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents increased from US$317.0 million as of 31 December 2013 to US$646.8 million as of 31
December 2014, mainly due to (i) the IPO proceeds received in 2014 and, (ii) net cash flows from operating activities,
offset by cash used in investment activities and repayment of bank borrowings.

Trade payables
Trade payables increased from US$60.2 million as of 31 December 2013 to US$63.5 million as of 31 December 2014,
primarily due to increased purchases of materials in 2014.

Other current liabilities
Other current liabilities increased from US$162.1 million as of 31 December 2013 to US$184.3 million as of 31
December 2014, primarily due to (i) increased payroll and bonus payables, and (ii) increased income tax payable.

Interest-bearing bank borrowings
Total Interest-bearing bank borrowings decreased from US$366.5 million as of 31 December 2013 to US$264.7 million
as of 31 December 2014, as a result of the repayment of bank borrowings in 2014.

Deferred tax liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities arose from withholding tax accrued for dividend distribution and fair value gain on an investment

property.

Cash Flow
2014 2013 Change
US$’000 US$'000

Net cash flows from operating activities 221,740 184,234 20.4%
Net cash flows used in investing activities (96,930) (16,754) 478.5%
Net cash flows generated from/(used in) financing activities 206,731 (72,059) (386.9)%
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 331,541 95,421 247 5%
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 317,045 218,170 45.3%
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net (1,813) 3,454 (152.5)%
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 646,773 317,045 104.0%

26 HUA HONG SEMICONDUCTOR LIMITED



Management Discussion and Analysis

Explanation on Items with Fluctuation over 5%

Net cash flows from operating activities
Net cash flows from operating activities increased from US$184.2 million in 2013 to US$221.7 million in 2014, mainly
due to increased revenue in 2014.

Net cash flows used in investing activities

Net cash flows used in investing activities was US$96.9 million in 2014, which was primarily attributed to (i) the
additional investment of US$57.2 million paid to Shanghai Huali and (i) payment of US$80.2 million for purchase of
equipment, intangible assets and other assets. They were offset by (i) the recovery of an entrusted loan of US$24.5
million from an associate, (i) the receipt of a dividend of US$8.2 million distributed by an associate, and (iii) the receipt
of interest income of US$4.6 million.

Net cash flows generated from financing activities
Net cash flows generated from financing activities was US$206.7 million in 2014, primarily attributed to IPO proceeds
of US$320.2 million, offset by the repayment of principal and interest of bank borrowings.

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
As a result of the cumulative effect of the above factors, cash and cash equivalents increased from US$317.0 million
as of 31 December 2013 to US$646.8 million as of 31 December 2014.

Financial Risks

Foreign exchange risk
We are exposed to foreign exchange risks. Such exposures arise when transactions of our PRC operating subsidiary
are denominated in US dollars rather than its functional currency, which is RMB.

As of 31 December 2014, if the US dollar had weakened/strengthened against the RMB by 5%, with all other variables
held constant, our profit before tax for the year would have been approximately US$2.5 million higher/lower.

Interest rate risk
Our exposure to risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to our interest-bearing loans and borrowings
with a floating interest rate. Our policy is to manage our interest costs using a mix of fixed and variable rate debts.

As of 31 December 2014, if interest rates on bank loans had been 1% higher/lower with all other variables held
constant, our profit before tax for the year would have been approximately US$2.6 million lower/higher, as a result of
higher/lower interest expenses.

Credit risk
We have policies in place to ensure credit terms are only granted to customers with an appropriate credit history, and
we perform periodic credit evaluations on them, taking into account their financial position, past experience and other
factors. In addition, receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis and our exposure to bad debts is not
significant.

As of 31 December 2014, all of our cash and cash equivalents were deposited with major financial institutions in the
PRC and Hong Kong, which do not have recent history of default. Our management does not expect to incur any loss
from non-performance by these financial institutions.

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables and financial assets included in prepayments,
deposits and other receivables included in the consolidated statements of financial position represent our maximum
exposure to credit risk in relation to our financial assets. We have no other financial assets which carry significant
exposure to credit risk.
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Liquidity risk
Our liquidity position is monitored closely by our management. We maintain a level of cash and cash equivalents
deemed adequate by our management to finance our operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows.

The Global Offering

Number of Amount of

shares share capital

Shares’000 US$’000

Before the Global Offering 805,176 1,229,996
The Global Offering 228,696 320,168
After the Global Offering 1,033,872 1,550,164

The Global Offering (as defined in the Company’s prospectus dated 3 October 2014) comprised the Hong Kong Public
Offering of 22,870,000 Shares and the International Offering of an aggregate of 205,826,000 Shares. The offering price
was determined at HK$11.25 per Share (exclusive of brokerage fee of 1.0%, SFC transaction levy of 0.003% and Stock
Exchange trading fee of 0.005%).

Based on the offering price of HK$11.25 per Share, the net proceeds from the Global Offering, after deducting the
underwriting fees and commissions and other expenses in relation to the Global Offering were US$320.2 million.

Gearing Ratio

Details of the gearing ratio are set out in note 37 to the Financial Statements.

28 HUA HONG SEMICONDUCTOR LIMITED




Directors and Senior Management Team

Board of Directors

As of the date of this report, the Board consisted of nine Directors, including two Executive Directors, four
Non-Executive Directors and three Independent Non-Executive Directors. They are:

Mr. Wenbiao Fu, aged 60, has been an Executive Director and the chairman of our Company since July 2009. Mr. Fu
is primarily responsible for overall management, operations and the charting and reviewing of corporate directions
and strategies of our Company. He has led many manufacturing enterprises throughout his career. Mr. Fu served
as the factory chief of Shanghai Electrical Appliance Plastics Factory, Shanghai Electrical Engineering Mechanics
Factory, Shanghai Compressor Factory and Shanghai Cable Factory, and as the general manager of Shanghai Wire
and Cable Group Co., Ltd. In 1997, Mr. Fu joined HHNEC as vice general manager (Chinese Representative) and led
the construction and operation of the first 200mm wafer semiconductor production line in Mainland China. Mr. Fu was
the deputy director and director of Shanghai Municipal Commission of Informatization from 2001 to 2008. During the
same period, he was also the director of the Shanghai Radio Administration Bureau. In 2009, he was appointed as the
chairman of Huahong Group and was in charge of the Merger. Currently he is also the chairman of Shanghai Huali and
the chairman of Shanghai Integrated Circuit Industry Association. Mr. Fu received his bachelor’s degree in engineering
from the University of Shanghai for Science and Technology (previously known as Shanghai Mechanical Engineering
Institution) and further obtained his master’s degree in economics from Fudan University. He was qualified as a senior
engineer in industrial automations in 1993. Mr. Fu has been honored with various awards in his career, including the
China Outstanding Young Entrepreneurs award, the China Outstanding Entrepreneurs in Engineering Industry award
and the National Model Worker award presented by the State Council.

Mr. Yu Wang, aged 42, has been an Executive Director and the president of our Company since February 2012.
He started his career at Shanghai Hua Hong Microelectronics Co., Ltd. in 1997. From January 1998 to October
2003, he served as the financial department manager and director of HHNEC. From October 2003 to March 2010,
Mr. Wang served as the vice president and chief financial officer of HHNEC, during which period he contributed to the
set-up from construction to production of the first 200mm wafer semiconductor production line in Mainland China. In
March 2010, Mr. Wang joined Grace Shanghai as first vice president and was subsequently appointed president in
September 2010. As president, he was instrumental in the successful consummation of the Merger and restructuring.
Mr. Wang is an independent non-executive director of Xiao Nan Guo Restaurants Holding Limited (stock code:
3666.HK). Mr. Wang holds a bachelor's degree in international trade and a master's degree in international finance
from Shanghai University of Finance and Economic.

Mr. Jianbo Chen, aged 50, has been a Non-Executive Director of our Company since February 2012. Mr. Chen is
also vice president of Huahong Group and vice chairman of Huahong Technology Development. Mr. Chen has over
15 years of experience in electronics engineering. Prior to joining Huahong Group in November 2005, Mr. Chen
held various positions, including president of the Shanghai Integrated Circuit Research & Development Center and
chairman of Shanghai Huahong Jitong Smart System Co., Ltd. (300330.SZ). Between June 2003 and October 2005,
Mr. Chen served as the general manager of Shanghai Zhangjiang (Group) Co., Ltd., the deputy office manager of
Zhangjiang Innovation Park, and the chairman of Zhangjiang Hi-tech Park Development Co., Ltd. and Rivera (Holdings)
Limited. Mr. Chen also worked at Shanghai S&T Investment as deputy general manager. He obtained a bachelor’s
degree in electronics engineering, a master's degree in electromagnetics and microwave technology, a doctorate
degree in communications and electronics systems from Shanghai Jiao Tong University, and a master's degree in
business administration from China Europe International Business School.

Annual Report 2014 29



Directors and Senior Management Team

Mr. Yuchuan Ma, aged 49, has been a Non-Executive Director of our Company since May 2014. Mr. Ma has over 20
years of experience in the electronics and information industry. Mr. Ma is currently vice general manager of China
Huada Integrated Circuit Design (Group) Corp., Ltd. and also serves as a director of the following companies:
Shanghai Belling Co., Ltd (600171.SH), Shanghai Huahong Integrated Circuit Co., Ltd., CEC Huahong International
Co., Ltd., Hua Yue Microelectronics Co., Ltd., Huahong Group, Chengdu Sino Microelectronics Technology Co. Ltd.,
CEC-View Technology Co., Ltd. and Shanghai Xinxin Investment Co., Ltd. Mr. Ma held various positions in CEC
including vice general manager of the integrated circuit business group and the deputy general manager of the
planning, science & technology department. Mr. Ma graduated from Zhejiang University with a bachelor’s degree in
semiconductor physics and devices.

Mr. Takayuki Morita, aged 55, has been a Non-Executive Director of our Company since July 2009. Mr. Morita joined
NEC in April 1983. From 1983 to 2011 he held various positions in NEC, including manager of the international
planning division, and senior vice president and executive general manager of the corporate business development
unit. Mr. Morita is currently the executive vice president and the head of the global business unit at NEC and has held
this position since July 2011. He holds various board positions in subsidiaries and associated companies of NEC
Corporation. He also served as an auditor at Japan Aviation Electronics Industry Ltd (listed on Tokyo Stock Exchange)
during 24 June 2008 to 26 June 2012. Mr. Morita graduated with a bachelor's degree in law from the University of
Tokyo.

Mr. Jun Ye, aged 42, has been a Non-Executive Director of our Company since February 2012. Mr. Ye has 20
years of experience in finance and investment. Since 1996, Mr. Ye has held various positions within the business
development and investment banking divisions of SAIL. In December 2009 he was promoted to his current position
as vice president. Mr. Ye is also a director at Huahong Group, Shanghai Huali, Bank of Shanghai and Sino-US United
MetLife Insurance Company Limited. Mr. Ye also serves as the chairman of Shanghai Zhaoxin Semiconductor Ltd. and
SinoTherapeutics Inc. Mr. Ye obtained a bachelor's degree in industrial and international trade and a master's degree
in business administration from Shanghai Jiao Tong University.

Mr. Stephen Tso Tung Chang, aged 66, is an Independent Non-Executive Director of our Company. Mr. Chang was
certified public accountant in Hong Kong and was a member of the Hong Kong Society of Accountants from 1978
to the end of 2003. He was also a fellow member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales
since January 1983. Mr. Chang has extensive experience in accounting, auditing and financial management. He held
various positions at Ernst & Young starting in 1976. He became a management committee member of Ernst & Young
in 1989 and was actively involved in establishing and monitoring the firm’s internal control and risk management policy
and procedures. Prior to his promotion in 2000 to managing partner of the professional services department, he was
chairman of Ernst and Young’s audit and advisory business services for four years. Before his retirement in 2003, he
was a partner of Ernst and Young and also the chairman of Ernst and Young China and Hong Kong. He is a member
of the Investment Committee of Shanghai Fudan University Education Development Foundation and Fudan University
Education Development Foundation (overseas). He is also an independent non-executive director of three Hong Kong
listed companies, China Cinda Asset Management Co., Ltd. (stock code: 1359.HK), Kerry Properties Limited (stock
code: 683.HK), and China Life Insurance Company Ltd. (Stock code: 2628. HK). He was formerly an independent
non-executive director of China Pacific Insurance (Group) Co., Ltd. (stock codes: 601601.SH and 2601.HK), a listed
company in Hong Kong and Shanghai. Mr. Chang obtained a bachelor’s of science degree in food science and
chemistry from the University of London.
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Mr. Kwai Huen Wong, BBS, JP, aged 63, is an Independent Non-Executive Director of our Company. Mr. Wong was
admitted to practice as a solicitor in Hong Kong in October 1985, and in England & Wales in July 1989. He was
admitted as a fellow member of the Chartered Institute of Arbitrators in June 1999 and was the chairman of the Hong
Kong International Arbitration Centre, and is currently a senior member of the Hong Kong Institute of Arbitrators.
Mr. Wong has been a council member of the Law Society of Hong Kong since 2000. From December 2011 to
November 2013, he was the chairman of the Copyright Tribunal. He has been a council member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Directors and the deputy chairman of the Inland Revenue Board of Review since 2011. He was a board
member of the Hong Kong Airport Authority and is currently a board member of the Hong Kong Hospital Authority and
Competition Committee, and he has been the president-elect of the Inter Pacific Bar Association and a member of the
Competition Commission since 2014. He was appointed as the managing partner of Fried, Frank, Harris, Shriver &
Jacobson from November 2006 to February 2011, and has held the position of a consultant to that firm since March
2011. Mr. Wong is currently an independent non-executive director of China International Marine Containers (Group)
Co., Ltd. (stock codes: 000039.SZ and 2039.HK) and PICC Asset Management Co. Ltd. Mr. Wong graduated with a
bachelor’s degree in arts from Chinese University of Hong Kong, a bachelor’s degree in Law and a solicitor certificate
from the University of London and British Law School, and also with a certificate in PRC Law issued by the China Law
Society.

Mr. Long Fei Ye, aged 73, is an Independent Non-Executive Director of our Company. Mr. Ye held various positions
in the Shanghai Municipal Government. Mr. Ye was relocated to Hong Kong in 1991, and served until 1995 as the
chief executive of the “Shanghai Desk”, which was a cooperation arrangement for promoting Shanghai between the
Shanghai government and Arthur Andersen & Co. He then joined Kerry Holdings Limited in 1995, and served as the
chairman and deputy chairman of Shangri-La Asia Limited from October 2000 to August 2003 and August 2003 to
March 2007, respectively. He has been an advisor to Shangri-La Asia Limited since March 2007. Mr. Ye obtained a
bachelor’s and master’s degree, both in physics from Fudan University.

Senior Management
As of the date of this report, the Company’s senior management includes:

Mr. Wenbiao Fu, aged 60, is an Executive Director and the chairman of our Company. For more information about
Mr. Fu's past experience and academic background, see the section headed “Directors and Senior Management —
Directors”.

Mr. Yu Wang, aged 42, is an Executive Director and the president of our Company. For more information about Mr.
Wang's past experience and academic background, see the section headed “Directors and Senior Management —
Directors”.

Mr. Wei Xu, aged 57, is an executive vice president of our Group and is responsible for manufacturing and
engineering, purchasing, planning, quality and human resources of our Group. Mr. Xu participated in the start-up
of HHNEC in July 1997 and made significant contributions to the set-up of the first 200mm wafer semiconductor
production line in Mainland China. He has since held various positions at HHNEC in manufacturing, technology and
quality control. From June 2012 to October 2013, Mr. Xu was the acting president of HHNEC. Prior to joining HHNEC,
Mr. Xu worked with Wuxi Huajing Electronics Group in MOS circuit business unit. Mr. Xu graduated in 1982 from Xi'an
Jiaotong University majoring in semiconductor physics and devices. He further enrolled in post-graduate studies at
Tsinghua University.
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Mr. Heng Fan, aged 53, is an executive vice president of our Group and is responsible for Sales and Marketing.
Prior to joining our Group at the end of 2014, Mr. Fan was director and president of Shanghai Huahong Jitong Smart
System Co. Ltd from 2003 to 2014. Before this, he held various positions including research analyst/deputy director
of Shanghai Institute of Microsystem and Information Technology, Chinese Academy of Science, and vice president
of Shanghai Huahong Integrated Circuit Co. Ltd. Mr. Fan has also been the chairman of Shanghai RFID Engineering
and Technology Association since 2011. Mr. Fan received his bachelor's degree in microelectronics from the Electronic
Engineering Department of Fudan University and his master’s degree in Semiconductor Physics and Semiconductor
Device Physics from Shanghai Institute of Microsystem and Information Technology, Chinese Academy of Science.

Mr. Daniel Yu-Cheng Wang, aged 52, is an executive vice president of our Group and oversees finance, information
technology, listed company affairs, and international human resources for our Group. He joined Grace Shanghai in
April 2001 and played a central leadership role in each stage of Grace Shanghai’s development and in the preparation
for and implementation of the Merger. Mr. Wang has been secretary of the Board of the Company since February 2012.
Prior to joining Grace Shanghai, Mr. Wang worked at LS| Logic Corporation in Silicon Valley, U.S. from August 1995 to
March 2001 as the division controller in the broadband entertainment division. Before joining LSI Logic Corporation, Mr.
Wang was employed by Franklin Templeton Investments in the U.S. Mr. Wang obtained a bachelor’s of science degree
in industrial engineering and operations research from College of Engineering, University of California, Berkeley, and a
master’s of business administration in finance and banking from the University of San Francisco.

Dr. Cheng Fu, aged 36, is an executive vice president of our Group and is in charge of legal, compliance, and science
and technology projects. He joined Grace Shanghai in May 2006 and has been instrumental in setting the strategic
direction of the Company. Dr. Fu has also held various positions at SAIL, starting from September 2005, where his
primary responsibilities include investments in the technology sector. Dr. Fu holds the position of deputy director
of technology and industry investments at SAIL concurrently with his responsibilities at our Group. Dr. Fu earned a
bachelor’s of engineering degree in computer science and technology and a doctorate degree of engineering in
computer software and theory from Shanghai Jiao Tong University.

Dr. Weiran Kong, aged 51, is an executive vice president of our Group and is in charge of technology development.
He joined Grace Shanghai in March 2003 and has 20 years’ experience in the semiconductor industry, with a proven
track record of driving innovations in the area of NOR Flash, Logic and embedded Flash. Before joining Grace
Shanghai, Dr. Kong was based in the U.S. and has worked for Sun Microsystems, Inc., LS| Logic Corporation and ISSI.
He obtained a bachelor’s degree in physics from Nankai University in Tianjin and graduated with a master’s of science
degree in electrical engineering and a doctorate degree in applied physics from Oregon Graduate Institute of Science
& Technology in the U.S. Dr. Kong holds 12 U.S. patents, 24 PRC patents and co-authored over 20 technical papers.

Mr. Kai Gong, aged 59, is an executive vice president of our Group and is in charge of general office, government
relations, general administrative, security, environmental safety and health. He joined HHNEC in 1998 and was the
manager and director of the EHS and facility departments. Mr. Gong started his career in the Acrylic Factory of
Shanghai Petrochemical Company and held various positions including workshop director, vice factory chief and
factory chief from 1983 to 1995. Prior to joining HHNEC, he was the assistant to the general manager of Sinopec
Shanghai Petrochemical Co, Ltd. and was in charge of basic construction and general administration. He obtained a
bachelor’s degree in business administration from the Shanghai University of Technology and a master’s of business
administration degree from China Europe International Business School. He was qualified as a senior economist in
2013 by Shanghai Municipal Human Resources and Social Security Bureau.
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Dr. Qi Li, aged 52, is a vice president of our Group and is currently responsible for purchasing and logistics. Dr. Li
has 20 years of professional working experience and joined Grace Shanghai in January 2003. Prior to that, he was
the senior engineering manager at Applied Materials, Inc., in the U.S. from 1995 to 2002. Dr. Li received a bachelor’s
degree in physics from Peking University and his master's and doctorate degrees in physics from the University of
Maryland.

Mr. Tony Chen, aged 56, is a vice president of our Group and currently responsible for regional sales and customer
support. Mr. Chen has over 20 years of experience in the semiconductor industry and joined Grace Shanghai in
March 2006. Prior to that, he worked for Chartered Semiconductor Manufacturing Ltd (which was later acquired
by GLOBALFOUNDRIES) from January 1994 to February 2006 and was the chief representative for Chartered
Semiconductor Manufacturing Ltd.’s China Representative Office from August 2002 until March 2006. Mr. Chen
received his bachelor's degree in semiconductor physics from the Sun Yat-Sen University. He obtained his master’s
degrees of Science (M.Sc.) and University Administration (M.U.A.) from the University of Glasgow.

Dr. Steven Lin, aged 53, is a vice president of our Group and currently leads regional sales for North America and
Japan. He worked in various non-volatile memory technology development roles at leading semiconductor companies
such as Simtek Corporation and joined Grace Shanghai in August 2006. Dr. Lin received his bachelor’'s of science
and master’s of science degrees in electrical engineering from Massachusetts Institute of Technology, and a doctorate
degree in electrical engineering from the California Institute of Technology.

Mr. Bill Lin, aged 46, is a vice president of our Group and is currently responsible for our Fab 3 operations. He has 20
years of working experience in the semiconductor industry and joined Grace Shanghai in August 2000. Before joining
Grace Shanghai, he worked for Texas Instruments-Acer Inc. (later merged with Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing
Company Limited) from 1995 to August 2000. Mr. Lin received his master's degree in chemical engineering from the
National Taiwan University of Science and Technology (previous known as National Taiwan Institute of Technology in
Taiwan).

Mr. Mirko Sonntag, aged 38, is a vice president of our Group and is currently responsible for sales operations and
customer services and sales for Europe. His expertise encompasses demand and supply chain planning and business
operations, with a strong foundation in business development. Mr. Sonntag joined Grace Shanghai in October
2008. Prior to that, he worked at Infineon Technologies AG in Germany. Mr. Sonntag obtained a diploma in process
engineering and economics from the University of Applied Sciences Berlin and School of Economics Berlin, Germany.

Annual Report 2014 33



Directors and Senior Management Team

Joint Company Secretaries

Mr. Xiaojun Wang, aged 60, is our joint Company Secretary and was appointed on 12 June 2014. He is a practicing
solicitor admitted in the PRC, Hong Kong and England and Wales. He joined The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited in 1992 and worked at Richards Butler, Peregrine Capital Limited and ING Barings Securities (Hong Kong)
Limited. In 2001, he established X. J. Wang & Co. that was merged with Jun He Law Offices in 2009. He is currently a
partner of Jun He Law Offices. From 2011 to 2012, Mr. Wang was a managing director of CCB International (Holdings)
Limited. He was an independent non-executive director of Guangzhou Shipyard International Company Limited (stock
codes: 317.HK and 600685.SH) from 2005 to 2011. Mr. Wang also serves as an independent non-executive director
of OP Financial Investments Limited (stock code: 1140.HK), Yanzhou Coal Mining Company Limited (stock codes:
1171.HK, 600188.SH and YZC), NORINCO International Company Limited (stock code: 000065.5Z), China Aerospace
International Holdings Limited (stock code: 31.HK), and Livzon Pharmaceutical Group Inc. (stock codes: 1513.HK and
000513.5Z). Mr. Wang obtained a bachelor’s degree in laws from the Renmin University of China in 1983 and a master
of laws degree from the Chinese Academy of Social Sciences in 1986.

Ms. Rao Fu, aged 37, is our joint Company Secretary and was appointed on 12 June 2014. Ms. Fu joined Grace
Shanghai in 2007 and has held various positions, including manager of the legal department and senior legal counsel.
She is very experienced on all legal matters, including mergers and acquisitions, management of litigation, commercial
contracts, financing, regulatory and compliance matters, as well as other matters for the Group’s business. Prior to
joining Grace Shanghai, Ms. Fu worked at International Information Products (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd., from October 2000
to January 2002. This company was subsequently acquired by Lenovo in 2005 and renamed Lenovo Information
Products (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. Ms. Fu graduated with a bachelor’s degree in economics from Jilin University of Finance
and Economics (previously known as Changchun Taxation College) and obtained her Juris Master’'s degree from
Fudan University School of Law and also her master of laws degree from Columbia Law School, the United States.
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Corporate Governance Report

The shares of the Company were listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange on 15 October 2014 (the Listing
Date). The Board hereby presents to the Shareholders the corporate governance report for the period from the Listing
Date to 31 December 2014 (the Period).

Corporate Governance Practices

The Group is committed to promoting good corporate governance and has set up procedures on corporate
governance that comply with the principles in the Corporate Governance Code (the Code) as set out in Appendix 14
to the Listing Rules.

Compliance with the Code Provisions

Throughout the Period, the Company complied with the Code.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the Model
Code) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding securities transactions by
Directors. The Company has made specific enquiries with all of the Directors, each of whom has confirmed that he
has, throughout the Period, complied with the required standards set out therein.

Board of Directors

The Board is entrusted with the overall responsibility of managing the Company’s business and affairs and the
ultimate responsibility of the day-to-day management of the Company which is delegated to the chairman and the
management.

The Board currently comprises a total of nine Directors, with two Executive Directors, Mr. Wenbiao Fu (chairman) and
Mr. Yu Wang (president), four Non-Executive Directors, Mr. Jianbo Chen, Mr. Yuchuan Ma, Mr. Takayuki Morita and Mr.
Jun Ye and three Independent Non-Executive Directors, Mr. Stephen Tso Tung Chang, Mr. Long Fei Ye and Mr. Kwai
Huen Wong JP. More details of the Directors are disclosed on pages 29 to 31 of this annual report. The Company
has published and maintained on its website and on the Stock Exchange’s website an updated list of the Directors
identifying their roles and functions.

Each of the Non-Executive Directors of the Company is appointed for a specific term of three years and is subject to
re-nomination and re-election by the Company in general meetings unless previously terminated in accordance with
the terms and conditions of the relevant letter of appointment or director’s service contract.

The Board meets regularly throughout the year. All Directors are given the opportunity to put items on the agenda for
regular Board meetings. All Directors have access to the Company Secretaries to ensure that all Board procedures
and rules and regulations are followed. Full minutes of Board meetings are kept by the Company Secretaries and
are available for inspection on reasonable notice. Any Director may, in furtherance of his duties, take independent
professional advice where necessary at the expense of the Company.
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The Board is responsible for setting the strategic direction and policies of the Group and supervising management.
Some functions including, inter alia, the monitoring and approval of material transactions, matters involving a conflict
of interest for a substantial shareholder of the Company or a Director, the approval of the quarterly, interim and final
results, other disclosures to the public or regulators and the internal control system are reserved by the Board, and the
decisions relating to such matter shall be subject to the decision of the Board. Matters not specifically reserved to the
Board and necessary for the daily operations of the Company are delegated to management under the supervision of
the respective Directors and the leadership of the chairman.

The chairman is responsible for formulating business strategies and providing leadership to the Board, ensuring
effective running of the Board, including that all appropriate issues are discussed by the Board in a timely manner. The
chairman ensures that all Directors are properly briefed on issues arising at Board meetings and all Directors receive
adequate, complete and reliable information.

The roles of the chairman and the president are separate. The chairman is responsible for the overall management and
operations of the Company and for proposing and reviewing the corporate directions and strategies of the Company.
The president is responsible for the day-to-day management of the Company’s business and operations as well as the
implementation of the Company’s business strategies.

During the Period, the Board at all times complied with Rules 3.10(1), (2) and 3.10A of the Listing Rules relating to
the appointment of at least three Independent Non-Executive Directors representing at least one-third of the Board;
one of the Independent Non-Executive Directors is required to possess appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise. Each of the Independent Non-Executive Directors has made an
annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company is of the view that all
Independent Non-Executive Directors meet the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and
are independent in accordance with the terms of the guidelines.

Directors’ and Officers’ Liabilities Insurance
Appropriate insurance cover for Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against the Directors and

officers of the Company and its subsidiaries arising out of corporate activities of the Group has been arranged by the
Group.
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Board Operation

During the Period, the Board held one Board meeting. The attendance record of each member of the Board at the
Board meeting and the audit committee meeting is set out below:

Audit
committee
Board meeting meeting
Executive Directors
Wenbiao Fu 1 N/A
Yu Wang 1 N/A
Non-Executive Directors
Jianbo Chen 1 N/A
Yuchuan Ma 0 N/A
Takayuki Morita 1 N/A
Jun Ye 1 1
Independent Non-Executive Directors
Stephen Tso Tung Chang 1 1
Long Fei Ye 1 0
Kwai Huen Wong, JP 1 N/A

During the Period, the Company did not hold any extraordinary general meeting.

In place of physical meetings, the Board may circulate written resolutions for approval by the relevant members of the
Board except for matters where a substantial shareholder or a Director has a conflict of interest that the Board has
determined to be material in compliance with Code Provision A.1.7.

The Board having considered the attendance records of the Directors is satisfied that each Director spends sufficient
time performing his responsibilities.

Continuous Professional Development

Directors shall keep abreast of their responsibilities as Directors of the Company and of the conduct, business
activities and development of the Company.

Every newly appointed Director will receive formal, comprehensive and tailored induction on the first occasion of
his/her appointment to ensure appropriate understanding of the business and operations of the Company and full
awareness of his/her responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant statutory rules.

As the time since the listing of the Company’s shares was relatively short, none of the Directors participated in any
continuous professional development program during the Period. However, the Company understands that the
Directors should participate in appropriate continuous professional development programs to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills to ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant. Internally-facilitated
briefings for the Directors will be arranged in the next financial year, and reading material on relevant topics will be
issued to the Directors where appropriate. All Directors are encouraged to attend relevant training courses at the
Company’s expense.
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Remuneration Committee

The remuneration committee of the Company (the Remuneration Committee) currently comprises one Non-Executive
Director, Mr. Jianbo Chen, and two Independent Non-Executive Directors, Mr. Kwai Huen Wong, JP and Mr. Long
Fei Ye. The chairman of the Remuneration Committee is Mr. Kwai Huen Wong, JP. The roles and functions of the
Remuneration Committee include the determination of the specific remuneration packages of all Executive Directors
and senior management, including benefits in kind, pension rights and compensation payments, and the making of
recommendations to the Board in connection with the remuneration of the Non-Executive Directors. The Remuneration
Committee should consider factors such as the salaries paid by comparable companies, employment conditions
elsewhere in the Group and the desirability of performance-based remuneration. A copy of the terms of reference
of the Remuneration Committee is available from the Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s website. The
Remuneration Committee shall meet at least once a year.

During the Period, no meeting of the Remuneration Committee was held.

Details of the emoluments of the Directors are set out in note 8 to the Financial Statements.

Nomination Committee

The nomination committee of the Company (the Nomination Committee) currently comprises one Executive Director,
Mr. Wenbiao Fu, and two Independent Non-Executive Directors, Mr. Kwai Huen Wong, JP and Mr. Long Fei Ye. The
chairman of the Nomination Committee is Mr. Wenbiao Fu. The role and function of the Nomination Committee are
to review the structure, size and composition of the Board, make recommendations on any proposed changes to
the Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy, with due regard to the board diversity policy, identify
individuals suitably qualified to become Board members, select or make recommendations to the Board on the
selection of individuals nominated for directorships, assess the independence of Independent Non-Executive Directors
and make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-appointment of Directors and succession planning
for Directors, in particular the chairman and the president, and monitor the implementation of the board diversity policy
and review such policy, as appropriate, to ensure its effectiveness. The Nomination Committee has established a
specific written committee charter which deals clearly with its authority and duties. A copy of the terms of reference of
the Nomination Committee is available from the Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s website. The Nomination
Committee shall meet at least once a year.

During the Period, no meeting of the Nomination Committee was held.

Pursuant to the articles of association of the Company (the Articles), any Director appointed to fill a casual vacancy
of the Board shall hold office only until the next following annual general meeting of the Company and any Director
appointed as an addition to the existing Board shall hold office only until the next annual general meeting of the
Company and shall then be eligible for re-election at the relevant general meeting. Every Director shall be subject
to retirement by rotation at least once every three years and shall be eligible for re-election in accordance with the
Articles. The Articles also allow for removal of a Director by an ordinary resolution.
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Auditor’s Remuneration

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the remuneration paid and payable to the auditors of the Group, Ernst &
Young, for the provision of the Group’s audit services and non-audit related services was US$0.77 million and US$0.07
million respectively.

Audit Committee

At least one of the members of the audit committee of the Company (the Audit Committee) has appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management expertise as required under the Listing Rules. None of
the members of the Audit Committee was a former partner of the Company’s existing external auditors within one year
immediately prior to the dates of their respective appointments. All members have appropriate skills and experience in
reviewing financial statements as well as addressing significant control and financial issues of the Company. The Board
expects the members of the Audit Committee to exercise independent judgement and delegates the responsibilities of
the corporate governance functions to the Audit Committee in order to comply with the requirement of the Code.

The Audit Committee of the Company currently comprises one Non-Executive Director, Mr. Jun Ye and two Independent
Non-Executive Directors Mr. Stephen Tso Tung Chang and Mr. Long Fei Ye. The chairman of the Audit Committee is
Mr. Stephen Tso Tung Chang. The primary duties of the Audit Committee include the reviewing of the Group’s financial
reporting system, the nature and scope of audit review as well as the effectiveness of the system of internal control
procedures and risk management. The Audit Committee is also responsible for making recommendations in relation
to the appointment, reappointment and removal of the external auditors, and the reviewing and monitoring of the
independence and objectivity of the external auditors. In addition, the Audit Committee discusses matters raised by
the external auditors and regulatory bodies to ensure that appropriate recommendations are implemented. A copy
of the terms of reference of the Audit Committee is available from the Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s
website. The Audit Committee shall meet at least twice a year.

During the Period, the Audit Committee held one meeting and a majority of the committee members were present at
the meeting. In such meeting, the Audit Committee reviewed and approved the Group’s financial statements for the
three months ended 30 September 2014.

Summary of the Board Diversity Policy

On 22 September 2014, the Board adopted a board diversity policy (the Policy) in compliance with Code provision
A.5.6.

The Policy aims to set out the approach to achieve diversity on the Board and does not apply to diversity in relation to
the employees of the Company, nor the board and the employees of any subsidiary of the Company. The Company
sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an essential element in maintaining the Company’s competitive
advantage. In designing the Board’s composition, Board diversity will be considered from a number of aspects,
including without limitation, differences in the talents, skills, regional and industry experience, background, gender,
age and other qualities of the members of the Board, in order to maintain an appropriate range and balance of
talents, skills, experience and background on the Board. In recommending candidates for appointment to the Board,
the Nomination Committee will consider candidates on merit against objective criteria and with due regard for the
benefits of diversity on the Board. The Nomination Committee will discuss and agree on the measurable objectives for
achieving diversity on the Board and recommend them to the Board for adoption. At any given time, the Board may
seek to improve one or more aspects of its diversity and measure progress accordingly. The Company aims to maintain
an appropriate balance of diversity perspectives of the Board that are relevant to the Company’s business growth.
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Corporate Governance Functions
The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in provision D.3.1 of the Code.

The Board reviewed the Company’s corporate governance policies and practices, the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior management, the Company’s policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements, the compliance with the Model Code, and the Company’s compliance with the
Code and disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.

Investor Relations

The Company maintains a website at www.huahonggrace.com with information and updates on the Company’s
business developments and operations, list of Directors and their role and function, constitutional documents, terms of
reference of the Board and its committees, procedures for nomination of Directors for election, Shareholder rights and
communication policy, corporate governance practices, announcements, circulars and reports released to the Stock
Exchange and other information. Information on the Company’s website will be updated from time to time.

The Company amended its Articles on 20 September 2014 in an extraordinary general meeting approving matters in
relation to the listing of the Company’s shares on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. A copy of the Articles is available
on the Company’s website and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange’s website.

Company Secretaries

The Company Secretaries, Mr. Xiaojun Wang and Ms. Rao Fu, are responsible to the Board for ensuring that the Board
procedures are followed and the Board activities are efficiently and effectively conducted. They are also responsible
for ensuring that the Board is fully appraised of the relevant legislative, regulatory and corporate governance
developments relating to the Group and facilitating the induction and professional development of Directors.

The Company Secretaries report to the chairman and the president, play an essential role in the relationship between
the Company and its Shareholders, and assist the Board in discharging its obligations to Shareholders pursuant to the
Listing Rules.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, Mr. Xiaojun Wang attended relevant professional seminars to update his
skills and knowledge and has complied with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules to take no less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training.

As the time since the listing of the Company’s shares was relatively short, Ms. Rao Fu did not attend any relevant
professional training during the Period. However, Ms. Rao Fu will attend relevant professional seminars to update
her skills and knowledge and comply with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules to take no less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training in the coming financial year.
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Shareholder Rights

The Group uses several formal channels to ensure fair disclosure and comprehensive and transparent reporting of its
performance and activities. These include quarterly, interim and annual reports, announcements and circulars.

The general meetings of the Company are a primary forum for communication between the Shareholders and the
Board. The Group encourages its Shareholders to attend and participate in general meetings to ensure a high level of
accountability and to keep Shareholders informed of the Group’s strategy and goals. The chairman of the Board, other
Board members and the chairmen of all the Board committees, or in their absence, other members of the respective
committees, are available to answer any questions from the Shareholders.

Procedures for Shareholders to Convene an Extraordinary General Meeting

Extraordinary general meetings may be convened by the Directors on requisition of Shareholder(s) holding not less
than one-twentieth of the paid up capital of the Company or by such Shareholder(s) who made the requisition (the
Requisitionist(s)) (as the case may be) pursuant to sections 566 to 568 of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of
the laws of Hong Kong) (the Companies Ordinance). The objects of the meeting must be stated in the requisition which
must be signed by the Requisitionist(s) and deposited at the registered office of the Company. Shareholders should
follow the requirements and procedures as set out in sections 580 to 583 of the Companies Ordinance for convening
an extraordinary general meeting.

Procedures for Putting Forward Proposals at Shareholders’ Meetings and Directing
Shareholders’ Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may at any time send their written requests, proposals, enquiries and concerns to the Company for the
attention of chairman of the Board or the Company Secretaries whose contact details are as follows:

288 Halei Road, Zhangjiang Hi-Tech Park, Shanghai, P.R.China, 201203
Tel: (86) 21 38829909

Fax: (86) 21 50809999
Email: IR@hhgrace.com

Voting by Poll

Pursuant to Rule 13.39(4) of the Listing Rules, any vote of Shareholders at a general meeting must be taken by poll.
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System of Internal Controls

The Board ensures the maintenance of sound and effective internal controls to safeguard the Shareholders’ investment
and the assets of the Company. It is an important duty of the Directors to conduct a review of the effectiveness of
the system of internal controls of the Group annually or at anytime necessary. The review covers all material controls,
including financial, operational and compliance controls, and risk management functions, and takes into account
the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the Group’s accounting and financial reporting
function, and their training programs and budget. The Board has reached the conclusion that the Group’s internal
control system was in place and effective.

General

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility in preparing the Group’s financial statements for each financial period
to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and in accordance with statutory requirements and
applicable accounting standards. In preparing the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2014, the
Directors have selected suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently, made judgments and estimates
that are prudent, fair and reasonable and prepared the financial statements on a going concern basis.

The responsibilities of the auditors with respect to the financial reporting are set out in the Independent Auditors’
Report on pages 144 and 145 of this annual report.

On behalf of the Board
Mr. Wenbiao Fu
Chairman
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The Directors present the annual report and the audited financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2014 (the Financial Statements).

Principal Activities

The Company is a pure-play 200mm foundry. We primarily focus on manufacturing semiconductors on 200mm wafers
for special applications. The activities of our principal subsidiaries are set out in note 18 to the Financial Statements.

Results

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2014 and the state of affairs at that date are set out in the
Financial Statements on pages 146 to 234 of this report.

Final Dividends

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2014.

Dividend Policy

Subject to the approval of the Shareholders and the requirements of the law, it has been decided that the Company
will pay dividends to the Shareholders for the year of 2015 and onwards if the Group is profitable, the operations
environment is stable and there is no significant investment made by the Group. It is intended that the average of
dividends paid in three consecutive years will be no less than 30% of the average distributable net profit of these three
years. The remaining net profit will be used for the development and operations of the Group.

This dividend policy will continue to be reviewed from time to time and there can be no assurance that dividends will

be paid in any particular amount for any given period. In the event that the Board recommends a dividend, the form
and amount will depend on the assessment by the Directors of the factors affecting the Group from time to time.

Bank Loans and Other Borrowings

Particulars of bank loans and other borrowings of the Group as at 31 December 2014 are set out in note 27 to the
Financial Statements.

Financial Summary

A summary of the published results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the past four financial years is set
out on pages 235 and 236.
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Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of additions and other movements during the year ended 31 December 2014 in the property, plant and
equipment and investment property of the Group are set out in notes 14 and 15 to the Financial Statements.

In addition, details of the investment property are set out below:

Gross Floor Area

Location Type of Use Term of Lease Group’s Interest (sq.m.)
Portions of 9 buildings Industrial use Held under a land use 100% 91,563.11
No. 818 Guo Shou right for a term expiring

Jing Road on 8 March 2051

Zhangjiang Hi-Tech Park
Pudong New Area
Shanghai, PRC

Share Capital

Details of movement in the share capital of the Company during the year ended 31 December 2014 are set out in note
30 to the Financial Statements. The movements include the automatic inclusion of the amount standing to the share
premium account into the share capital as from 3 March 2014 in accordance with section 37 of Schedule 11 to the new
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), as part of the transition to the no-par value regime.

Reserves
As of 31 December 2014, none of our Company’s reserves were considered available for distribution to our

Shareholders. Details of movements in the reserves of the Group during the year ended 31 December 2014 are set out
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 150 of this report.
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Connected Transactions

The Group disclosed in the prospectus of the Company dated 3 October 2014 a series of continuing connected
transactions relating to the Huahong Zealcore, QST, NEC Management Partner, Ltd. (NEC Management), INESA,
Shanghai Huali, Huahong Real Estate and Shanghai Huajin Property Management Co., Ltd. (Huajin Property
Management). Certain details of the transactions are summarized in the table below. The Company has applied for
and the Stock Exchange has granted a waiver from, among others, strict compliance with the announcement and
independent shareholders’ approval requirement (as the case may be) in respect of such continuing connected
transactions. Details of the continuing connected transaction of the Group are as follow:

Unit: US$'000
Actual Proposed
Transaction Parties to the Transaction  Annual Caps
Date Transaction Connected Relationship  Transaction Amount 2014 2014
1 July 2014 Huahong Zealcore Huahong Zealcore is a Sales agreement between 11,303 12,600
(as purchaser) wholly-owned subsidiary ~ the Company as seller
of Huahong Group, the and Huahong Zealcore
The Company Company’s controlling as purchaser in relation to
(as seller) shareholder. the sales of IC and other
semiconductor products to
Huahong Zealcore.
1 November QST (as purchaser) QST was 65.63% held Sales agreement between 408 1,000
2013 by SAIL, the Company’s the Company as seller
The Company controlling shareholder, of  and QST as purchaser in
(as seller) which 49.22% interest was relation to the sales of IC
held directly by SAIL and  and other semiconductor
16.41% interest was held  products to QST.
directly by the Company.”
18 May 2014 QST (as receiver of QST was 65.63% held Service agreement 1,059 500
services) by SAIL, the Company’s between QST as receiver
controlling shareholder, of  of services and the
The Company (as which 49.22% interest was Company as provider of
provider of services) held directly by SAIL and  services in relation to the
16.41% interest was held  provision of services to
directly by the Company.®”  QST.
1 July 2014 Huahong Zealcore Huahong Zealcore is a Purchase agreement 448 800
(as seller) wholly-owned subsidiary ~ between Huahong
of Huahong Group, the Zealcore as seller and the
The Company Company’s controlling Company as purchaser in
(as purchaser) shareholder. relation to the purchase

of materials used in the
manufacturing process of
the Group’s semiconductor
products.
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Actual Proposed
Transaction Parties to the Transaction  Annual Caps
Date Transaction Connected Relationship  Transaction Amount 2014 2014
1 July 2014 NEC Management NEC Management is a Purchase agreement 559 1,300
(previously known wholly-owned subsidiary ~ between NEC
as NEC Purchasing  of NEC Corporation, the Management as seller and
Service, Ltd.) (as Company’s substantial the Company as purchaser
seller) shareholder. in relation to the purchase
of materials and parts used
The Company (as for the Group’s processing
purchaser) equipment.
23 September  INESA (on behalf INESA is the Company’s Purchase agreement 278 300
2014 of itself and its controlling shareholder. between INESA as seller
subsidiaries) (as (on behalf of itself and
seller) its subsidiaries) and the
Company as purchaser in
The Company (as relation to the purchase of
purchaser) goods and services.
25 February Shanghai Huali (as  Shanghai Huali is 73.42%  Lease agreement between 13,270 14,325

2010

(together with
supplemental ~ The Company

lessee) owned by SAIL, the
Company’s controlling
shareholder.

agreements (as lessor)
dated 10 June

2011 and 25

July 2014)

46

HUA HONG SEMICONDUCTOR LIMITED

Shanghai Huali as lessee
and the Company as lessor
in relation to the factory
premise situated at Hill 2,
13th street, Zhangjiang Hi-
Tech park, Pudong New
Area, Shanghai, PRC
leased by the Company
to Shanghai Huali for their
300mm wafer production
line. The total gross floor
area leased was 96,099.2
square meters.
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Actual Proposed
Transaction Parties to the Transaction  Annual Caps
Date Transaction Connected Relationship  Transaction Amount 2014 2014
10 January Huahong Real Estate Huahong Real Estate isa  Lease agreement between 1,653 1,654
2013 (as lessor) wholly-owned subsidiary ~ Huahong Real Estate as
of Hua Hong Technology  lessor and the Company
The Company Development, a company  as lessee in relation to
(as lessee) 50% held by and the dormitory premises
consolidated with Huahong situated at Hua Hong
Group, our controlling Innovation Park, Nong
shareholder, and 50% held 2777, Jinxiu Road East,
by HHNEC. Pudong New Area,
Shanghai, PRC (Dormitory
Premises) rented by the
Company from Huahong
Real Estate for use as staff
quarters for the Company’s
employees. The total gross
floor area rented was
17,412.87 square meters.
10 June 2014 Huajin Property Huajin Property Property management 205 213
Management (as Management is a wholly-  agreement between Huajin
property manager) owned subsidiary of Property Management as
Hua Hong Technology property manager and the
The Company (as Development, a company ~ Company as contractor in
contractor) 50% held by and relation to the engagement
consolidated with Huahong of Huajin Property
Group, our controlling Management by the
shareholder, and 50% held Group to provide property
by HHNEC. management service for

the Dormitory Premises.

Notes:
(1) This reflects the position as at 31 December 2014.

(2) The actual amount of service fees recognized for the year ended 31 December 2014 is US$0.453 million. As a result, this falls
within the annual cap approved for 2014. The amount of US$1.059 million represents the amount of service fees recognized for
the two years ended 31 December 2013 and 2014. As disclosed in the Prospectus of the Company dated 3 October 2014, the
Company had accumulated service fees of US$0.606 million for the year ended 31 December 2013 together with service fees of
US$0.23 million for the six months ended 30 June 2014. For the six months ended 31 December 2014, we recognized US$0.223
million in fees from QST.
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The Board (including the Independent Non-Executive Directors) has reviewed the continuing connected transactions
as described above and confirmed that such transactions did in fact continue in 2014:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Company;

(ii) either on normal commercial terms or, if there are no sufficient comparable transactions to judge whether they
are on normal commercial terms, on terms no less favourable to the Company than terms available to or from (as
appropriate) independent third parties; and

(iii) in accordance with the relevant agreements on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The auditors of the Company have confirmed in a letter to the Board that, with respect to the aforesaid continuing
connected transactions of 2014:

(iy nothing has come to their attention that causes the auditors to believe that the disclosed continuing connected
transactions have not been approved by the Company’s Board;

(i) for transactions involving the provision of goods or services by the Group, nothing has come to their attention
that causes the auditors to believe that the transactions were not, in all material respects, in accordance with the
pricing policies of the Company;

(iii) nothing has come to their attention that causes the auditors to believe that the transactions were not entered into,
in all material respects, in accordance with the relevant agreements governing such transactions; and

(iv) with respect to the aggregate amount of each of the continuing connected transactions, nothing has come to their
attention that causes the auditors to believe that the disclosed continuing connected transactions have exceeded
the maximum aggregate annual value disclosed in the Prospectus in respect of each of the disclosed continuing
connected transactions.

Related Party Transactions

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group entered into certain transactions with parties regarded as “related
parties” under the applicable accounting standards. Details of the related party transactions entered into by the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2014 are disclosed in note 34 to the financial statements. Save as disclosed
in the paragraph headed “Connected Transactions” in this annual report, the other related parties transactions
disclosed in note 34 were not regarded as connected transactions or were exempt from reporting, announcement and
shareholder approval requirements under the Listing Rules.

Annual General Meeting

The 2015 AGM will be held on Friday, 15 May 2015.
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Closure of Register of Members

For determining eligibility of Shareholders to attend and vote at the 2015 AGM

Latest time to lodge transfer documents for registration 4:30 p.m. on 12 May 2015
Closure of Register of members 13 to 15 May 2015

(both dates inclusive)
Record date 15 May 2015

During the above closure periods, no transfer of shares will be registered. To be eligible to attend and vote at the
AGM, all properly completed transfer documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged for
registration with the Company’s share registrar, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong no later than the aforementioned latest time.

Directors and Directors’ Service Contracts
The Directors of the Company from the Listing Date up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors:
Mr. Wenbiao Fu (Chairman)
Mr. Yu Wang (President)

Non-Executive Directors:
Mr. Jianbo Chen

Mr. Yuchuan Ma

Mr. Takayuki Morita

Mr. Jun Ye

Independent Non-Executive Directors:
Mr. Stephen Tso Tung Chang

Mr. Kwai Huen Wong, JP

Mr. Long Fei Ye

Each of the Directors of the Company is appointed for a specific term of three years and is subject to re-nomination
and re-election by the Company in general meeting unless previously terminated in accordance with the terms and
conditions of the relevant letter of appointment or director’s service contract.

Mr. Wenbiao Fu, Mr. Takayuki Morita and Mr. Jun Ye will retire by rotation from office as Directors at the forthcoming
annual general meeting, and Mr. Wenbiao Fu, Mr. Takayuki Morita and Mr. Jun Ye, being eligible, will offer themselves
for re-election pursuant to the articles of association of the Company.

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract which
is not terminable by the Group within one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

The Company has received annual confirmation of independence from each of the existing Independent Non-Executive

Directors in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers that all of the Independent Non-
Executive Directors are independent in accordance with the Listing Rules.
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Profiles of Directors and Senior Management

Profiles of Directors and senior management of the Group are set out on pages 29 to 34 to this report.

Highest Paid Individuals and the Remuneration of the Directors and Senior Management

Details of the Directors’ remuneration and the five individuals with highest emoluments are set out in notes 8 and 9
respectively of the consolidated financial statements in this annual report.

Directors’ and Chief Executive Interests in Shares and Underlying Shares of the
Company

As at 31 December 2014, none of the Directors nor the chief executive of the Company had any interests and short
positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any associated corporation (within the
meaning of Part XV of SFO), as recorded in the register kept under section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code contained in the Listing Rules.

Directors’ Interest in Competing Business

During the year, none of the Directors of the Group had any interests in a business which competes, either directly, or
indirectly, with the business of the Company or the Group.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts of Significance

No contract of significance to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries or associates was a party and in which
a Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year ended 31 December
2014 or at any time during the year.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has devised its own code of conduct regarding Directors dealing in the Company’s securities (the
Company Code) on terms no less exacting than the Model Code. Specific enquiry has been made of all the Directors,
and the Directors have confirmed that they have complied with the Company Code and the Model Code since the
Listing Date and up to 31 December 2014.
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Substantial Shareholders’ and Other Persons’ Interests in the Shares and Underlying
Shares of the Company

As at 31 December 2014, persons other than a Director or chief executive of the Company, having interests of 5% or
more or short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Group, were as follows:

Approximate
percentage of
aggregate interests

Number of in issued
Substantial shareholders Capacity and nature of interest shares held share capital*
Shanghai Hua Hong International, Inc. Legal and Beneficial owner 350,401,100 33.89%
(Hua Hong International)®
Shanghai Huahong (Group) Co., Ltd. Interest in a controlled corporation 350,401,100" 33.89%
(Hua Hong Group)®
China Electronics Corporation (CEC)® Interest in a controlled corporation 350,401,100" 33.89%
INESA Holding Group (INESA)®@ Interest in a controlled corporation 350,401,100 33.89%
Sino-Alliance International, Ltd. Legal and Beneficial owner 237,450,33010316)7) 22.97%
(Sino-Alliance International)
Sino-Alliance International, Ltd. Interest in a controlled corporation 36,508,686 3.52%
(Sino-Alliance International)
Shanghai Alliance Investment Ltd. (SAIL) Interest in a controlled corporation 624,360,116M6)(N 60.39%
NEC Corporation Legal and Beneficial owner 99,038,800 9.57%
Hylintek Limited Legal and Beneficial owner 64,010,100 6.19%
Shanghai Belling Co, Ltd. Interest in a controlled corporation 64,010,100M® 6.19%

Notes:

(1)
)

Long positions in the shares of the Company.

Hua Hong International is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Huahong Group. As at 31 December 2014, Huahong Group was 47.08%
owned by CEC, and 47.08% owned by SAIL. In addition, SAIL controlled 51.83% of the voting rights of Huahong Group by virtue
of its 47.08% equity interest in Huahong Group and an additional 4.75% voting rights pursuant to a voting bloc from INESA to
SAIL. Therefore CEC, SAIL and INESA were deemed to be interested in all the Shares in which Huahong Group is interested in
by virtue of Part XV of the SFO.

Including 3,645 shares held in escrow by Sino-Alliance International pursuant to an escrow arrangement.

Sino-Alliance International indirectly held interests in the Company through three wholly-owned subsidiaries, including an option
held by a wholly owned subsidiary of Sino-Alliance International, to call for 1,589,332 Shares from Sino-Alliance International.

In addition to the 350,401,100 Shares (33.89%) it indirectly held through Hua Hong International, SAIL indirectly held interests in
the Company through four wholly-owned subsidiaries, including Sino-Alliance International.

Hylintek Limited is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Shanghai Belling Co., Ltd. On 1 December 2014, Hylintek Limited entered an
agreement with Sino-Alliance International whereby Hylintek Limited conditionally agreed to sell and Sino-Alliance International
agreed to purchase 64,010,100 shares of the Company (the “Share Purchase”). The transaction had not yet completed as of 31
December 2014 pending certain condition to be fulfilled.

Including the 64,010,100 shares pursuant to the Share Purchase.

The percentages are calculated based on the total number of shares of the Company in issue as at 31 December 2014, i.e.,
1,033,871,656 shares.
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Save as disclosed above, so far as is known to any of the Directors and chief executive of the Company, as at 31
December 2014, no other person or corporation other than a Director or chief executive of the Company had any
interests or short positions in any shares or underlying shares of the Company which was recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO.

Share Option Scheme

There is no share option scheme operated by the Company.

Arrangement to Purchase Shares or Debentures

At no time during the year ended 31 December 2014 were rights to acquire benefits by means of acquisition of shares
in or debentures of the Company granted to any of the Directors or their respective spouses or minor children, or
were any such rights exercised by them, or was the Company or any of its holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow

subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors or their respective spouses or minor children to
acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

Major Customers and Suppliers

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the total purchases attributable to the Group’s five largest suppliers were less
than 30%, and the total turnover attributable to the Group’s five largest customers was less than 30%.

Emolument Policy
As at 31 December 2014, the Group had a total of 3,678 employees. The Group recruits and promotes individuals
based on merit and their development potentials. The emolument policy for the employees of the Group is set up by

the Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit, qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors are decided by the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Group’s operating
results and individual performance.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Securities

Since the Listing Date and up to 31 December 2014, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company'’s listed securities.

Pre-Emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s articles of association, or the laws of Hong Kong,
which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.
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Corporate Governance

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate governance standards to safeguard the
interests of shareholders and to enhance corporate value and accountability.

Information on the corporate governance practices adopted by the Company is set out in the Corporate Governance
Report in this annual report.

Sufficiency of Public Float
Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within the knowledge of the Directors as at the

date of this report, the Directors are satisfied that the Company has maintained the prescribed minimum public float
under the Listing Rules.

Auditors

A resolution will be submitted to the AGM to re-appoint Ernst & Young as auditors of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
Mr. Wenbiao Fu
Chairman
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Corporate Social Responsibility

Introduction

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) has been an integral part of our Group from the beginning. Our founding
principles were grounded in the realization that every decision and action we take has an impact on all our
stakeholders, including, in addition to our customers, employees and investors, the people in communities and
countries in which we work and live, the industry and economies from which we derive our revenue and which we
support, and the environment that sustains us all.

The financial success of our business provides the resources that enable our CSR activities, and therefore we must at
first order remain profitable. At the same time, we have integrated CSR into our operations in ways that also achieve
customer satisfaction, employee well being and environmental protection, all the while being a good citizen.

Social Responsibility Management System

Concept and Management

We believe the fulfillment of corporate social responsibility requires pro-active adherence to and implementation of
the highest international standards of business and social ethics while creating value for and sharing value with all
stakeholders. To this end, the Company incorporates economic, social and environmental responsibilities directly into
its business strategies and operations.

Effective social responsibility management also requires ongoing senior management attention and the involvement
of all staff. We established a “CSR Working Group” to set up a CSR organization system that enables management
to participate in and coordinate among the functional departments horizontally and member companies vertically.
Responsible officers from all functional departments make up the Working Group.

CSR Working Group

General Office Administrative Department Compliance Department
Human Resources EHS QC Department Finance Department
Marking Department Publicity Department Purchase Department Labor Union

Operation Customers and Products Employees Development Environmental Responsibility Social Welfare Causes

* Sustained value growth  Innovative and high-quality sts and * Low and green * Support for public utilities
* Grov h partners in the produ its i c produc ¢ Disaster assistance and
i * Established customer romo ployees * Responsible procurement of SO
t operation and service system / environment-friendly + Community involvement
risk prevention * Customer information d pro S and volunteerism
security safety mana ¢ Green office culture

CSR Priorities
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Stakeholders

Based on the business and operational characteristics of our Company and leveraging the experience and
best practices in the industry at home and abroad, we have determined the following to be our stakeholders:
our shareholders, customers, employees and partners; government agencies and regulators; and of course the
communities in which we live and work as well as the general public. The Company actively communicates with all
of these stakeholders via various channels and methods, including websites, the media, meetings, reports and other
business and social activities.

Expectations and Responses of Stakeholders

Key stakeholders

Description

Issues concerned

Communications and
responses

Shareholders

Customers

Employees

Government and regulators

Partners

Communities and the public

The domestic and foreign
holders of ordinary shares
in the capital of the
Company

IDMs, systems and
fabless companies

The Company’s
employees and contract
personnel who serve the
Company on a continuous
basis

Tax authorities,
environmental
authorities, SFC and
other governmental or
regulatory authorities

Suppliers, research
institutions, industry
associations, etc.

The community in which
we operate, the public,
the media and non-profit
organizations

Corporate governance
system, business strategy
and performance, stable
profitability and return on
investment

Quality, value, and
protection of customer
confidential information

Employee interests and
benefits, compensation
systems, training and
development, working
conditions, health and
family care

Compliant operation,
regulatory transparency,
full tax payment, carbon
emission reduction,
resource conservation

Business ethics and
creditworthiness, fair
competition, compliant
operation, strategic
alliance with mutual
benefits and win-win
future

Community development,
social welfare,
environmental protection,
business ethics

Shareholder meetings,
financial reports, result
announcement, road
shows, etc.

Product exhibitions,
customer research,
technical seminars, e-biz
systems and e-tapeout
systems, after-sales
services and complaints,
customer satisfaction
surveys, etc.

Employee activities,
Employee Representatives
Congress, trainings, self-
service systems and
employee manuals,
internal publications, etc.

On-site visit, document
exchanges, policy
enforcement, information
disclosure, etc.

Public tender
conferences, strategic
cooperation negotiations,
exchange visits, etc.

Community activities,
employee volunteer
activities, public cause
campaigns, social
undertakings support
programs, etc.
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Identification and Analysis of Substantive Issues

We identify the more substantive issues of social responsibility on which to focus our operations through periodical
analysis, taking into account both internal and external factors such as our strategic and operational direction, the
stakeholders’ concerns and expectations, as well as national and international standards and policies. We report
disclosures under an identification, evaluation and screening process, and we also check social responsibility issues
on a regular basis, in order to meet the social expectations for the Company.

High

Growth in value of the Company
Corporate governance
Compliance and risk management
Innovative products and services

3 Product quality and security

3 Customer satisfaction and

a 15 communication

3 Employees interests and benefits
@ Production and operational safety
s] Pollution prevention

% Resource conservation

3 Anti-corruption

3 20 18 Customers’ interests and information
g protection

P 19 13 Employee development

14 Industry development

15 Sustainability of the value chain

16 Environmental management system
17 Community relationships

18 Employee assistance

19 Green office

20 Public welfare causes

Importance to the Company
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Risk and Compliance Management
Risk Management

An effective risk management policy and strategy is crucial to the Company’s success. Our management has designed
and implemented a set of risk management policies to identify and address various potential risks arising in day-to-day
operations, including strategic, operational, financial and legal risks. The Audit Committee of the Board is responsible
for overseeing the overall risk management and assessing and updating our risk management policy on a yearly basis.

Compliance Management

The compliance department is responsible for overseeing overall compliance management. Each major department
also has a representative in charge of compliance matters, including the implementation of internal control systems,
policies and practices. Anglo Chinese Corporate Finance, Limited has been appointed as the compliance advisor
under Rule 3A.19 of the Listing Rules. In 2014, there was no non-compliance with any laws and regulations.

Anti-Corruption

The Company embraces and adheres to the principles of honesty and integrity. In 2014, we entered into “Countering
Commercial Bribery Undertaking” and “Rejecting Commercial Bribery Undertaking” agreements with 399 suppliers and
with 620 employees (including executives, functional managers and relevant staff) from critical departments, especially
those holding susceptible positions such as purchasing and sales. We then started to conduct inspections based on
the specific circumstances specified in the undertakings by randomly visiting and investigating 198 positions. No non-
compliance was found.

In addition, the Company has developed “Measures on Management of Staff Complaints and Reporting”, which
provides specific reporting channels (such as e-mail, telephone and mail), and encourages employees to report any
suspected internal violation. It is the Company’s policy to reply to a complaint from an identified person within one
week, and to report the investigation results related to an anonymous complaint to the group concerned in a timely
fashion. In addition, the Company actively organized anti-commercial-bribery trainings and related activities for
employees. In 2014, the Company conducted 3 anti-corruption trainings in which 1,870 persons participated. During
these trainings, three cases of suspected violation were reported internally. After thorough, timely investigations, all
persons in all three cases were cleared.
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Customers and Products
Product Quality and Innovation
Scientific Projects

The Company has improved its ability to integrate various technologies so as to maintain its leading position in the
market. One way of doing this has been by optimizing the structure of research and development to best fit the
strategic direction of specialty technologies for emerging high-growth applications, including the development of
new technologies. In 2014, the Company declared a total of 10 scientific projects, of which six were approved for
government subsidy. Government research fund amounting to RMB120 million was received in 2014.

Intellectual Property

Intellectual property is a key factor to the success of the Company. We protect our self-developed intellectual property
and associated rights by way of actively applying for patents on the one hand, and on the other hand establishing
systems to protect confidential information and trade secrets through controlled, restricted, need-to-know access. In
addition, we respect the intellectual property rights of other parties. In order to reduce the risk of claims of infringement
of third-party intellectual property rights against our manufacturing of semiconductor devices or the resulting end
products, we accept orders only from reputable customers with no known potential risk of infringement and with the
industry standard degree of indemnification. We also enter into a number of technology licensing agreements with
major technology companies.

Supporting the Continuing Education of Employees

By attaching great importance to recruiting and retaining talents, the Company’s R&D team comprises 262 R&D
engineers with exceptional capabilities. These include technology integration, IP design and accurate modeling,
covering the entire range of our products and services. In order to maintain the stability of the R&D team and to
constantly develop and enhance its innovative capability, the Company has established a technical personnel
management system. We encourage employees to continue their academic education by offering an academic
education subsidy program for working employees, under which more than ten on-the-job Masters of Engineering
are developed each year through cooperation with major universities. In 2003 the Company co-established with the
Chinese Academy of Science and the Shanghai Institute of Microsystem and Information Technology a joint doctoral
education program. To date 26 doctoral and two post-doctoral students have been enrolled in the program. Twenty-
three students (including the post-docs) have graduated and taken positions in the IC design and manufacturing
industry as well as in software programming. Five PhDs work at HHGrace, engaged in research and development of
the Company’s leading-edge technologies, and focused on major achievements enabling significant progress with
innovative solutions to complex technical challenges.
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Scientific Research and Innovation Statistics in 2014

Indicators Performance
R&D investment US$36.5 million
Percentage of R&D investment to revenue 5.5%
Patents applied 415
Patents granted 213
Intellectual property rights infringement cases nil

By the end of 2014, the Company had filed over 4,300 patent applications (including 136 in the US), of which over
1,300 patents had been granted (including 58 in the US).

The project of “0.13um embedded self-align splitgate flash memory technology and process development” was
awarded first prize of the 2014 Shanghai Science and Technology Progress Award

Product Quality Assurance

Quality products are the key to attracting and retaining customers and to fulfilling our responsibility to them. The
Company established five integrated departments to ensure product quality and reliability over the full range of our
operations. They are: Quality System and Customer Satisfaction, Supplier Management and Material Analysis, Quality
Engineering, Reliability Assurance, and Failure Analysis. We assure correct implementation of relevant specifications at
each process step for all products. We also set run tendency guidelines and reporting over key steps, in order to give
in-time warning and make in-time adjustment. We established a system of regular meetings to review any materials
abnormalities in the production line to fully ensure product quality. In 2014, the failure rate of our products at end-users
was lower than two one-billionths.

The Company’s quality control system has been granted BSI ISO9001 standards certification, and all its manufacturing
facilities have been granted ISO/TS16949 and QC080000 IECQ HSPM standards certification. ISO/TS16949 is a system
to help a company establish the strict automotive-level quality control standards, focusing on customer satisfaction,
continuous improvement, defect prevention and reduction of variation and waste. In addition, the Company runs a
product recalling system, under which substandard products in terms of functionality or harmful substances may be
recalled. There were no recalls of Company products in 2014.

Product Quality Control Performance Statistics in 2014

Indicators Performance
Percentage of recalled products sold due to safety or health issues 0%
Organized quality training courses 8
Quality trainings held 10
Number of participants in quality trainings 368
Average length of time of participation in quality trainings per person 2.4 hours
Quality improvement recommendations 72
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Customer Service
Customer Service System

By the end of 2014, the Company had served more than 600 customers from 20 countries around the world, with most
of whom the cooperation has been maintained for more than five years.

We listen to our customers and respond to their needs and complaints in a timely manner using multiple
communication methods, including e-biz system, e-tapeout system, customer service hotlines and technical seminars.
This ensures flexibility, quickness and accuracy throughout the course of manufacturing, delivery and after-sales
services, so as to improve efficient running communication between the parties to reduce product delays due to
misinformation or lack of information. We provide an online products status confirmation service, enabling customers to
keep abreast of the progress of production. For customer complaints, the Company undertakes to give survey results
within 48 hours, and provides an improvement report to the customer in question within 10 working days. In summary,
we focus on giving our customers and the community open and transparent information on products and services.

The Company carries out a customer satisfaction survey once every six months, resulting in a satisfaction survey
report. Meetings on the specific topics are then held in-house to analyze the survey results and to develop an
improvement scheme to rectify any dissatisfaction and recommendations on new needs for follow-up implementation
in a timely manner. In the customer satisfaction survey in the second half of 2014, the average customer satisfaction
score was 8.39 out of 10, and 76% of customers chose Hua Hong Semiconductor as their preferred supplier.

Customer Service Performance Statistics in 2014

Indicators Performance
Complaints 16
Completion rate of complaints 100%

Information Security

The Company values the security and protection of all types of confidential information from all sources. It established
a customer information control system according to the requirements of ISO/IEC27001 Information Security
Management, and entered into a confidentiality agreement with each customer and supplier. In addition, it sets control
permission for access to information of customers (as well as our own), under which only authorized employees have
access and then only to the information they need to do their job.

For sensitive products using smart card ICs, such as ID, social security and banking cards, the Company has a
reliability laboratory that meets national information confidentiality and reliability requirements. We built a complete
reliability system that encompasses both process reliability and product reliability in cooperation with IC design
companies.

Annual Report 2014 61



Corporate Social Responsibility

Employee Development
Rights and Benefits
Employment

We implement a non-discriminatory, capability-based recruitment and employment policy, and are committed to
providing equal opportunity in all our human resources activities such as employee selection, promotion, transfer,
remuneration, and benefits. We do not engage in discriminatory and injurious actions for any reason, in particular
nationality, ethnicity, regional heritage, gender, religion, age, family conditions, or other factors in contravention
of existing laws and regulations. We are further committed to not supporting the use of child labor under any
circumstances, and we do not employ children or adolescents under the age of 16 years.

2014 Company Employment Statistics

Category Group Persons %
Age <30 years 1,919 52.2%
30~50 years 1,686 45.8%
>50 years 73 2.0%
Region Mainland China 3,669 99.8%
Overseas regions 9 0.2%
Employee turnover New recruits 815 22.2%
Turnover 508 13.8%
Mainland China/Regional Employee turnover 5071 13.8%/0.03%
Age of employees turnover under 30 380/128/0 10.3%/3.5%/0
years/30-50 years/over 50 years
Employee gender Female 1,130 30.7%
Male 2,548 69.3%
Management employee gender Female management employees 9 0.2%
Male management employees 66 1.8%
Total (persons) 3,678

Remuneration and Benefits

Our employees are our most valuable asset. We provide competitive, market-oriented remuneration and benefits in
compliance with laws and regulations to attract and retain the best talents. The Company’s remuneration package
includes basic salary, performance based salary, incentives, allowances and subsidies. At the same time, the
company regularly pays full statutory social insurance items, and purchases commercial supplemental coverage for
our employees, including accident insurance and major illness medical insurance, and provides free supplemental
medical insurance to children and spouses of those employees in financial distress.

We guarantee the rights of our employees to rest and off-duty days in compliance with national statutory requirements,
and we prohibit forced labor. Apart from statutory annual leave and national festival holidays, we also allow
supplemental paid annual leave. Reminders are sent through the electronic human resources system to our employees
that they should take their leaves accordingly. For International Women’s Day, International Children’s day and Mid-
Autumn Festival, the Labor Union will arrange to send gifts to the employees. In 2014, employees used 77.1% of their
authorized days off. The rate of employees enjoying days off for national holidays was, as expected, 100%.
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Related 2014 Performance Statistics on Employees’ Rights and Benefits

Related indexes Performance
Social security coverage 100%
Complaint cases nil
Employees discrimination cases nil
Coverage of employees under collective consultative agreement protection 100%
Ratio of employees participating in collective consultation 95%

Care and Support for Our Employees

We uphold the aim to “help the distressed, support the impoverished, and devote our love” by establishing a “Home
for the Employees”, and by providing a “caring and mutual assistance platform” to give employees a way to express
their caring by providing material support to fellow employees and their families in need, ensuring that all employees
feel the warmth extended to them.

2014 Acts of Warmth Statistics

Amount Beneficiaries
Related indexes (RMB’000) (Persons)
Fund supporting impoverished and needy employees 200 80
Employee cash donations 51 2
Funeral consolation 121 195
Employee special occasions 1,100 3,800
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Learning and Growth
Training and Learning

We consider well-trained employees a significant contributor to corporate growth and employee satisfaction, and
for that reason constantly work to improve our training programs. The Company has formulated training programs
under the title “Training and Education Procedures”. In 2014, Company training centered on new recruits, job
positions, professional and management skills. A total of 2,083 internal and external training sessions were held,
and implementation results and effectiveness were evaluated by questionnaires, behavioral follow-ups and summary
analysis.

2014 Employee Training Statistics

Category Related indexes Performance
Level General employees per capita training hours 65.0 hours
Management employees per capita training hours 8.0 hours

General employees training coverage 100%

Management employees training coverage 100%

Gender Female employees per capita training hours 65.1 hours
Male employees per capita training hours 65.0 hours

Female employees training coverage rate 100%

Male employees training coverage rate 100%

Overall employees per capita training hours 64.7 hours
Overall employees training coverage rate 100%
Employee training person-events 75,689
person-events

Investment in employee training RMB1.1 million

Vocational Development

We provide every employee with fair vocational development opportunities through a sound system of promotion, job
transfer and job rotation. The Company has a global job grading system that establishes three job title categories,
namely management, technical, and functional, depending on the relevant job description. Based on this, there is a
“dual ladder” system as well, one ladder for careers primarily built on the management of people and a second one for
individual or small team expert contributors. This enables employees to formulate a personalized career development
path according to their strengths, potential and aspirations, which can then be aligned with the needs of the Company
and its business development plan. In 2014 all of our employees took part in regular performance and career
development reviews and appraisals.
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Health and Safety
Health, Food, Lodging, Transportation, and Quality of Life

We advocate a people-orientation philosophy, and provide for the multifaceted needs of our employees in the areas of
health, food, lodging, and transportation. In health maintenance, we provide a free physical examination once a year
for each employee. As individuals advance in age, the physical examination covers more areas. The Company runs an
infirmary to provide employees with timely and free medication and medical advice. AEDs are available in the factory
in appropriate areas. Over 130 employees have been trained to be on-site operators to facilitate life-saving in critical
moments. Furthermore, we care about the psychological well-being of our people, and provide a series of “starting
with the heart” seminars. A total of 425 staff members have participated in these psychological well-being seminars so
far.

In the area of food safety, we implement standardized food safety management in the canteen including a filtering
system for kitchen water. We have a supplier management system, which allows the company to directly conduct
centralized sourcing of food ingredients from places of production. We organize competition among the chefs for
the best well-cooked dishes and foster cuisine appraisal activities, so that the food we eat is healthy, hygienic and
delicious. Furthermore, a coffee bar is located in each factory zone to provide specialty coffee, fruit juice and healthy
snacks. All of these are extensively appreciated by our employees.

Regarding convenient lodging, the Company rents apartments in nearby areas, such as from the Chuanxin Yuan and
the Kaidun apartment buildings. These dormitories provide quality lodging for out-of-the-region employees and those
on shift duty. Libraries, computer rooms, WLAN with low fee, pool rooms, laundry rooms, TV rooms and a 24-hour
hot water supply, as well as other facilities are available. These provide more convenient readily available services to
enrich employees’ life after work hours.

Regarding transportation convenience, the Company has over 10 shuttle lines to carry employees to and from work,
covering nearly all of Shanghai. At the same time, special commuting vehicles run between the Jingiao No. 1 Factory
and the Zhangjiang No. 2 and No. 3 factories for more comfortable and speedier transportation between sites.

We strive to create a healthy, warm, happy working and living atmosphere, and advocate a balance between work and
play to enhance the quality of life. We encourage everyone to actively participate in sports activities and exercises. The
Company Labor Union, taking the lead, has established 24 interest- group associations for such sports and interests
as football (soccer), basketball, tennis, photography and fishing, as well as floral arrangements, mahjong, cards and
chess. Total membership in these interest groups has reached over 2,400, which is 63% of the total staff. The Labor
Union aims at having competition activities every month, and in addition supports the participation of association
members in the Shanghai Marathon competition, the Shanghai Residents Sports Meet and other medium to large
sports events. In 2014 the Company supported internal and external associations in organizing over 20 events, in
which 2,500 Company employees participated.
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Employee Occupational Health and Safety Management

In 2014 we established the new pyramidal framework called the “Safe Environmental Management Documentation
System”, based on international standards systems (the OHSAS18000 Occupational Health Safety Management
system and the 1SO14001 Environmental Management System). This safety accountability system is implemented in
accordance with the principles of “one position with two responsibilities, and the Party head and the Company head
sharing the same responsibility”. Each level of staff signs its respective level's “Safety Accountability Pledges”. We
also conduct safety educational training to ensure a safe and harmonious work place, and to ensure sustainable, safe
development of the Company.

For the employees with special job functions, such as transportation of chemicals and ion implantation/diffusion,
the Company rigorously adheres to its “Staff Occupational Health Management Procedure”, and provides a yearly
occupational health physical examination. In 2014, the number of people receiving such examination before starting
work at a special function was 44, during their tenure of working at such functions 267 took the examination, and on
leaving 28 were examined, for a total of 311 examinations performed.

To preempt disaster and identify causes of risks, the Company continuously implements full-process risk management
by identifying sources of danger and environmental risk factors, particularly for jobs with inherently higher risks. We
work hard to control all risks, and concentrate on facilities, equipment (with special focus on potentially dangerous
equipment), chemicals, protective gear, tools, and of course construction works. We regularly investigate any actual
or potential safety hazards and apply rectification procedures to ensure achievement of the target of zero incidents in
safe production.

We established a “1+12+1782” Company Contingency Plan System. This comprises one overall, comprehensive plan,
12 special item plans, and 1,782 on-site disposal plans. Through implementation of inter-factory and multi-zone joint
emergency training, the Zhangjiang Factory Zone has achieved outstanding performance such as accomplishing
rescue coordination within 4 minutes, and reaching fully functional “Hua Hong Emergency Response Speed”. This
has resulted in the sharing of contingency resources and rescue responsibilities. At the same time, the Company
organizes various “Safety and Health Cup” activities to fortify staff's awareness of safe production, and to conduct ERT
emergency drills, so as to improve general knowledge in rescue operations and handling speeds.
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2014 Occupational Health and Safe Production Related Statistics

Related indexes Performance
Staff physical examination coverage 100%
Occupational health physical examination coverage 100%
Rate of occurrence of staff occupational disease 0%
Investment in safety technology reform RMB20.5 million
Investment in safety operation RMB26.2 million
Items of safety technology reform 105 items

Safety hazard investigation items, and rectification rate
of 5S management

Emergency drill activities

Participation in drill activities (person-events)

Safety training (person-events)

No. of safety training events

Days loss due to labor injury

Occurrence of major accidents

Fatality due to safety related accidents

4,813 items/98.5%
429 events

10,434 person-events
6,550 person-events
45 events

83 days

nil

nil

In 2014 the Company passed re-examination and was awarded the BSI-OHSAS18001/

ISO14001 certificate.

Annual Report 2014 67



Corporate Social Responsibility

Environmental Responsibilities

Green Production

The world is facing considerable environmental challenges that affect the long term healthy development of the
eco-system on which our survival depends. The Company responds positively to national energy conservation and
environmental protection policies, and strictly complies with environmental laws and regulations as well as industry
standards. We have established an environmental management system and we implement strict measures to reduce
emissions and the consumption of energy and natural resources as far as possible. We also procure environmentally
friendly products and certified materials to the extent available. As at the end of 2014, there were no environmental
pollution incidents, and we had received no complaints or penalty in this connection.

Regarding waste discharge management, the Company adheres to the requirements of the ISO 14001 management
system in formulating a complete set of effective environmental management procedures that define the management
and control of chemical raw materials going into the factory, the discharge of waste gas and waste water, treatment
of waste materials and noise management within the factory zone. Our carbon footprint and its causes are evaluated
frequently to enable us to reduce the Company’s greenhouse gas emissions. With respect to resources utilization,
the Company has established a resource management system, in which the “Energy and Resource Management
Procedure” describes in detail the energy management functions of the topmost management staff, as well as the
responsibilities of the Energy Management Task Force and its individual members. At the same time the Company
has established a motivation scheme for development of new energy saving and emission reduction projects. In 2014
the Company launched a total of 699 energy saving projects, and issued incentive payments of RMB1.0 million. The
motivation scheme has resulted in RMB112.8 million of benefits in production.

All of the Company’s manufacturing facilities are in compliance with the QC080000 IECQ HSPM standard, which
defines the management system standards of hazardous materials technology. This ensures that wafer products or
outsourced packaged chips comply with international regulations. Apart from that, the Company formulates its own
hazardous materials management standards, hazardous materials risk assessment management procedures and
control methods to further ensure products comply with (i) EU RoHS directives, (ii) with the SVHC (Substance of Very
High Concern) as announced in EU REACH, (iii) with SONY SS-00259, and (iv) with customer requirements regarding
control of hazardous materials.

2014 Work and Results in Pollution Prevention and Rectification

Monitoring and testing work

° Regarding waste discharge monitoring and testing, the Company completed the “2013 Waste Discharge
Annual Report”, and conducted monthly inspections of automatic monitoring facilities at the sources of
pollution. We compile environmental quarterly reports, including information from online monitoring of operation
facilities.

° Regarding waste disposal, the Company formulated a “2014 Waste Disposal Management Plan”. It completed
a standardized monitoring and management system for units that generate dangerous industrial waste. The
environmental monitoring response task force does on-site monitoring of zinc and zinc hydride, as well as
disposal of zinc-containing materials.

° The Company has completed preliminary appraisal of the behaviors of enterprises in the Yangzi River Delta
region.

Results

° Pudong Environmental Monitoring Station data show that the Company waste water discharge meets annual
investigation and testing data requirements of state-owned enterprises.

° Water Works Regiment of Pudong Administration and Law Enforcement Division’s water discharge monitoring
and testing data indicate the Company meets requirements.

° The Company completed the 2014 on-line operation to record dangerous wastes.

o The Company regularly contracts out monitoring and testing, data of which have been found to meet
standards.
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2014 Energy Saving — Work and Achievements

Monitoring and testing

For energy management, the Company compiled and issued the 2013 “State of Energy Utilization Report”, and
the performance appraisal materials regarding the 2013 Principality Economic and Trade Commission’s energy
saving target accountability. It achieved a positive progress appraisal of the 2014 energy utilization audit and
target, and the formulation and implementation follow-up of the energy utilization target was completed as
required by the 2014 Principality Economic and Trade Commission.

For water utilization management, the Company, under the premise of water sufficiency for production,
conducts audit inspection of the water meter accounts, performs water utilization statistical analysis and
publishes monthly reports to encourage economical use of water resources through water saving schemes
and the recycling of grey water.

Major projects and achievements

Utilization of large diameter air ducts and enhancement of blower flow rate in waste water systems save
426,575 cubic meters of natural gas annually.

We recycle and economize tap water in manufacturing that requires pure water. As of March of 2014, we had
recycled 37,034 cubic meters of concentrated water, resulting in a saving of RMB1.9 million in tap water bills.
Revamping with LED lights, with a target of saving 236 thousand kWh of electricity annually.

CDA heat recycling and revamping resulted in the saving of 4.19 million kWh of electricity. Chilled water
electricity saving was 1.533 million kWh, and saving of steam was 3,976 tons.

Enhancement of electric machinery efficiency allowed the reduction of operation of one centrifugal fan, saving
3,960 kWh of electricity per month.

2014 Environmental Protection Performance

Related indexes Performance
Energy saving and emission reduction, and environmental investments RMB39.2 million
Penalties for contravention of environmental laws and regulations (times) nil
Heavy penalties for contravention of environmental laws and regulations (RMB) nil
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Green Products
Green Products

The Company has always attached great importance to the research and development of green products with an aim
to produce products that are more energy efficient and more environmentally friendly. Our super-junction device is a
key product amongst the green products being developed. As an innovative environmentally friendly power device, it
is extensively used in next generation LED lighting, switches in household electric appliances, computer servers and
battery chargers of mobile digital products. The area of low on-resistance used in the super-junction device is one third
the area of traditional power device, and effectively lowers the heat generation of final products. At the same time, the
switching speed is cut down by over 10% as compared to products of the previous generation, thus further lowering
dynamic losses and saving energy consumption. The Company will continue to invest in research and development so
as to design products that are more energy efficient and more environmentally friendly.

The Green Value Chain

In the supply chain management, the Company proactively joined ECO Vaids of France, so as to monitor the
environmental protection procedures of suppliers. The Company’s internal procurement assessment indexes clearly
require a comprehensive assessment of a suppliers’ performance regarding environmental protection, safety, and
health. All suppliers must pass open and fair audits according to the “Supplier Management Procedure”, and must
accept relevant training, supervision and inspection by the Company in a timely manner. At the same time the
Company’s Procurement Department also proactively sources energy saving and reduced-emission equipment, with
the objective of gradually increasing local sourcing of raw materials and equipment to reduce the carbon footprint
caused by international transportation. As at the end of 2014, the Company had a total of 1,966 domestic suppliers
and 695 overseas suppliers. The Company also encourages suppliers to become members of the EICC and to be
ISO14001 certified so as to further promote the green value chain.

The Company understands that metal mining in some regions, where metals are often extracted illegally under poor
working conditions, causes aggravated social and environmental problems, and therefore stipulates non-procurement
of conflict minerals, and actively promotes the elimination such conflict minerals from the supply chain.

Green Culture
The Company understands that besides strictly adhering to environmental protection standards in front-line production,
total environmental protection management in daily operations and administration is equally important.

The Company constantly promotes the concept and implementation of environmental protection measures inside
and outside of the Company. Internally, the Company utilizes technology effectively to push forward a sustainable
development agenda, such as using network printing and centralized office automation to control paper consumption.
The Company encourages the use of both sides of paper, the use of recycled paper and supports recycling of our
own. In 2014 the Company’s total paper consumption was 10,315 kilograms, and recycled paper consumption was
138 kilograms. At the same time, the Company strongly supports the use of electric vehicles in the fleet to reduce
carbon footprint. In 2014 the number of electric vehicles in the Company fleet has increased to nine, for use in daily
operation and for staff use. Annual carbon footprint per vehicle was reduced by 23 tons. In 2014 the Company had the
honor to be awarded the title of “Advanced unit in environmental greening and hygiene of Shanghai City”.
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With respect to external promotion, besides systematically promoting green supply chain management, the Company
also proactively participates in external environmental protection activities to exert corporate influence and push
forward actions for environmental protection. In 2014 the Company organized and participated in the “Pudong
World Environment Day and the Third Jingiao Ecological Culture Festival” activities, thus launching an environmental
protection interaction exhibition, promoting exchange and cooperation in this area. Beside this, the Company also
participates in the electronic waste materials recycling activities on the environmental protection web-site to promote
trading of these materials and to encourage and give impetus to these activities.

Promote Development of China IC Industry Chain

In recent years there has been increasing support of domestic manufacturers by the government, and the Company,
which values the opportunities arising from growing domestic demand, has also focused on its contribution to the
Chinese semiconductor industry. For example, we actively promote the participation of small and medium sized local
suppliers. As a result, the localization ratios of many production raw materials, including gas, chemicals and silicon
wafers, have increased year by year. Also, a growing number of domestic manufacturers have started to provide
professional services that we can take advantage of, such as equipment maintenance and provision of spare parts.
Currently our localization ratios have reached 18% for purchases of raw materials and 15% for spare parts. In the
future, the Company will improve our localization ratios to further support the development of the industrial value-chain
in China.

As a leading pure-play foundry in China, the Company actively participates in various exchange activities organized
by the government and industry associations in order to promote industry standards and development. For example,
we established an academicians and experts “workstation”, which was approved by the government in March 2014.
Such a workstation is a new form of cooperative research that makes cooperation among experts and enterprises
clear, long-term and institutionalized. It is jointly promoted by the government, the Association for Science and other
social organizations, as well as by the experts and enterprises themselves. In October 2014, we organized our first
technology exchange forum as a part of our workstation. We explored the needs for innovative technologies in China,
with more than 200 participants from academicians, technical experts and entrepreneurs in the industry.
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Social Welfare Causes

With the progress in society, the general public expects enterprises to operate in a responsible manner, cooperate
with all social sectors and care for and contribute to the community. The Company, as a leader in the industry and
a good corporate citizen, not only produces quality wafer products assiduously, but is also committed to serving the
community. One of the ways to put corporate citizen responsibility into practice is to participate in social welfare by
delivering expertise, time and resources to help improve the livelihood of needy groups in the community and beyond.
The Company actively participates in various programs and activities with the goal of bringing positive changes to
society and promoting and establishing long-term economic development of the community, with an objective to share
with the unprivileged and prosper along with the society.

Helping Impoverished Areas

The Company and its employees have always had great concern for the conditions in the impoverished areas in China
and has provided aids promptly when needed. In 2014, some of our employees actively participated in the charity
sales “Helping Hands for Love” held at Shanghai, Kunshan and Qiandeng, to help build “Hope Primary Schools” in
impoverished areas and raise an emergency relief fund of RMB39,000 for the local primary students. The teachers
and students of five schools in Xiji of Ningxia province and Nayong of Guizhou province received 2,800 scarfs. The
Company also collected over 100 pieces of warm clothing and delivered them to needy groups in Gongshan County,
Nujiang in Yunnan through a Christian charity organization.

Since 2001, the Company has participated in the donation program organized by Huahong Group for building the
Huahong Hope Primary School at Dahuang Township, Wannian County of Jiangxi Province. A scholarship fund was
established for students. In addition, the program also helped the school establish a canteen, and donated books,
computers and various kinds of teaching facilities. Every year, the program organizes a delegation team to visit
Huahong Hope Primary School and organize charity events. After 14 years, the first batch of students from the school
have already graduated from universities. Some of them were recruited by the Company to work in the Company’s
trade union.

Community Volunteer Activities

The Company believes that the establishment of strong relationships among people will help bring long-term positive
change in society, and as such, the Company encourages employees to devote their time to community services. The
Volunteer Association with a list of volunteers making up a strong team was set up by the Company. Employees are
encouraged to regularly participate in volunteer activities during their leisure time, with an objective to remove barriers
that are hampering social integration, build a harmonized society and bring about the realization of the Company’s
aspiration in “treating human lives as the foremost by saving lives and helping the needy”. During 2014, about 120
Company employees participated in community volunteer activities, with total number of volunteer hours exceeding
240. They provided a full range of community support services and assistance to the elderly and children, and helped
promote activities in caring for the society.
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The volunteer activities are summarized as follows:
e Yearly and quarterly visits and donation activities to Meixin Elderly Home in Pudong New area were held. Since
2014, the Volunteer Association has built a long term relationship with an elderly home, and regularly pays visits

and makes donations.

e A vyearly visit to Zhangjiang Elderly Home was made on the eve of Mid-Autumn Festival. Caring and companionship
was provided for the elderly and presents were distributed.

e The yearly employees blood donation campaign was held to help those who have medical needs.

e Once a week, a promotion event regarding traffic regulations and pedestrian safety was held at subway stations
close to the office during rush hours when people get off work.

e On 17 Feb 2014, more than 300 employees participated the activity “Love Unlimited at Noon”, which was a charity
sales event to raise funds for an employee suffering from a critical brain illness known as brain fog.

e A visit was made to Huixin Home for Children with Disabilities (a welfare institution for children between 0-16 years
of age) to understand the conditions of the children with disabilities.

Preparation of Report
Report Overview

This 2014 CSR Report of the Company explains its principles in fulfiling CSR and the work carried out in 2014. It
addresses the major CSR issues of great concern to our stakeholders.

Reference Basis

This CSR report uses the “Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide” issued by The Stock Exchange
and “Sustainability Reporting Guidelines (G3.1)” of the Global Reporting Initiative (GRI) as its reference basis.

Scope of Report

Organizational scope: This report covers the Company and the Group.
Reporting period: From 1 January 2014 to 31 December 2014
Release cycle: This is an annual report

Data Specification

Data and cases in the report come from the Company’s original records in day-to-day operation or financial reports.
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Independent Auditors’ Report

- WRR - EIE S

s
EY =i

To the shareholders of Hua Hong Semiconductor Limited
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Hua
Hong Semiconductor Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together, the “Group”) set out on pages 146 to 234, which
comprise the consolidated and company statements of financial
position as at 31 December 2014, and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated
financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. Our report is made solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with section 80 of Schedule 11
to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.622), and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.
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Independent Auditors’ Report

Auditors’ responsibility (continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors
consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as
at 31 December 2014, and the Group’s profit and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants

22/F, CITIC Tower

1 Tim Mei Avenue
Central, Hong Kong

24 March 2015
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

mERER

Year ended 31 December 2014
HE-Z-—NF+-A=1t—HLFE

2014 2013
—E—F —E—=4
Notes US$’000 US$'000
it FEx FE
Revenue SHEWA & 664,586 584,719
Cost of sales SHEA (466,815) (459,270)
Gross profit ER 197,771 125,449
Other income and gains E U A M zs 5 23,886 30,605
Fair value gain on an investment property &Y% M A T E 1,127 2,095
Selling and distribution expenses HELDHER (7,206) (8,052)
Administrative expenses EIEER (85,053) (69,043)
Other expenses Hh & (2,433) (199)
Finance costs BRsE R 7 (12,136) (16,479)
Share of profits of an associate DG — K& R B Al 4,856 6,437
PROFIT BEFORE TAX Bi AT 6 120,812 70,813
Income tax expense FriSHi X 10 (27,722) (8,964)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FRER 93,090 61,849
Attributable to owners of the parent A RIEER AEN 11 93,090 61,849
EARNINGS PER SHARE BARZTEREREA
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY EEEREF :
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT: 12
Basic FHoR
— For profit for the year — FREF US$0.11 US$0.08
0.11% T 0.08%7T
Diluted e
— For profit for the year — F R A US$0.11 US$0.08
0.11% T 0.08%7T

FRREN RRHER S AR BB A 15 R
130

Details of the dividends payable and proposed for the year are
disclosed in note 13 to the financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
e SRR HIRER

2014 2013
—E-IOF —T-=F
US$’000 US$'000
FEIT F=
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FREF 93,090 61,849
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME Hib 2w
Other comprehensive (losses) / income REZBREFDEEERAN
to be reclassified to profit or loss Hthzm (E18), s
in subsequent periods:
Exchange differences on translation BREBINEBEERNINEZRE
of foreign operations (3,998) 30,613
Net other comprehensive (losses) / income RERHEEHHHEE
to be reclassified to profit or loss BRmEMLEmE (518),/
in subsequent periods Wz F5E (3,998) 30,613
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE (LOSSES) / INCOME F£REM2HE (&E), W -
FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX HBRBIE (3,998) 30,613
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FREEWRAE
FORTHE YEAR 89,092 92,462
Attributable to owners of the parent S REIHEE ARG 89,092 92,462
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e B IR 2R

31 December 2014
—ZF-mE+=A=+—8

31 December

31 December

2014 2013
—E—MmEF —T-=F
+=ZA=+—H +=-—A=+—8H
Notes US$’000 US$'000
iz FEIT FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - WE N ERE 14 568,626 579,304
Investment property REE 15 191,533 191,098
Prepaid land lease payments TE{S AR E5IE 16 24,194 25,004
Intangible assets B AE 17 14,708 22,838
Investment in an associate REEE N RIHIRE 19 42,030 45115
Available-for-sale investments AHHEERE 20 230,512 172,219
Long term prepayments REATA SRR 8,237 1,056
Deferred tax assets EEHIEEE 29 9,191 7,197
Total non-current assets ERENEEARRR 1,089,031 1,043,831
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Inventories =g 21 93,988 99,229
Trade and notes receivables B S REWEIE K BN 22 107,509 105,525
Prepayments, deposits and FENRIE - E2 Rk
other receivables H bl FIE 23 7,007 7,193
Due from related parties FE Uk BB 75 5RIE 34(e) 43,178 72,722
Pledged deposits EHEARFR 24 2,583 2,072
Cash and cash equivalents BekIReEEY 24 646,773 317,045
Total current assets MEVEELRT 901,038 603,786
CURRENT LIABILITIES RBAE
Trade payables B e RIA 25 63,532 60,227
Other payables, advances from E M ERIE - TAUERK
customers and accruals KEHEA 26 72,310 65,649
Interest-bearing bank borrowings T EERITER 27 81,690 101,513
Government grants BT ED 28 63,885 63,462
Due to related parties FE < BE S 5 I 34(e) 25,006 22,009
Income tax payable [ FTISHR 23,148 10,999
Total current liabilities mEBERRE 329,571 323,859
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFE 571,467 279,927
TOTAL ASSETS LESS EERERABAR
CURRENT LIABILITIES 1,660,498 1,323,758
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
e B ROR R

31 December 2014
—E-MF+=-A=+—H

31 December 31 December

2014 2013
—E-0OF —E—=F
+=ZBA=+—H +=-—A=+—8H
Notes (US$°000) (US$'000)
iz FEIT FET
TOTAL ASSETS LESS EERERRBERE
CURRENT LIABILITIES 1,660,498 1,323,758
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FEREBEE
Interest-bearing bank borrowings sTEBRITIER 27 183,031 265,012
Deferred tax liabilities BLEHIEAR 29 11,988 2,527
Total non-current liabilities EmEI B ERTE 195,019 267,539
Net assets BEE 1,465,479 1,056,219
EQUITY e
Equity attributable to owners BAREE AEGLERE
of the parent
Share capital: nominal value REZN - E{E 30 - 8,052
Other statutory capital reserves Hi A FE B ANHE 30 1,550,164 1,221,944
Share capital and other statutory BN B B At A TE B A e
capital reserves 1,550,164 1,229,996
Other reserves HAih 31 (84,685) (173,777)
Total equity EREE 1,465,479 1,056,219

Wx_

B k) v

Wenbiao Fu Jun Ye
=34 ik
Director Director
B EZE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
GREEREER

Year ended 31 December 2014

E_FTNOFEF_A=t+—HLFE

Attributable to owners of the parent

BRRBEARE
Other
reserve and Asset  Statutory Exchange
Share Share Merger contributed revaluation ~ reserve  Accumulated fluctuation Total
capital premium  reserve  surplus  reserve funds losses  reserve  equity
RtRER BE EE HE
ke RGEE AHRE UXER  ERRE  REES ZiTER  RORE RRER
US$'000 US$000  US$000  US$000  USS'000  USS000 US$'000  US$'000  US$000
X Fin i Tin i T T Ti&n  Tin
(note 30)  (note 30) (note 31) (note 31)
(F&30)  (Wiat30) (HizE3t) (fE31)
At 1 January 2013 RNZZ-=%-f-H 8,052 1,221,944 645,494 45,097 99,257 - (1,235,960) 179873 963,757
Profit for the year EREH - - - = S - 61,849 - 61849
Other comprehensive income  FREMEENE :
for the year:
Fxchange differences on HERNEREEN
tranglation of SNEES
foreign operations - - - - - - - 30,613 30613
Total comprenengive income R ERALE
for the year - - - - - - 61,849 30,613 92,462
Transfer from retained profts ~ ERE-HTLAEE
generated by a subsidiary eyl - - - - - 2416 (2.416) = =
At31December 2013and ~ R-E-=%
1 January 2014 TZA=T-Bk
“3-I5-A-H 8052 1221944 645494 45,097 99,257* 2,416 (1176527 210486* 1,056,219
Profit for the year EmgF = = = = = = 93,090 - 93,090
Other comprehensive income  FREMEENE :
for the year:
Exchange differences on BN FREEN
franslation of NEZEE
foreign operations - - - - - - - (3,998  (3,998)
Total comprenensive income A2 ENALEE
for the year - - - - - - 93,090 (3,998) 89,002
Issue of shares (note 30) R (F3E30) 331,730 - - - - - - - 331,730
Share issue expenses EGE-Gi
(note 30) (F:t30) (1,562) = = = = = = - (11562)
Transition to no-par value BEZEEERGHE
regime (note 30) (H3£30) 1,221,944 (1,221,944) - - - - - - -
Transfer from retained profts ~ EHE-HFLRELE
generated by a subsidiary HEEER - - - - - 10,363 (10,363) - -
At 31 December 2014 RZE-mF
tZA=1-H 1,550,164 - 64594 45007 99257 12779 (1,003,800) 206488 1,465,479
#  The asset revaluation reserve arose from a change in use from an t BEERBEERRE=FT—=F—HA—HZ

FIZ - FIESRZ —H B Y3 4 Z X

owner-occupied property to an investment property carried at fair value
before 1 January 2013.

Y BEHBERAGAUBMEERFES B
B it (% 584,685,000 7T (= FE — = 4 -
173,777,000% ) °

These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated negative other
reserves of US$84,685,000 (2013: US$173,777,000) in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

1 50 HUA HONG SEMICONDUCTOR LIMITED Z4T-F&885R A F]



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
lﬁKTE?iﬁiﬁziﬁiEEE%%

Year ended 31 December 2014
HE_Z—NF+_A=+—HIFE

2014 2013
—E-—MF —E-=F
Notes (US$°000) (US$'000)
Htat (F=7x) (F=7T)
CASH FLOWS FROM RETHMBRERE
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax T A A 120,812 70,813
Adjustments for: AT RIEEL AT
Finance costs %8R 7 12,136 16,479
Share of profits of an associate DE—KEEE R AN E R (4,856) (6,437)
Interest income FE WA 5 (4,592) (8,226)
Gain on disposal of items of property, HEME - BEMREEER
plant and equipment and prepaid LA R Fa{ + #1078 & 78
land lease payments FTis et 5 (402) (795)
Depreciation e 14 71,613 87,514
Changes in fair value of an KEYENFEE
investment property 15 (1,127) (2,095)
Write-down of inventories to net WoRF B2 A #IRFE
realisable value 3,823 3,362
Impairment of trade receivables and B S GRIE R E M
other receivables FEU R IB A 23 246 -
Amortisation of intangible assets ER B EHH 17 12,154 18,339
Recognition of prepaid land TEAT A & FRIE R
lease payments 16 721 711
210,528 179,665
Decrease / (increase) in inventories FERL 3Em) 1,418 (5,005)
Increase in trade and note receivables B 5 REYRIE & REULZE 22 N (1,984) (367)
(Increase) / decrease in prepayments, JENFUE e R EAM
deposits and other receivables FENZRIE (380), R (62) 285
Decrease in amounts due from FE L S 75 SRR
related parties 5,054 18,884
Increase in pledged deposits BRI R N (511) (1,385)
Increase in trade payables B 5 FE A FRIAE N 3,305 2,928
Increase in other payables, advances E bRt FIE - FAURBR T K
from customers and accruals = & I 9,334 5,296
Increase in government grants R 435 B 3E AN 652 4,670
Increase / (decrease) in amounts due JE A~ BB 5 mRIE S A R )
to related parties 2,106 (12,435)
Cash generated from operations RETHEENERES 229,840 192,536
Income tax paid EAFTEH (8,100) (8,302)
Net cash flows from operating activities R EZEERERETEHE 221,740 184,234
Continued/...
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
MERETMER 0.

2014 2013
—E—MmF —ET—=F
Notes (US$’000) (US$'000)
Hiat (F=x) (F=T)
CASH FLOWS FROM REFEBFERERE
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest received BUF & 4,592 8,226
Dividend received from an associate U B — B & A R I RR B 8,186 =
Purchases of items of property, EBEME - BE &K 1%1,5 B
plant and equipment (76,054) (32,201)
Purchases of items of intangible assets & B/ &AEIER (4,105) (2,615)
Proceeds from disposal of items of HEWME - BERKEEE
property, plant and equipment and LA K 8~ i AR E 7B
prepaid land lease payments FSWes 72 44
Advances of loans to an associate MEE AR BB E R = (24,500)
Recovery of loans from an associate BN EN= N 24,490 31,504
Purchases of available-for-sale BEAHIEERE
investments (57,199) =
Receipt of government grants IR BB AT Bh R 3,088 2,788
Net cash flows used in RETEFTAREREFE
investing activities (96,930) (16,754)
CASH FLOWS FROM METDRERSRE
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issue of shares BTG FTiSdEs 331,730 -
Share issue expenses D EETTE A (11,562) =
Interest paid BEAFIE (12,136) (16,479)
New bank loans FIBIRITER = 45,038
Repayment of bank loans EBIRITER (101,301) (100,618)
Net cash flows generated from / mMETEAE (FTA)
(used in) financing activities HEREFHE 206,731 (72,059)
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND RERAEEEYEMEHE
CASH EQUIVALENTS 331,541 95,421
Cash and cash equivalents at FURESREEEY
beginning of year 317,045 218,170
Effect of foreign exchange rate SNEERFETE - FEE
changes, net (1,813) 3,454
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FREERAESEEY
AT END OF YEAR 24 646,773 317,045
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH RERBSEENERDT
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances R RIRITES 24 439,556 185,831
Non-pledged time deposits with REFRREER DR
original maturity of less than X (EPE:oF 3w
three months when acquired TEHFR 207,217 131,214
Cash and cash equivalents as stated AR TRF YIRS R
in the consolidated statement ReEEY
of financial position 24 646,773 317,045
Cash and cash equivalents as stated REReREXRPAMIIRE &
in the consolidated statement BEEEY
of cash flows 646,773 317,045
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Statement of Financial Position
B AR R 3R

31 December 31 December

2014 2013
—E—-mF =4
+=A +=A
=t+-—H =+—A
Notes (US$°000) (US$'000)
it (F%m) (F=7T)
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FEREEE
Investments in subsidiaries BERTFRAE] 18 1,229,996 1,229,996
Total non-current assets IERENEERTE 1,229,996 1,229,996
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Prepayments, deposits and TERFIE « e R HEAMm
other receivables el 23 1,577 972
Due from a subsidiary FEWF A TIFIA 34(e) 7,140 998
Cash and cash equivalents He kRS EY 24 327,811 6,989
Total current assets MEEELRRE 336,528 8,959
CURRENT LIABILITIES RBEE
Other payables, advances from B ERIE - TAURERK
customers and accruals FE(EER 82 37
Due to subsidiaries ERFRBIFRIE 34(e) 89,535 79,291
Total current liabilities mB B EERE 89,617 79,328
NET CURRENT ASSETS / (LIABILITIES) #R8&E (AE) B 246,911 (70,369)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS EERERRBEE
CURRENT LIABILITIES 1,476,907 1,159,627
Net assets EEZFE 1,476,907 1,159,627
EQUITY E=
Share capital: nominal value A - mE 30 - 8,052
Other statutory capital reserves E A FE E ARG 30 1,550,164 1,221,944
Share capital and other statutory IR 7R Fe BoAth A TE B A A
capital reserves 1,550,164 1,229,996
Other reserves H A 31 (73,257) (70,369)
Total equity EREE 1,476,907 1,159,627

4@\ k%, o F w%

Wenbiao Fu Jun Ye
B’ Hig

Director Director
EFE EFE
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Notes to Financial Statements

B RS ERRMIE e

. Corporate information

Hua Hong Semiconductor Limited (the “Company”) is a limited
liability company incorporated in Hong Kong on 21 January
2005. The registered office of the Company is located at Room
2212, Bank of America Tower, 12 Harcourt Road, Central, Hong
Kong.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
During the year, the Company’s subsidiaries were principally
engaged in the manufacturing and trading of semiconductor
products.

In the opinion of the directors, the parent and the ultimate
parent of the Company are Shanghai Alliance Investment
Ltd. (“SAIL”) and INESA Holding Group (“INESA”), which are
state-owned companies established in the People’'s Republic
of China (“PRC”), supervised by the State-owned Assets
Supervision and Administration Commission (“SASAC”).

2.1Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (*HKFRSs”)
(which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong. These financial statements
also comply with the applicable requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance relating to the preparation of financial
statements, which for this financial year and the comparative
period continue to be those of the predecessor Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 32), in accordance with transitional and
saving arrangements for Part 9 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622), “Accounts and Audit”, which are set
out in sections 76 to 87 of Schedule 11 to that Ordinance. The
financial statements have been prepared under the historical
cost convention, except for an investment property which has
been measured at fair value. The financial statements are
presented in United States dollars (“US$”) and all values are
rounded to the nearest thousands, except when otherwise
indicated.
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2.1Basis of preparation (continued) 2QARBEE (&)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2014. The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared
for the same reporting period as the Company, using consistent
accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which the Group obtains control, and continue
to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group
and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. All intra-
group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash
flows relating to transactions between members of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control described in the
accounting policy for subsidiaries. A change in the ownership
interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted
for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(i) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and
(i) the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity;
and recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received,
(i) the fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any
resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share
of components previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained earnings, as
appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
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2.2 Changes in accounti
disclosures

The Group has adopted the following revised standards
and new interpretation for the first time for the current year’s

financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 27 (2011)

Amendments to HKAS 32
Amendments to HKAS 36
Amendments to HKAS 39
HK(IFRIC)-Int 21

Amendment to HKFRS 2
included in Annual
Improvements 2010-2012
Cycle

Amendment to HKFRS 3
included in Annual
Improvements 2010-2012
Cycle

Amendment to HKFRS 13
included in Annual
Improvements 2010-2012
Cycle

Amendment to HKFRS 1
included in Annual
Improvements 2011-2013
Cycle

31 December 2014
E —ZT—mE+=-A=+—H

ng policies and

Investment Entities

Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities

Recoverable Amount Disclosures for
Non-Financial Assets

Novation of Derivatives and
Continuation of Hedge Accounting

Levies

Definition of Vesting Condition’

Accounting for Contingent
Consideration in a Business
Combination’

Short-term Receivables and Payables

Meaning of Effective HKFRSs

' Effective from 1 July 2014
The adoption of the above revised standards and new

interpretation has had no significant effect on these financial
statements.
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BBBEZEAAUR TR (R
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31 December 2014
—T-—mFE+=-A=+—H

2.3New and revised HKFRSs and new disclosure
requirements under the Hong Kong companies
ordinance not yet adopted

The Group has not applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in

these financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 1

Presentation of Financial Statements -

AEEYERNZEVBHRRERATE
AR AR B R R A RO T AT AR FT BB B

TR -

BRGHENR R (BFIAN) HBHZA5H

Disclosure Initiative? — HEEF
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments* BB BREERFEH SFTA

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28 (2011)

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or Joint

BRMBHRSERE 105K
BB G EAF28H

REFHRBER
AZAERAZ

Venture? (B3IAR) (ZF—%) BB EL
=7
Amendments to HKFRS 10, Investment Entities - Applying the ERUEREENEI0 . KEEE - 2HF
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28 Consolidation Exception? BRI RERAE12  AAKHINE
(2011) REBEBGEERIE285, Pind
(B3TA) (ZF——%)
Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests BRAMBREENENG  MEFLELFER
in Joint Operations? EHES iy
HKFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts® BEMBREEANE 14 EEECKFS
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers® ERUEREENEISR  FFAAMES
Amendments to HKAS 16 Clarification of Acceptable Methods of BHSITTERSE165 R BT ERE
and HKAS 38 Depreciation and Amortisation? BB EERIE385 VBN

Amendments to HKAS 16

Agriculture: Bearer Plants?

(BFIA)
BEGEAF 6% R

RE : LEIEYP

and HKAS 41 BRI ERNENR
CCHE)
Amendments to HKAS 19 Defined Benefit Plans: Employee BEQEERIE 195 REWHEHTE - E
Contributions’ EHES B
Amendments to HKAS 27 Equity Method in Separate Financial BEQIERE27H BUHBHFNE
(2011) Statements? (BETA) (ZEB——%) v
Annual Improvements Amendments to a number of HKFRSs' ZE-F£EF-F——F  ZEEENBRS
2010-2012 Cycle BHHFRE EReERT
Annual Improvements Amendments to a number of HKFRSs' ZE——FRF-=F SEERYMBRSE
2011-2013 Cycle BHHFRE EReERT
Annual Improvements Amendments to a number of HKFRSs? ZE—FR-FTNF SEERYMBRSE
2012-2014 Cycle BHHFRE ERtEET?
" Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014 T RZFE—mELA A EFIERF
BRI R
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016 2 ROEF—NF—H—HRZEFIEATF
JEHRRET AR
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017 S ROF—+F-—A—HARZEFEHF
BRI ERL
4 FEffective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018 ¢ RIF-NF-HA—HRXZEFIERF
BRI R

5 Effective for an entity that first adopts HKFRSs for its annual
financial statements beginning on or after 1 January 2016 and
therefore is not applicable to the Group

¢ HEAR-F—NF—A—HAKZERH
14 5 G SZ TR A BB R R A
BIa) B FEAER - AW ARE R A EE
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2.3 New and revised HKFRSs and new disclosure

requirements under the Hong Kong companies
ordinance not yet adopted (continued)

In addition, the requirements of Part 9 “Accounts and Audit”
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) will
come into operation as from the Company’s first financial
year commencing after 3 March 2014 in accordance with
section 358 of that Ordinance, which will be the year ending
31 December 2015. The Group is in the process of making
an assessment of the expected impact of the changes in the
period of initial application of Part 9 of the Ordinance. So far
it has concluded that the impact is unlikely to be significant
and will primarily affect the presentation and disclosure of
information in the consolidated financial statements.

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to
be applicable to the Group is as follows:

HKFRS 15 establishes a new five-step model that will apply
to revenue arising from contracts with customers. Under
HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised at an amount that reflects
the consideration to which an entity expects to be entitled in
exchange for transferring goods or services to a customer. The
principles in HKFRS 15 provide a more structured approach
for measuring and recognising revenue. The standard also
introduces extensive qualitative and quantitative disclosure
requirements, including disaggregation of total revenue,
information about performance obligations, changes in contract
asset and liability account balances between periods and key
judgements and estimates. The standard will supersede all
current revenue recognition requirements under HKFRSs. The
Group expects to adopt HKFRS 15 on 1 January 2017 and is
currently assessing the impact of HKFRS 15 upon adoption.
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24 Summary of significant accounting policies

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity), directly
or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is achieved
when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power over the investee (i.e.,
existing rights that give the Group the current ability to direct
the relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group
considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing
whether it has power over an investee, including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of
the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company’s
statement of profit or loss to the extent of dividends received
and receivable. The Company’s investments in subsidiaries that
are not classified as held for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5
Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations
are stated at cost less any impairment losses.
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24 Summary of significant accounting policies

(continued)

Investment in an associate

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long term
interest of generally not less than 20% of the equity voting
rights and over which it is in a position to exercise significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the investee, but is
not control or joint control over those policies.

The Group’s investments in associates are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at the Group’s
share of net assets under the equity method of accounting, less
any impairment losses.

Adjustments are made to bring into line any dissimilar
accounting policies that may exist.

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and other
comprehensive income of associates is included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and consolidated other
comprehensive income, respectively. In addition, when there
has been a change recognised directly in the equity of the
associate, the Group recognises its share of any changes,
when applicable, in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associates are eliminated to the
extent of the Group’s investments in the associates, except
where unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment of
the assets transferred. Goodwill arising from the acquisition of
associates is included as part of the Group’s investments in
associates.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment
in a joint venture or vice versa, the retained interest is not
remeasured. Instead, the investment continues to be accounted
for under the equity method. In all other cases, upon loss of
significant influence over the associate, the Group measures
and recognises any retained investment at its fair value. Any
difference between the carrying amount of the associate upon
loss of significant influence or joint control and the fair value
of the retained investment and proceeds from disposal is
recognised in profit or loss.

The results of associates are included in the Company’s
statement of profit or loss to the extent of dividends received
and receivable. The Company’s investments in associates are
treated as non-current assets and are stated at cost less any
impairment losses.

When an investment in an associate is classified as held for
sale, it is accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 5.
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24 Summary of significant accounting policies

(continued)

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment property at fair value at
the end of each reporting period. Fair value is the price that
would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the
liability takes place either in the principal market for the asset
or liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal
or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the
Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured
using the assumptions that market participants would use when
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants
act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset
in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or
disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole:

Level 1 - based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level2 - based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is observable, either directly
or indirectly

Level 3 - based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable
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24 Summary of significant accounting policies

(continued)

Fair value measurement (continued)

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the
end of each reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, financial assets and investment property), the
asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable
amount is the higher of the asset’'s or cash-generating unit’s
value in use and its fair value less costs of disposal, and is
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those
from other assets or groups of assets, in which case the
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit
to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount
of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged
to the statement of profit or loss in the period in which it arises
in those expense categories consistent with the function of the
impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period
as to whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased.
If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is
estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset
other than goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change
in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of
that asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount
that would have been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is
credited to the statement of profit or loss in the period in which
it arises, unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in
which case the reversal of the impairment loss is accounted
for in accordance with the relevant accounting policy for that
revalued asset.
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24 Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person

(iy has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or of a parent of the Group;

or

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

(iy the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of

the other entity);

(iii) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same
third party;

(iv

—

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group;

(vi

=

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a); and

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).
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24 Summary of significant accounting policies

(continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
any impairment losses. When an item of property, plant and
equipment is classified as held for sale or when it is part of a
disposal group classified as held for sale, it is not depreciated
and is accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 5. The cost
of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its
purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing
the asset to its working condition and location for its intended
use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and
maintenance, is normally charged to the statement of profit or
loss in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where the
recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major
inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as
a replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant and
equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful
lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write
off the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to
its residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal
annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Buildings 3.8%
Plant and machinery 9.5%-19.0%
Office equipment 19.0%
Motor vehicles 19.0%
Leasehold improvements 20.0%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at
each financial year end.
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24 Summary of significant accounting policies

(continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation (continued)
An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on disposal
or retirement recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the
year the assets is derecognised is the difference between the
net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant
asset.

Construction in progress represents a building under
construction, which is stated at cost less any impairment
losses, and is not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs
of construction during the period of construction. Construction
in progress is reclassified to the appropriate category of
property, plant and equipment or investment properties when
completed and ready for use.

Investment property

Investment property is interest in land and buildings (including
the leasehold interest under an operating lease for a property
which would otherwise meet the definition of an investment
property) held to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation, rather than for use in the production or supply of
goods or services or for administrative purposes; or for sale in
the ordinary course of business. Such property is measured
initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment property is stated at fair value, which
reflects market conditions at the end of the reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of
investment property are included in the statement of profit or
loss in the year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an
investment property are recognised in the statement of profit or
loss in the year of the retirement or disposal.
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24 Summary of significant accounting policies

(continued)

Investment property (continued)

For a transfer from an investment property to an owner-
occupied property or inventory, the deemed cost of a property
for subsequent accounting is its fair value at the date of change
in use. If a property occupied by the Group as an owner-
occupied property becomes an investment property, the Group
accounts for such property in accordance with the policy
stated under “Property, plant and equipment and depreciation”
up to the date of change in use, and any difference at that date
between the carrying amount and the fair value of the property
is accounted for as a revaluation in accordance with the policy
stated under “Property, plant and equipment and depreciation”
above. For a transfer from inventories to investment property,
any difference between the fair value of the property at that
date and its previous carrying amount is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired
in a business combination is the fair value as at the date of
acquisition. The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed
to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives
are subsequently amortised over the useful economic life and
assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that
the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period
and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite
useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year end.

Process technology licence and computer software

Process technology licence and computer software are stated
at cost less any impairment losses and are amortised on
the straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives of the
underlying products, commencing from the date when the
products are put into commercial production.

Research and development costs
All research costs are charged to the statement of profit or loss
as incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products is
capitalised and deferred only when the Group can demonstrate
the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so
that it will be available for use or sale, its intention to complete
and its ability to use or sell the asset, how the asset will
generate future economic benefits, the availability of resources
to complete the project and the ability to measure reliably the
expenditure during the development. Product development
expenditure which does not meet these criteria is expensed
when incurred.
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24 Summary of significant accounting policies

(continued)

Leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted for
as operating leases. Where the Group is the lessor, assets
leased by the Group under operating leases are included in
non-current assets, and rentals receivable under the operating
leases are credited to the statement of profit or loss on the
straight-line basis over the lease terms. Where the Group
is the lessee, rentals payable under operating leases net of
any incentives received from the lessor are charged to the
statement of profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the
lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are
initially stated at cost and subsequently recognised on the
straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
receivables, and available-for-sale financial investments, as
appropriate. When financial assets are recognised initially,
they are measured at fair value, plus transaction costs that are
attributable to the acquisition of the financial assets, except in
the case of financial assets recorded at fair value through profit
or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.
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24 Summary of significant accounting policies

(continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include
financial assets held for trading and financial assets designated
upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.
Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they are
acquired for the purpose of sale in the near term.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in
the statement of financial position at fair value with positive net
changes in fair value presented as other income and gains and
negative net changes in fair value presented as other expenses
in the statement of profit or loss. These net fair value changes
do not include any dividends or interest earned on these
financial assets, which are recognised in accordance with the
policies set out for “Revenue recognition” below.

Financial assets designated upon initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or loss are designated at the date of initial
recognition and only if the criteria in HKAS 39 are satisfied.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. After initial measurement, such assets are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate
method less any allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is
calculated by taking into account any discount or premium
on acquisition and includes fees or costs that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate
amortisation is included in other income and gains in the
statement of profit or loss. The loss arising from impairment is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss in other expenses
for loans and receivables.
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24 Summary of significant accounting policies

(continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments

Available-for-sale financial investments are non-derivative
financial assets in listed and unlisted equity investments and
debt securities. Equity investments classified as available for
sale are those which are neither classified as held for trading
nor designated as at fair value through profit or loss. Debt
securities in this category are those which are intended to be
held for an indefinite period of time and which may be sold in
response to needs for liquidity or in response to changes in
market conditions.

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial investments
are subsequently measured at fair value, with unrealised
gains or losses recognised as other comprehensive income
in the available-for-sale investment revaluation reserve until
the investment is derecognised, at which time the cumulative
gain or loss is recognised in the statement of profit or loss
in other income, or until the investment is determined to be
impaired, when the cumulative gain or loss is reclassified from
the available-for-sale investment revaluation reserve to the
statement of profit or loss in other gains or losses. Interest and
dividends earned whilst holding the available-for-sale financial
investments are reported as interest income and dividend
income, respectively and are recognised in the statement of
profit or loss as other income in accordance with the policies
set out for “Revenue recognition” below.

When the fair value of unlisted equity investments cannot be
reliably measured because (a) the variability in the range of
reasonable fair value estimates is significant for that investment
or (b) the probabilities of the various estimates within the range
cannot be reasonably assessed and used in estimating fair
value, such investments are stated at cost less any impairment
losses.

The Group evaluates whether the ability and intention to sell
its available-for-sale financial assets in the near term are
still appropriate. When, in rare circumstances, the Group is
unable to trade these financial assets due to inactive markets,
the Group may elect to reclassify these financial assets if
management has the ability and intention to hold the assets for
the foreseeable future or until maturity.
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24 Summary of significant accounting policies

(continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)

For a financial asset reclassified from the available-for-
sale category, the fair value carrying amount at the date of
reclassification becomes its new amortised cost and any
previous gain or loss on that asset that has been recognised
in equity is amortised to profit or loss over the remaining life of
the investment using the effective interest rate. Any difference
between the new amortised cost and the maturity amount is
also amortised over the remaining life of the asset using the
effective interest rate. If the asset is subsequently determined to
be impaired, then the amount recorded in equity is reclassified
to the statement of profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position) when:

e the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

e the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from the asset, or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third
party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and either
(a) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement,
it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risk
and rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the Group
continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the
Group’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also
recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the
rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over
the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of
consideration that the Group could be required to repay.
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24 Summary of significant accounting policies

(continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a
group of financial assets is impaired. An impairment exists if
one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of
the assets have an impact on the estimated future cash flows
of the financial asset or the group of financial assets that can
be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may include
indications that a debtor or a group of debtors is experiencing
significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest
or principal payments, the probability that they will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and observable
data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the
estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or
economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first
assesses whether impairment exists individually for financial
assets that are individually significant, or collectively for
financial assets that are not individually significant. If the Group
determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists for
an individually assessed financial asset, whether significant
or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial assets with
similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses
them for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for
impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or continues to
be, recognised are not included in a collective assessment of
impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured as
the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future
credit losses that have not been incurred). The present value
of the estimated future cash flows is discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest
rate computed at initial recognition).

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use
of an allowance account and the loss is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss. Interest income continues to be
accrued on the reduced carrying amount and is accrued using
the rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows for
the purpose of measuring the impairment loss. Loans and
receivables together with any associated allowance are written
off when there is no realistic prospect of future recovery and
all collateral has been realised or has been transferred to the
Group.
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24 Summary of significant accounting policies

(continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost (continued)

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is increased or reduced by
adjusting the allowance account. If a write-off is later recovered,
the recovery is credited to other expenses in the statement of
profit or loss.

Assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been
incurred on an unquoted equity instrument that is not carried at
fair value because its fair value cannot be reliably measured,
or on a derivative asset that is linked to and must be settled
by delivery of such an unquoted equity instrument, the amount
of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future
cash flows discounted at the current market rate of return for a
similar financial asset. Impairment losses on these assets are
not reversed.

Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group assesses
at the end of each reporting period whether there is objective
evidence that an investment or a group of investments is
impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount comprising
the difference between its cost (net of any principal payment
and amortisation) and its current fair value, less any impairment
loss previously recognised in the statement of profit or loss, is
removed from other comprehensive income and recognised in
the statement of profit or loss.

In the case of equity investments classified as available
for sale, objective evidence would include a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of an investment below its
cost. “Significant” is evaluated against the original cost of the
investment and “prolonged” against the period in which the fair
value has been below its original cost. Where there is evidence
of impairment, the cumulative loss — measured as the difference
between the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less
any impairment loss on that investment previously recognised
in the statement of profit or loss — is removed from other
comprehensive income and recognised in the statement of
profit or loss. Impairment losses on equity instruments classified
as available for sale are not reversed through the statement of
profit or loss. Increases in their fair value after impairment are
recognised directly in other comprehensive income.
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24 Summary of significant accounting policies

(continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)

The determination of what is “significant” or “prolonged”
requires judgement. In making this judgement, the Group
evaluates, among other factors, the duration or extent to which
the fair value of an investment is less than its cost.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
borrowings, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and,
in the case of loans and borrowings, net of directly attributable
transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and notes
payables, other payables, derivative financial instruments,
amounts due to related parties and interest-bearing bank
borrowings.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on
their classification as follows:

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest rate method unless the effect of discounting
would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.
Gains and losses are recognised in the statement of profit or
loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the
effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that
are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortisation is included in finance costs in the
statement of profit or loss.
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24 Summary of significant accounting policies

(continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under
the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the
terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such
an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of
the original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and
the difference between the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position if,
and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset
the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on
a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined on the weighted average basis, and
in the case of work in progress and finished goods, comprises
direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of
overheads. Net realisable value is based on estimated selling
prices less any estimated costs to be incurred to completion
and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
demand deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short
maturity of generally within three months when acquired.

For the purpose of the statement of financial position, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks,
including term deposits, which are not restricted as to use.
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24 Summary of significant accounting policies

(continued)

Provisions

A provision is recognised when there is a present obligation
(legal or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and
it is probable that a future outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end of
the reporting period of the future expenditures expected to be
required to settle the obligation. The increase in the discounted
present value amount arising from the passage of time is
included in finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised
outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period, taking into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

e when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not
a business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or
loss; and

e in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries when the timing of the reversal
of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future.
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24 Summary of significant accounting policies

(continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, carryforward of unused tax credits and any unused
tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and
unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

e where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

e in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax assets are
only recognised to the extent that it is probable that the
temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future
and taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at
the end of each reporting period and are recognised to the
extent that it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit
will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to
be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset
is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a
legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the
same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.
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24 Summary of significant accounting policies

(continued)

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the
grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income
on a systematic basis over the periods that the costs, which
it is intended to compensate, are expensed. Where the grant
relates to an asset, the fair value is deducted from the carrying
amount of the asset and released to the statement of profit or
loss by way of a reduced depreciation charge.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be
measured reliably, on the following bases:

(a) from the sale of goods, when the significant risks and
rewards of ownership and title have been transferred
to the buyer, provided that the Group maintains neither
managerial involvement to the degree usually associated
with ownership, nor effective control over the goods sold;

(b) from the rendering of services when the service has been
rendered;

(c) rental income, on a time proportion basis over the lease
terms;

(d) interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that exactly discounts
the estimated future cash receipts over the expected
life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, when
appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial
asset; and

(e) dividend income, when the shareholders’ right to receive
payment has been established.
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24 Summary of significant accounting policies

(continued)

Other employee benefits

Pension scheme

The employees of the Group's subsidiary which operates in
Mainland China are required to participate in a central pension
scheme operated by the local municipal government. This
subsidiary is required to contribute certain percentage of its
payroll costs to the central pension scheme. The contributions
are charged to the statement of profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the central pension
scheme.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of when the
Group can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits and
when the Group recognises restructuring costs involving the
payment of termination benefits.

Borrowing costs

Borrowings costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases
when the assets are substantially ready for their intended use
or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs capitalised. All
other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they
are incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs
that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Dividends

Final dividends proposed by the directors are classified as
a separate allocation of retained earnings within the equity
section of the statement of financial position, until they have
been approved by the shareholders in a general meeting. When
these dividends have been approved by the shareholders and
declared, they are recognised as a liability.
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24 Summary of significant accounting policies

(continued)

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in US dollars, which
is the Company’s functional and presentation currency. Each
entity in the Group determines its own functional currency and
items included in the financial statements of each entity are
measured using that functional currency. Foreign currency
transactions recorded by the entities in the Group are initially
recorded using their respective functional currency rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end
of the reporting period. All differences arising on settlement of
translation of monetary items are recognised in the statement of
profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items
measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
measured. The gain or loss arising on retranslation of a non-
monetary item measured at fair value is treated in line with the
recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value of the
item (i.e., translation difference on the item whose fair value
gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or
profit or loss is also recognised in other comprehensive income
or profit or loss, respectively).

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries
are currencies other than the US dollar. As at the end of the
reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these entities are
translated into the presentation currency of the Company at the
exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period
and their statements of profit or loss are translated into US
dollar at the weighted average exchange rates for the year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the
component of other comprehensive income relating to that
particular foreign operation is recognised in the statement of
profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation
and any fair value adjustments to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities arising on acquisition are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign operation and translated at the
closing rate.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into US
dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash
flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries
which arise throughout the year are translated into US dollars at
the weighted average exchange rates for the year.
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3. Significant accounting, estimates and 3. EEE AT RER

assumptions

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets
and liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could
require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the
assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from
those involving estimations, which have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Impairment of non-financial assets

In determining if an asset is impaired or the event previously
causing the impairment no longer exists, management has to
exercise judgement in the area of asset impairment, particularly
in assessing:

(a) whether an event has occurred that may affect asset value
or such an event affecting the asset value has not been in
existence;

(b) whether the carrying value of an asset can be supported
by the net present value of future cash flows which are
estimated based upon the continuing use of the asset or
derecognition; and

(c) the appropriate key assumptions to be applied in preparing
cash flow projections including whether these cash flow
projections are discounted using an appropriate rate.

Lease classification — Group as lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property leases on
its investment property portfolio. The Group has determined,
based on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the
arrangements, that it retains all the significant risks and rewards
of ownership of these properties which are leased out on
operating leases.
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3. Significant accounting, estimates and 3. EESAFRER (&)

assumptions (continued)

Judgements (continued)

Classification between investment property and owner-
occupied property

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an
investment property, and has developed criteria in making
that judgement. Investment property is a property held to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both. Therefore, the
Group considers whether a property generates cash flows
largely independently of the other assets held by the Group.
Some property comprises a portion that is held to earn rentals
or for capital appreciation and another portion that is held
for use in the production or supply of goods or services or
for administrative purposes. If these portions could be sold
separately or leased out separately under a finance lease,
the Group accounts for the portions separately. If the portions
could not be sold separately, the property is an investment
property only if an insignificant portion is held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes. Judgement is made on an individual property basis
to determine whether ancillary services are so significant that a
property does not qualify as an investment property.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are described below.

Impairment of non-financial assets (other than goodwill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for all non-financial assets at the end of each
reporting period. Other non-financial assets are tested for
impairment when there are indicators that the carrying amounts
may not be recoverable. An impairment exists when the
carrying value of an asset or a cash-generating unit exceeds
its recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value
less costs of disposal and its value in use. The calculation of
the fair value less costs of disposal is based on available data
from binding sales transactions in an arm’s length transaction
of similar assets or observable market prices less incremental
costs for disposing of the asset. When value in use calculations
are undertaken, management must estimate the expected
future cash flows from the asset or cash-generating unit and
choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
value of those cash flows.
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3. Significant accounting, estimates and 3. EESAFRER (&)

assumptions (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax losses
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant
management judgement is required to determine the amount
of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the
likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with
future tax planning strategies.

Estimation of fair value of investment property

In the absence of current prices in an active market for similar
properties, the Group considers information from a variety of
sources, including:

(a) current prices in an active market for properties of a
different nature, condition or location, adjusted to reflect
those differences;

(b) recent prices of similar properties on less active markets,
with adjustments to reflect any changes in economic
conditions since the date of the transactions that occurred
at those prices; and

(c) discounted cash flow projections based on reliable
estimates of future cash flows, supported by the terms of
any existing lease and other contracts and (when possible)
by external evidence such as current market rents for
similar properties in the same location and condition,
and using discount rates that reflect current market
assessments of the uncertainty in the amount and timing of
the cash flows.

The carrying amount of the investment property as at 31
December 2014 was US$191,533,000 (2013: US$191,098,000).
Further details, including the key assumptions used for fair
value measurement and a sensitivity analysis, are given in note
15 to the financial statements.
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4. Operating segment information . REFBER

For management purposes, the Group is organised into one
single business unit that includes primarily the manufacture
and sale of semiconductor products. Management reviews the
consolidated results when making decisions about allocating
resources and assessing the performance of the Group.
Accordingly, no segment analysis is presented.

The principal assets employed by the Group are located in
Shanghai, the PRC. Therefore, no segment information based
on the geographical location of assets is presented for the year.

Revenues are attributed to geographic areas based on the
location of customers. Revenues regarding geographical
segments based on the location of customers for the year are
presented as follows:

HRERRE  AKEEBE—EXK
B rIECEREHERHEYERE
i e BEEEER D EERNBRARK
Mt h AR EERBRHERGE EE -
it - WES5 DB -

AEEERNESEENRRE LS
W R AR EER TN 25
SR -

WP R EE R ATIRE P L E
o FREREFAEME 5 8HE D H
ERRAZ5IT

2014 2013
—2-mEF —F-=F
US$°000 US$'000
FER FET
China (including Hong Kong) HE (BIERH) 356,412 291,414
United States of America EFERE RE 138,148 146,458
Asia (excluding China and Japan) M CPEREFBE KAL) 66,556 51,500
Europe BUM 60,488 42,193
Japan HR 42,982 53,154
664,586 584,719

Information about major customers EHREEEFHNER

No revenue amounting to 10% or more of the Group’s revenue
was derived from sales to a single customer for the year ended
31 December 2014 (2013: Nil).

BE_Z—NF+_A=+—HILFE
(ZZ2—=F  8B) HE-—ZFPNHEM
Blhme BT EERKERARI10%K
LA L o
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5. Revenue, other income and gains 5. WA ~ Httdg A K Wz
Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents the net WATNENAE B R & 558 - IEFAR
invoiced value of goods sold, after allowances for returns and RERESTMENEHEEMERF
trade discounts and the value of services rendered during the BENTRHEREHEE -
year.

An analysis of revenue, other income and gains is as follows: HWA ~ A RKEZH ST T -
2014 2013
—E—-MmEF —T—=F
US$°000 US$'000
FER FET
Revenue L ON
Sale of goods SHEEMm 664,586 584,719
Other income Hebg A
Rental income Giskerll 'O 13,270 12,952
Interest income ) BUA 4,592 8,226
Government subsidies AT 4 G 663 550
Sale of scrap materials SHE R 466 808
Rendering of service RHERE 1,081 1,487
Others Hit 3,412 536
23,484 24,559
Gains &
Gain on disposal of items of property, HEYE  BEMREEE
plant and equipment and prepaid VAR T8 £ b FH & 78
land lease payments ol 402 795
Exchange gain HNEFE 35 W26 = 5,251
402 6,046
23,886 30,605
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6. Profit before tax

31 December 2014
—F-mEt-A=+-4

Fr 755 R 3R B

6. BANREF

The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/ ZRE B AR R T BGTA) T
(crediting): P B IBIREEL
2014 2013
—E—MEF —T—=F
Notes US$°000 US$'000
Ktat FErx FE7T
Cost of inventories sold BEFERA 466,815 459,270
Depreciation e 14 71,613 87,514
Recognition of prepaid land lease payments FERTEAT + b0 16 721 711
Amortisation of intangible assets B A ERH 17 12,154 18,339
Research and development costs I RA 30,791 25,693
Operating lease expenses KEHERT 3,425 2,025
Auditors’ remuneration 1% 25 B M 770 339
Employee benefit expense EEBNFAX (TeiE
(excluding directors’ and chief EERERTHRAER
executive’s remuneration): ROEREN) -
Wages, salaries and other benefits TE& - HekHEMmER 116,572 98,480
Pension scheme contribution RN FHEIMER 11,340 10,506
127,912 108,986
Rental income on an investment property, net A MEMTAESWATEE 5 (13,270) (12,952)
Government subsidies ERAT AL (663) (550)
Foreign exchange differences, net SNFEDE 2= RE SR8 1,385 (5,251)
Impairment of other receivables ﬁﬁﬂfﬂﬁ@xlﬁﬁfﬁ 246 -
Write-down of inventories to net realisable value  #UE 77 & %= 7] 3,823 3,362
Changes in fair value of an investment property 33 &2 A ?TE“ (1,127) (2,095)
7. Finance costs 7. MBEH
2014 2013
—E—MmF —T—=F
(US$°000) (US$'000)
FEx F=r
Interest on bank loans IRITERF B 12,136 16,479
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8. Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration 8. EENREEITHAENHM

Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year, B ETHANRBEBECR TG (E
disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules and section 78 of 662E) M R11F781K (2EHEFB (A
Schedule 11 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. A& G (F32F) F16116%) 1 5 # A
622), with reference to section 161 of the predecessor Hong FEESKRERITRABHMMT -

Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32), is as follows:

2014 2013
—E—-MmEF —T—=F
(US$°000) (US$'000)
(FZ%Ex) (F=m)
Fees ok 69 —
Other emoluments: Hipgm e
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e o 2B REYFE 154 163
Performance related bonuses EAZIRBMAR)TEAL 139 97
Pension scheme contributions RIS EH B TR 10 6
303 266
372 266
(a) Independent non-executive directors (a) BAFHTES ) \
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors FARMBILIFATEEINNES
during the year were as follows: s
2014 2013
—E-lmF —E=F
US$°000 US$'000
FER FET
Stephen Tso Tung Chang SRAE[R] 23 =
Kwai Huen Wong, JP FHEEAR T4t 23 =
Long Fei Ye HEE 23 =
69 -
All of the independent non-executive directors have been ERBLIFRATESIREN-Z
appointed pursuant to a shareholder resolution passed on —WFERA+-—HBBRRFAE
12 May 2014 with such appointments taking effect on 18 REE EZ%§1£E/\\\:§—@¢ﬂ
September 2014. A+\B&ERK -
There were no other emoluments payable to the FAILEEN TBLIFNTERN

Hipe (ZT—=F : &) -

independent non-executive directors during the year (2013:
Nil).
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Br RS R AR MY R

8. Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration 8. EENBSITHAENFHFM

(continued) (4

(b) Executive directors, non-executive directors and the
chief executive
The Directors during the year were:

Mr. Wenbiao Fu (Chairman)
Mr. Yu Wang

Mr. Morita Takayuki

Mr. Jianbo Chen

Mr. Jun Ye

Mr. Yuchan Ma

Mr. Feili Chen

(appointed on 12 May 2014)
(resigned on 18 September 2014)
Mr. Yujun Chen (resigned on 18 September 2014)
Mr. Xiang Xiang (resigned on 18 September 2014)
Mr. Ganesh Moorthy (resigned on 18 September 2014)
Mr. Ding Xu (resigned on 18 September 2014)
Mr. Xiaochun Gu (resigned on 24 January 2014)

Mr. Xiaoming Ying (resigned on 18 September 2014)
Mr. Yi Qin (resigned on 18 September 2014)
Mr. Yamaguchi Tatsuya (resigned on 18 September 2014)
Ms. Ping Cao (appointed on 24 January 2014 and
resigned on 18 September 2014)

il

Mr. Shichang Zou

Mr. Guiwu Zhao

Mr. Ming Zhao

Mr. Honghua Zhou
Mr. Wen-Young Wong

(resigned on 18 September 2014)
(resigned on 18 September 2014)
(resigned on 18 September 2014)
(resigned on 12 May 2014)

(resigned on 18 September 2014)

Mr. Yu Wang received US$154,000 (2013: US$163,000)
of salaries, allowances and benefits in kind, US$139,000
(2013: US$97,000) of performance related bonuses,
and US$10,000 (2013: US$6,000) of pension scheme
contributions during the year. None of the other directors
received any emoluments during the year (2013: Nil).

There was no arrangement under which a director waived
or agreed to waive any remuneration during the year.

)

(b) BITEE  FUTESERHSTH

AB

FRAMESA -

BXRRE (£R)

ThEt

RRB LA

Balg

et

SRN%E (R-E-NFRRT-PEZM)

RERIAE (W=Z-MENATN\BEHD)

BFkLE (W=Z-WEAETNBEL)

BARE (W=Z-WEAETNBEL)

Ganesh Moorhy e (R=S-NENATN\BET)

hexE (W=Z-WEAETNBEL)

ERELE (W=Z-RF-A-tMAEE)

i (W=Z-WEAETNBEL)

RREE (W=Z-mEAETNBEL)

If[f=Fe¥ieo (W=Z-REAETNREL)

Eiat (R=Z-mF- ﬂ tmA
ERIRN-Z—IF
NATNBEHT)

Fta%tE (W=Z-mEAETNRE)

BEREE (W=Z-mEAETNRE)

il iz (W=Z-WEAETNRE)

FkERE (W-E-MERE+-RE)

I0ERE (R=Z-mENAT/\BEFHT)

T 48 5 £ 7 F AU ER154,000% 7T
— T — =4 :163,000%JT) K F
- ERREYH E - 139,000k
T (ZZF — =4 :97,000% L) §
B K IR HME Y TE AT LA 52 10,0003 7T
— T =4 :6,000%7T) BIKE
BN - EEMESNEFAK
BREAE (ZF—=F : £) -

RER - MEBEEEFHLHENEX
A B P EE T B -
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9. Five highest paid employees

The five highest paid employees during the year included one
director (2013: one), details of whose remuneration are set out
in note 8 above. Details of the remuneration for the year of the
remaining four (2013: four) highest paid employees who are not

9. AEBRSHEES

FR IEBRRFRERERE & (=
—ZF:—R)EFE HFEMFBEERN
EXHiEES - R AR (ZF—=
£ MR UFARAEENRHE

=

=

directors of the Company are as follows: BREFHMFBELOT -
2014 2013
—E—-mE —E—=4F
(US$°000) (US$'000)
(F%m) (F=71)
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind S SEBE R EWRIE 1,214 893
Performance related bonuses R IR EMARTEAL 292 36
Pension scheme contributions RIRS TR 15 15
1,521 944

The number of highest paid employees who are not directors of
the Company and whose remuneration fell within the following

bands is as follows:

FIBR U T HB 0L IEADTEED
SEHESABMT |

Numbers of employees

BEEAE
2014 2013
—E—F —T-=F
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7T 21,500,000/ 7T = 1
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7T & 2,000,000/ 7T = 1
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001/ T % 2,500,0007 7T 2 2
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001/8 7L £3,000,000/8 7T 1 =
HK$4,500,001 to HK$5,000,000 4,500,001 7L 25,000,00078 7T 1 =
4 4
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10. Fri5%:

10.Income tax

Hong Kong profits were subject to profit tax at the rate of 16.5%
during the year (2013: 16.5%). No provision for Hong Kong
profits tax has been made as the Company and a subsidiary
incorporated in Hong Kong had no assessable income during
the year (2013: Nil).

The Company’s subsidiary incorporated in the Cayman Islands
is not subject to corporate income tax (“CIT”) as it does not
have a place of business (other than a registered office) or
carry on any business in the Cayman Islands.

All of the Group’s subsidiaries registered in the PRC and
only having operations in Mainland China are subject to PRC
enterprise income tax on the taxable income as reported in
their PRC statutory accounts adjusted in accordance with
relevant PRC income tax laws based on a statutory rate of 25%.

Pursuant to relevant laws and regulations in the PRC and
with approval from the tax authorities in charge, one of the
Group’s subsidiaries, Shanghai Huahong Grace Semiconductor
Manufacturing Corporation (“HHGrace”), is qualified as an
enterprise producing integrated circuits of 0.25um in width and
thus was entitled to a preferential tax rate of 15% from 2013 to
2017.

Pursuant to relevant laws and regulations in the PRC and with
approval from the tax authorities in charge, two of the Group’s
subsidiaries, Shanghai Hua Hong NEC Electronics Co., Ltd.
(“HHNEC”) and Shanghai Grace Semiconductor Manufacturing
Corporation (“Grace Shanghai”), are qualified as “High and
New Technology Enterprises” and thus were entitled to the a
preferential tax rate of 15%.

The Company’s subsidiary incorporated and operating in Japan
is subject to a corporation tax rate of 25.5% (2013: 25.5%).

The Company’s subsidiary incorporated and operating in the
United States is subject to a federal corporation income tax
rate of 34% during the year (2013: 34%), as well as state tax at
8.84% (2013: 8.84%).

BEEBSEFITRENEBET L R
FRMBE B BFNEIEI165% (ZF—=
F:16.5%) MR EBMAFFSH - AR
ARRAR—REEBEMAIZHT AR
RE A MBS EEE R A - iR
HBEBHESHRIELEE (T —=F :
=) o

HRARRERSESEMKIN TR
AERSHSLEES LXMW (M
MEEEIN) REBEMER - AR
FRABEBMEEREN ([REMEF
Bl e

FEARSEEFTEEMBEETEAM
LENT AR - EHEARBEAARRT BAT
SHOEHBH P BEUAER B T2 MER
U AIR25%E)E BB R @A B %
FTiSHL -

RIETEBRARER N ETRHEE
BRI E  AKRE—RFRAR LBEL
RAFEREERR AR ([FELRH])
NEBEBRKREETERMEAE R
0.25umERBHENEE - HEERR_-F
—=HFE T+ FHRARIGRNER
TG o

BIEFBRAEE AR AR REREEE
WA E  ANEBE—RFRFELRT
BEFBAEE AR AR REREEE
R E  AEEMR FAR LEET
NECEFHER AR ([ZELINEC]) & E
HRAFBEEENR ((LEEAN]D
RERKA [ SFEMEE]  WERKR
15% B BT EHF -

RN R)E B AL K B R T A A
fE1225.5% (ZE—=4 : 25.5%) Hyd
ERET -

AABEERFMA KR EEHTF AR
JE1234% (— T — =4 : 34%) W B FD
PEMBHENESLI% (T —=4F:
8.84%) HyINFLFH REH o
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10.Income tax (continued)

The major components of income tax expense of the Group are

10. Fr 5%t (&)

AEBFAEHRAXHEZAKE M

as follows: T
2014 2013
—E—-mE —E—=4F
(US$°000) (US$’000)
FE7T FET
Current income tax — PRC EHIFTSE — & 20,220 10,226
Current income tax — elsewhere EHIFTS R — b= 29 22
Deferred tax (note 29) EIEFIE (M93E29) 7473 (1,284)
27,722 8,964

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before
tax at the statutory rates for the countries in which the Company
and its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax expense at the

BARBRETARKEMERRNL
EREGFERNRBADEN A ER AR
X ERBEREGFENBIAR SN

effective tax rates is as follows: BRER
2014 2013
—E-lmF —T—=4F
(US$°000) (US$000)
F3ETT FET
Profit before tax T B A 120,812 70,813
Tax at the statutory tax rate BEEBEGTEMIE 30,203 17,703
Lower tax rates for specific provinces or BEA M E BBEGH
enacted by local authority BRI = (12,177) (6,077)
Adjustments in respect of current tax #_E—HAfE E BT IE ) B
of previous period (4) (179)
Profits attributable to an associate FEAE — KBk A Rl A (728) (966)
Income not subject to tax REBUA (140) -
Expenses not deductible for tax AR FIFR A 2 697 596
Tax losses utilised from previous periods )BT AR MR IE AR = (8,352)
Tax losses not recognized RERBIAEE 476 5
Temporary differences not recognized AERERE =5 - (517)
Adjustments in respect of deferred tax FLUARIF B R ET A A R
of previous years 68 (223)
Additional deduction of research TSR A N0 RR
and development costs - (200)
Effect of withholding tax at 10% REEFEF AR A
on the distributable profits Dk AR 10% 5 &
of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries BANTEITI M R 2 9,327 2,174
Tax charge at the Group’s effective rate BAEBEERHETER
MIERY 27,722 8,964

The share of tax attributable to an associate amounting to

US$811,000 for the year (2013: US$2,166,000) is included in

“Share of profits of an associate” in the consolidated statement HEBRE [Hh—RE

of profit or loss.
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11. Profit attributable to owners of the parent M.BRREEAEEREF
The consolidated profit attributable to owners of the parent Eﬁzi —OFE+—A=+—HIEFE
for the year ended 31 December 2014 includes a loss of 7T§EﬁAFT££Tm/ﬁn*lJ&}EEEQ$
US$2,888,000 (2013: loss of US$28,000) which has been dealt fvwwﬁﬁ%@maﬂ%ﬁz%&mm%
with in the financial statements of the Company (note 31 (b)). T (ZE—=%F : 51828,000% 7T) (Kt
FE31(b)) °
12.Earnings per share 12. 8RR EF
The calculation of the basic earnings per share amounts is EXBRAENDIERSRAR LT BE
based on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity HZRHFEARGFEARNERFEAL
holders of the parent, and the weighted average number of & 17853,421,114K%k (= T — = #F -
ordinary shares of 853,421,114 in issue during the year (2013: 805,175,656% ) I iMAR &Y ANHE T S0ET
805,175,656). =
The Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in issue AEEFATEE BTETE SRR
during the year (2013: Nil). (ZE—=F:8) -
The calculation of earnings per share is based on: BRAEFNNTETER :
2014 2013
—E—-MmEF —T—=4F
US$°000 US$'000
FER FET
Earnings ZF|
Profit attributable to ordinary equity holders AR i+ EGIREARZ T &)
of the parent, used in the basic earnings BAREREREEA
per share calculation e R 93,090 61,849
Number of share
RHEE
2014 2013
—E-MmF —E—=F
Shares &)
Weighted average number of ordinary RARFTEEREAREFH
shares in issue during the year used in FREETEBR
the basic earnings per share calculation hnfE 580 853,421,114 805,175,656
13.Dividend 13.RE
The Board did not recommend the payment of any dividend for EEETERREBE-_T—NF+=A

the year ended 31 December 2014 (2013: Nil).

—t+t—BLEFERMEIMBKZE (ZT—
=F E) o
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14.Property, plant and equipment 14.9% - BEKRRE
Plant and Office Motor  Leasehold Construction
Buildings machinery equipment  vehicles improvements in progress Total
BERE HE

EF R#E  BARE RE NELEE HEIE @3t
(USS'000)  (USS'000) (USS'000) (USS000)  (USS000)  (USS'000)  (USS'000)
(F&n) (F%n) (F%n) (F%n) (F£n) (f&n) (F%n)

31 December 2014 ZE-ME+-A=1+-H
At31December 2013and  R=E-=£+-A=t+—H
at 1 January 2014; RZZ-ME-A-R:
Cost AR 325,683 3,625,942 30,508 3,291 - 89,010 4,074,434
Accumulated depreciation  2iHFER
and impairment Wilb (136,181) (3313773)  (26604)  (2554) - (16,018)  (3,495,130)
Net carrying amount RATE 189,502 312,169 3,904 737 - 72,992 579,304

At1January 2014, netof ~ R-E-ME-A-H
accumulated depreciation B ZEHTE

and impairment RAfE 189,502 312,169 3,904 737 - 72,992 579,304
Additions HE = = 3,700 152 - 59,260 63,112
Transfers EE 7900 83,561 - - 4,276 (95,737) -
Disposals RE - - (8) (64) - - (72)
Depreciation provided FRGHR

during the year e (11,526)  (57,590) (1,402) (240) (855) - (71,613)
Exchange realignment ERBE (678) (1,182) (38) 3) (6) (198) (2,105)

At 31 December 2014, netof RZE-ME+-A=1—-H"
accumulated depreciation ¥ 25 E

and impairment KAE 185,198 336,958 6,156 582 3,45 36,317 568,626
At 31 December 2014: R-E-ME+-A=1+-H:

Cost KA 332,393 3,696,100 33,313 2,167 4,268 52217 4,120,518
Accumulated depreciation  ZiHTE

and impairment R (147195) (3359,142)  (27157)  (1,585) (853)  (15960) (3,551,892)
Net carrying amount REFE 185,198 336,958 6,156 582 3,5 36,317 568,626
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14.Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Fr 755 R 3R B

14.93% - BB K& (F&)

Plant and Office Motor ~ Construction
Buildings ~ machinery  equipment vehicles in progress Total
BF s N e FRIR &
(US$'000) (US$'000) (US$'000) (US$'000) (US$'000) (US$'000)
(F%7) (F%7) (F%) (F%7) (F%7) (F%7)
31 December 2013 —E-=%+-A=1-H
At 31 December 2012and ~ R=F——£+-fA=1-R
at 1 January 2013: kZZ-=%-f-R:
Cost AR 290,864 3,483,070 28,841 3,193 114,258 3,920,226
Accumulated depreciation  Z:HiTE
and impairment RosfE (120337)  (3,142,249)  (24,431) (2,193) (15537)  (3,304,747)
Net carrying amount REFE 170,527 340,821 4,410 1,000 98,721 615,479
At 1 January 2013, net of W-Z—=%—F-R"
accumulated depreciation MK Z:HTE
and impairment LM 170,527 340,821 4410 1,000 98,721 615,479
Additions AE - 433 13 - 32,739 33,185
Disposals RE - (32) (12) = = (44)
Transfers EE 25,428 34,880 775 - (61,083) -
Depreciation provided FRGHE
during the year il (11,937) (73,880) (1,406) (291) - (87,514)
Exchange realignment [ 5 % 5,484 9,947 124 28 2615 18,198
At 31 December 2013, net  WZZE-=F+-fA=1-H"
of accumulated depreciation ¥k 2:HE
and impairment L@ 189,502 312,169 3,904 737 72,992 579,304
At 31 December 2013; R-ZE-=F+-A=1+-R:
Cost A 325,683 3,625,942 30,508 3,291 89,010 4,074,434
Accumulated depreciation  Z:fiTE
and impairment LRfE (136,181)  (3,2313779) (26,604) (2,554) (16,018)  (3,495,130)
Net carrying amount EmFE 189,502 312,169 3,904 737 72,992 579,304

As at 31 December 2014, certain of the Group’s property, plant
and equipment with a net carrying value of US$458,462,000
(2013: US$456,687,000) were pledged to banks to secure the
Group’s banking facilities (note 27).

R-ZE—NME+_A=+—H K£E
BRMEFE 5458,462,000% 0 (ZE—=
F : 456,687,000 7T) ETYWE - K
ERREBCEFFRITURESAREEH
RITEERE (MHx27) -
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15. REW =

15.Investment property

2014 2013

—F-0F —F=F

(US$°000) (US$'000)

(FZ%Ex) (F=m)

Carrying amount at 1 January Rn—H—H E’JQEETE 191,098 183,301
Net gains from a fair value adjustment NEEFARDIES 1,127 2,095
Exchange realignment FE 3 A2 (692) 5,702
Carrying amount at 31 December R+ZA=+—HB8ERAEE 191,533 191,098

The Group’s investment property is situated in Shanghai, the
PRC and is held under a medium term lease. The directors
have determined that the investment property is an industrial
property, based on the nature, characteristics and risks of the

property.

The Group’s investment property was revalued on 31 December
2014 and 2013 based on valuation performed by Jones
Lang LaSalle Corporate Appraisal and Advisory Limited, an
independent professionally qualified valuer, on an open market
value basis. The valuation is based on both capitalisation of
income derived from the existing tenancy with allowance for the
reversionary income potential of the property, and by making
reference to comparable market transactions.

Each year, the Group’s property manager and the chief
financial officer decide to appoint which external valuer to
be responsible for the external valuations of the Group’s
properties. Selection criteria include market knowledge,
reputation, independence and whether professional standards
are maintained. The Group’s property manager and the
chief financial officer have discussions with the valuer on the
valuation assumptions and valuation results annually when the
valuation is performed for annual financial reporting.

The investment property is leased to a related party under an
operating lease (note 32(a) and note 34 (b)).

As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, the Group’s investment
property was pledged to banks to secure the Group’s banking
facilities (note 27).
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—z-mit+=p=+-8 Y] /% B H:E

15. REM=E (&)

15.Investment property (continued)

Fair value hierarchy

The recurring fair value measurement for the Group’s investment
property, which is an industrial property, is made using
significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) as at 31 December
2013 and 2014. During the year, there were no transfers of
fair value measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no
transfers into or out of Level 3 (2013: Nil).

Below is a summary of the valuation techniques used and the

AFEEBR

AEEREME (BIEME) R=F
—NF+_A=+—BR_ZE—=F+
—A=t+—BMBEBRAFEFENFER
BARATAIERE ASIE (F34) B -
RER - F1REF2HMEIL EAFE
EE%  AFEFITEEAREL (=T
—=F )

TXRREMEGEMRBHERMRE

key inputs to the valuation of the investment property: L ABUBEIE ¢
Significant unobservable (Weighted
Industrial property Valuation techniques inputs average)
THERY=E fRE R EARAERGEAYE (hn#EF19)
As at 31 December 2014 Term and reversion method Estimated rental value US$11.6
RZE—ME+=H FHIRIERE (per sg.m. and per month) 11.6% 7T
=+—H hETHEEE
(BFHARKEA)
Term yield 7.0%
FHi Bl R
Reversionary 7.5%
185
Long term vacancy rate 5.0%
RAZEEX
As at 31 December 2013 Market comparison method Estimated value (per sq.m.) US$1,978
RZE—=%F+=A TS LBV hEHEE (BFHK) 1,978% 7T
=+—A
Term and reversion method Estimated rental value US$11.5
FHIRIERE (per sq.m. and per month) 11.5% 7T
et EEEE
(§FHKREA)
Term yield 7.0%
F 3Bl
Reversionary 7.5%
185
Long term vacancy rate 5.0%

REIZ=ER

Under the term and reversion method, fair value is measured
by taking into account the rental income derived from the
existing lease with due allowance for the reversionary income
potential of the lease, which is then capitalised into the value at
appropriate rates.

REFHRERE  RFELEARE
EHAOEENESKA - AZFEY
MBERERBAGIREERE  HER
BEREAM LR BETEANGEEEM
EH e
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15.Investment property (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

The term value was estimated based on the existing rent,
tenancy period as stated in the lease agreement and the yield
during the term period (tenancy period). The reversionary value
was estimated based on the market rents, market yield and the

reversionary periods.

A significant increase/(decrease) in the estimated rental value
and the market rent growth rate per annum in isolation would
result in a significant increase/(decrease) in the fair value of the
investment property. A significant increase/(decrease) in the
long term vacancy rate and the discount rate in isolation would
result in a significant decrease/(increase) in the fair value of
the investment property. Generally, a change in the assumption

31 December 2014
—ZT—mE+=-A=+—H

15. REWE (8)

DFEER (K
TEHEENREREHZMIANRE
He EHRFHA (A DR
it EREEDREMERS  mHD
BERREFHRMEF

A HEBERTSHEEFERLER
RIELF /(TR BEBIREMENR
FEKREENORD) RPEEXRR
B RBEAR LT (TR) $EIR
EMENRDFERNERDGEM) - —
RiME > A EEEEFEDNRRE
BRE HEFEREIRMBARIER

=t 2o P

made for the estimated rental value is accompanied by a MEE  MERPEERDHERAED -
directionally similar change in the rent growth per annum and
the discount rate and an opposite change in the long term

vacancy rate.

16.Prepaid land lease payments

16. A L HEEFE

2014 2013

—E—-mEF —E—=F

(US$°000) (US$'000)

(F%r) (F=7T)

Carrying amount at 1 January R—HA—BHEREE 25,726 25,655

Recognised during the year FRMER (721) (711)

Exchange realignment M AR (91) 782

Carrying amount at 31 December R+=ZA=+—HMERAEE 24,914 25,726
Current portion included in prepayments, TERRUE « e RHALEU

deposits and other receivables FIER BIERER A (720) (722)

Non-current portion JEBNHAEB (D 24,194 25,004

The parcels of leasehold land are held under long term leases

and are situated in Mainland China.

Certain of the Group’s prepaid land lease payments with a
carrying value of US$24,914,000 as at 31 December 2014
(2013: US$25,726,000) were pledged to banks to secure the

Group’s banking facilities (note 27).
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17. Intangible assets

Notes to Financial Statements

31 December 2014
~F-mE+-A=+-A

Fr 755 R 3R B

17. B EE

Process
technology Computer
licence software Total
TS R E wst
(US$°000) (US$°000) (US$°000)
(FE=7m) GrET) (FFE==75)
31 December 2014 —ZE—mWE+=-A=+—H
At 31 December 2013 and R-ZE—=F1+—A
at 1 January 2014: =t+—BR-ZT—NF
—H—H:
Cost BN 284,025 106,261 390,286
Accumulated amortisation EEt I RRE
and impairment (281,335) (86,113) (367,448)
Net carrying amount BREFE 2,690 20,148 22,838
At 1 January 2014, net of R-ZE—WMFE—H—Q1 "
accumulated amortisation Bk BT SE ORE
and impairment 2,690 20,148 22,838
Additions NE - 4,105 4,105
Amortisation provided FAEL
during the year (2,680) (9,474) (12,154)
Exchange realignment PE 1 EE (10) (71) (81)
At 31 December 2014, net of RZZE—NF+_A
accumulated amortisation =+—H ' BRERFT
and impairment B RE - 14,708 14,708
At 31 December 2014: RZE—NF+=A
=+—H
Cost AN 282,999 109,882 392,881
Accumulated amortisation SETEHENORE
and impairment (282,999) (95,174) (378,173)
Net carrying amount REFE = 14,708 14,708
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31 December 2014
—ZT—mE+=-A=+—H

17. Intangible assets (continued)

17. 8L EE (8)

Process
technology Computer
licence software Total
THE B AMTA BRI HEt
(US$000) (US$'000) (US$000)
(F%=7T) (F==mT) (F==T)
31 December 2013 —E-—=H+=-A=+—H
At 31 December 2012 and MR-ZZE——F+_H
at 1 January 2013: =t+—BR-ZE—=F
—H—8:
Cost D% 275,503 100,497 376,000
Accumulated amortisation RETEEORE
and impairment (261,782) (76,577) (338,359)
Net carrying amount BREFE 13,721 23,920 37,641
At 1 January 2013, net of RZE—=%F—H—A8"
accumulated amortisation Nk T8 3E SORE
and impairment 13,721 23,920 37,641
Additions NE - 2,615 2,615
Amortisation provided FAEL
during the year (11,281) (7,058) (18,339)
Exchange realignment BEE 5, %8 250 671 921
At 31 December 2013, net of RZE—=F+_AH
accumulated amortisation =+—H ' R ET
and impairment BiERORE 2,690 20,148 22,838
At 31 December 2013: RZE—=F+_AH
=1+—H:
Cost B AN 284,025 106,261 390,286
Accumulated amortisation RETEHENORE
and impairment (281,335) (86,113) (367,448)
Net carrying amount BREFE 2,690 20,148 22,838

Certain of the Group’s intangible assets with a carrying value of
US$10,599,000 at 31 December 2014 (2013: US$11,383,000)
were pledged to banks to secure the Group’s banking facilities

(note 27).
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18.Investments in subsidiaries

Notes to Financial Statementjs
B IS ER_RMIEE

18. RFARIWIRE

31 December 2014
~F-mE+-A=+-A

Company
PN

2014 2013
—E-nmEF —T-=F
(US$°000) (US$'000)
(FZ%Ex) (F=m)
Unlisted equity investments, at cost EETIERE - IR AE 1,229,996 1,229,996
Less: Impairment of investment B RERE = -
1,229,996 1,229,996

Particulars of the Group’s subsidiaries are as follows:

AREETFRRINFBOT

Issued ordinary/

Percentage of
equity interest

Place and date registered attributable to
of incorporation/ share capital the Company
registration and BRITER/ AR A M
place of business EERE  REEZAEAL
Name of company HMAREL, BT (in thousand) Direct Indirect Principal activities
NCECT REXHHR AN (F7) BE# Mg TEEK
Subsidiaries
FAH
Grace Semiconductor Cayman Islands/ US$0.001 100% - Investment holding
Manufacturing Corporation 5 October 1999 REZR
(“Grace Cayman”)* HEHs /
—NANETREHR
HHGrace™ PRC/ RMB5,865,538 100% - Manufacturing and
FERN 24 January 2013 sale of semiconductor
hmE —E-=F products
—A=+mA EERHEFERER
Shanghai Huajie IC Technology PRC/ RMB41,385 - 100%  Manufacturing and
Service Co., Ltd. 8 April 2002 sale of semiconductor
(“Shanghai Huajie”)*** FE, T -F products
BB A ENREERAR ESPAN= EERHEFERER

([ LA =
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31 December 2014

—E-NE+=-A=+—H

18.Investments in subsidiaries (continued)

Company (continued)

18. RFARNKRE (&)

o7 (&)

Issued ordinary/

Percentage of
equity interest

Place and date registered attributable to
of incorporation/ share capital the Company
registration and ERTEE/ RAE M
business EERE  REEREAL
Name of company ML, BT (inthousand)  Direct Indirect Principal activities
NCET REXHHR AN (F7) BH# M IEXER
Subsidiaries (continued)
FRAT (&)
Global Synergy Technology Limited Hong Kong SAR/ HK$10 100% - Trading
(“GST")r** 12 November 2003 1047 B9
BARRITHE
—TT=F
+—A+=H
HHGrace Semiconductor USA, Inc* The United States - 100% - Sales office
of America/ HE XA
20 October 2005
([ —TELF
+A=+H
HHGrace Semiconductor Japan Japan/2 May 2006 JPY10,000 100% - Sales office
Co., Ltd.* AA/ZZTXF 10,0008 HEDT
TAZR

>k

AAAA

No audited financial statements have been prepared for these
entities for the year ended 31 December 2014, as these entities
were not subject to any statutory audit requirement under the
relevant rules and regulations in their jurisdictions of incorporation.

On 24 January 2013, HHGrace was established as a wholly-
foreign-owned enterprise under PRC law to consolidate the assets
and liabilities of HHNEC and Grace Shanghai. This consolidation
has been substantially completed except for certain administrative
formalities which still need to be fulfilled before the deregistration
of HHNEC and Grace Shanghai.

Shanghai Huajie is a domestic company established under PRC
law.

Not audited by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another member firm
of the Ernst & Young global network.
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31 December 2014
~F-mE+-A=+-A

19.Investment in an associate

Fr 755 R 3R B

19. REE QX RWIRE

2014 2013

—E—-MmEF —T—=4F

US$’000 US$'000

(FZ%Ex) (F=m)

Share of net assets DIHEEFE 42,030 45,115
Particulars of the Group’s subsidiaries are as follows: AEBETFRRFBEHOT ¢

Place and date of

Percentage of

incorporation/ Paid-in equity interest
registration and capital attributable to
place of business EHRAR the Group Principal
Name of company MR, ER RMB’000 REBEM activities
NCIECE REEMBK BH ARBT T RERZEILE FEXEK
Shanghai Huahong Technology =~ PRC/Mainland China 548,000 50% Technology

Development Co., Ltd. FRE B A
(“Huahong Technology
Development”)
LBEIREERBR AR
(MR ER )

development
and investment

R RIE

The financial statements of this associate were not audited by
Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another member firm of the Ernst
& Young global network.

The Group’s voting power held and profit sharing arrangement
in relation to Huahong Technology Development are 40% and
50%, respectively.

The Group’s shareholding in the associate is held through a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.

A E NP B RR L RER B LK
SETEN FIE TR LK SR AN EIE AT 2 IR
BENEMLKE RAREZ °

AREBEBENRNREESENRERE
EFED B Z D R A240% K%50% °

AREBEBZBARARRNEEFRRAREZ

LG e
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19.Investment in an associate (continued) 19. REFEATNIRE (&)
The following table illustrates the summarised financial TR ASEEE R RNHBEER

information of the Group’s associate:

2014 2013
—E-mF —E—=F
US$’000 US$'000
FEx FET
Current assets MENEE 185,530 240,273
Non-current assets ERBEE 19,892 14
Current liabilities MENAE (41,277) (87,751)
Non-current liabilities BB E (80,085) (62,306)
Net assets EEFE 84,060 90,230
Net assets, excluding goodwill BESE  TRERE 84,060 90,230
Reconciliation to the Group’s interest REBEREE N
in the associate: R TR -
Proportion of the Group’s interest REEREE AR
in the associate R fE e LL 171 50% 50%
Group’s share of net assets REED(EHEE QT
of the associate, excluding goodwill BEFE TRERE 42,030 45,115
2014 2013
—T-mEF —B—=F
US$’000 US$'000
SO R =
Revenue WA 21,305 34,755
Profit for the year FARHEF 9,697 12,873
Other comprehensive income HEth 2 AW 15 =
Total comprehensive income 2HEWEREE 9,712 12,873
Dividend received BElEE (8,186) -
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—z-me+=A=+-8 /) AH E |:|_E

20.Available-for-sale investments

2. IHHERE

2014 2013

—E—-mE —E—=4F

(US$°000) (US$'000)

(FZ%Ex) (F=m)

Unlisted equity investments, at cost JEETERE - IR AE 230,512 172,219

As at 31 December 2014, the unlisted equity investments with a
carrying amount of US$230,512,000 (2013: 172,219,000) were
stated at cost less impairment because the range of reasonable
fair value estimates is so significant that the directors are of the
opinion that their fair value cannot be measured reliably. The
Group does not intend to dispose of these investments in the
near future.

HRABAFEGBFHEAN EF
REERAFETEASETE S B8R
—E-—NEF A=+ —HIELTRE
#®E (BRMEE230,512,000% 7T (— & —
=4 :172,219,000% 7T)) JHIEK AN A
HMBRREZ?Y - AEBERHAES HEZ

ERE -

21.Inventories 21. 78
2014 2013
—E-mEF —EB—=F
(US$°000) (US$'000)
(F%7x) (F=mT)
Raw materials R 40,808 39,283
Work in progress & m 37,162 43,276
Finished goods BURK oh 27,049 23,910
105,019 106,469
Less: provision for inventories W FERE (11,031) (7,240)
93,988 99,229

22.Trade and notes receivables

2 BT EBRERE

2014 2013

—E—-MmEF —T—=%F

US$’000 US$'000

F3ETT F=T

Trade receivables B 5 EWEIA 76,638 88,778
Notes receivable W EE 32,729 18,612
109,367 107,390

Impairment of trade receivables B 5B E (1,858) (1,865)
107,509 105,525
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22.Trade and notes receivables (continued) 2 BEFRERRERERZERE (&)

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly
on credit and the credit period is generally 30 to 45 days,
extending up to 60 days for major customers. There is no
significant concentration of credit risk. The Group does not
hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over its
trade receivable balances. Trade receivables are non-interest-
bearing.

An aged analysis of the trade receivables, based on the invoice
date and net of provisions, is as follows:

AEBREZFNBEZHRBUEER
T EEH-RA/B0EIKR  BHREP
MEEHERERZ60K - AEELE
BEXETEERR - AKEAYEGEER
2 & W IR R B R B (T 9 m S ER R
HpmgEEREE - B3 REFIBARR

B o

1SN

BEZAME - 25 RUGRIE (FNE#E
) MRS T

2014 2013

—E—MmF —T—=F

US$’000 US$'000

FEx FET

Within 3 months = EEINA 73,515 79,768
3 to 6 months =Z=NAA 913 6,686
6 to 12 months ~E+=@A 352 459
74,780 86,913

The movements in provision for impairment of trade receivables
are as follows:

B2 RWFERERENEEIT -

2014 2013

—E—MmF —T—=F

(US$°000) (US$'000)

FTxr FETT

At 1 January n—A—H 1,865 1,814
Exchange realignment [ 5, 2 (7) 51
1,858 1,865

Included in the above provision for impairment of trade
receivables is a provision for individually impaired trade
receivables of US$1,858,000 as at 31 December 2014 (2013:
US$1,865,000), with a carrying amount before provision of
US$1,858,000 (2013: US$1,865,000).

The individually impaired trade receivables relate to customers
that were in financial difficulties or were in default in both
interest and/or principal payments and only a portion of the
receivables is expected to be recovered.
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22.Trade and notes receivables (continued)

The aged analysis of the trade receivables that are not
individually nor collectively considered to be impaired is as

2. EZBRREREVRREE (&)

I % 18 5 2k K R AR AR E R E 5 W
HRIBRIREDITINT

follows:
2014 2013
—F-nF —T—=F
(US$°000) (US$'000)
FEx FET
Neither past due nor impaired B R 80 HR IR R R E 59,208 67,516
Less than 1 month past due B0 B D —1& B 12,596 12,324
1 to 3 months past due M —= =84 2,249 5,497
3 to 6 months past due B = F= @ A 657 1,331
6 to 12 months past due BEINE+ @A 70 245
74,780 86,913

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to
a large number of diversified customers for whom there was
no recent history of default. Receivables that were past due
but not impaired relate to a number of independent customers
that have a good track record with the Group. Based on past
experience, the directors are of the opinion that no provision for
impairment is necessary in respect of these balances as there
has not been a significant change in credit quality and the
balances are still considered fully recoverable.

BER 80 5 IR AR OB (E A R W R TR B R %
REFPAR  REOIHL | RALE -
EEHERBRENEERIARS 2B
URFPER REEAKERSHLER
o REBERR ESR/BLER
ZEHERTHRBERE  RAREEE
R BERNNRE - BRFEHREB/ID
Al =gk o

Annual Report 2014 201455 E#kE 205



Notes to Financial Statements

By 755 R 3R B 2

31 December 2014
E —ZT—mE+=-A=+—H

23.Prepayments, deposits and other receivables

BANKRE - BRERHEMEK

MIE
Group Company
rEE b N
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2014 2013 2014 2013
—F-MmFE  —F-=F —T-NF —T-=F
+=A +=A +=A +=A
=t+—H =+—H =+—H =+—H
(US$000)  (US$000)  (US$’000)  (US$000)
(F%r) (F=7T) (F%x) (F=m)
Other receivables H b pE Y RIE 5,346 2,981 1,577 972
Prepayments TEfS IR 1,882 4,187 - -
Current portion of A A EFIE
prepaid land lease B ENERER
payments (note 16) (Mf7E16) 720 722 - -
7,948 7,890 1,577 972
Impairment of other H b e R IBR A
receivables (941) (697) - -
7,007 7,193 1,577 972

The movements in provision for impairment of other receivables

are as follows:

2014 2013

—E-MF —E—=F

(US$000) (US$'000)

(F%=x) (F=x)

At 1 January n—A—H 697 688
Impairment losses recognised (note 6) HRREEE (HE6) 246 =
Exchange realignment [E 5 % (2) 9
As at 31 December RNt+=—B=+—8H 941 697

L EMERRIERERERER_-Z
—ME+ - A=+—B @R LERE
B E i e UL TR TE941 000 T (—E—=
F 1 697,000%7T) fEHL KB - NEE
B R BRE B A£941,000% T (& — =
£ : 697,000%7T) °

Included in the above provision for impairment of other
receivables is a provision for individually impaired other
receivables of US$941,000 as at 31 December 2014 (2013:
US$697,000), with a carrying amount before provision of
US$941,000 (2013: US$697,000).

{8 51 1 ZR R (B B EL A JE YRR TS BB B
BN RAERFE R, LA BRI
BB ABRE - I8 HE A] Y @ AR 1) FE UL
A °

The individually impaired other receivables relate to debtors
that were in financial difficulties or were in default in both
interest and/or principal payments and only a portion of the
receivables is expected to be recovered.
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24.Cash and cash equivalents and pledged

Notes to Financial Statements

31 December 2014
—T-—mFE+=-A=+—H

Br RS R AR MY R

U BERBEEEYUREEHR

deposits EE
Group Company
rEE RAF
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2014 2013 2014 2013
—EB-mF —T-=F ZE-mF T-=F
+=A +=A +=A +=A
=t+—H =+—H =t+—H =+—H
(US$°000) (US$'000) (US$°000) (US$'000)
(F%x) (F=7T) (F%m) (F=m)
Cash and bank balances ¥4 RiR{T48 439,556 185,831 321,811 6,989
Time deposits TEHITE R 209,800 133,286 6,000 -
649,356 319,117 327,811 6,989
Pledged deposits: EERER
Pledged deposits for BEAFEER
letters of credit TR (2,583) (2,072) - -
Cash and bank equivalents IR & RIH&ZEY) 646,773 317,045 327,811 6,989

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank
balances and time deposits of the Group denominated in
Renminbi (“RMB”) amounted to US$205,717,000 (2013:

US$262,024,000). The RMB is not freely convertible into other F:

currencies, however, under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale
and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is
permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks
authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits are made for
varying periods of between seven days and three months
depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Group,

RBEHRER - AREHRE RIRITHE
BAREHERIAARE TARE ]
ET{E - /205,717,000 T (ZF — =

262,024,000 7T) - ARKEAT B

HEABRSEMER - AW REFERA
Ho o CHNE B IR R DI Ko CHERE ~ EER
NEEEMRE)  AREEEEBER
BARIMNEXHORITHAREL RS

HpE# -

and earn interest at the respective short term time deposit B

rates. The bank balances are deposited with creditworthy

banks with no recent history of default.

Pledged deposits with a carrying value of US$2,583,000 as
at 31 December 2014 (2013: US$2,072,000) were pledged to

secure the issuance of letters of credit.

RITRESDREE BRITERNRLF
B REFE - MHINERFERTIRE AR
SENRESFTRSRLRE=[EA
TE - RE5EHTE HF 500 F R EREUF

RITERDIFRNEERFEIH

W 32 K FCERAYERTT ©

R-ZE—NE+-_A=+—H 2R
BREI{E A2,583,000E 7T (ZE— =4 :

2,072,0003€7T) W E BT R AERE T

AR -
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25.Trade payables

An aged analysis of the trade payables of the Group as at the
end of the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as
follows:

25. B 5 EANRIE

RERSHRARZERBH - A&H
B ZRENFENRE DT -

2014 2013

—2-mEF —F-=F

US$’000 US$'000

SPEST FET

Within 1 month —EAR 34,796 34,388
1 to 3 months —Z={@A 21,520 17,274
3 to 6 months =&N8A 1,180 2,428
6 to 12 months ~E+ @A 1,013 1,719
Over 12 months +-@EAE 5,023 4,418
63,532 60,227

The trade payables are unsecured, non-interest-bearing and
normally settled on 30 to 60 day terms.

26.0ther payables, advances from customers

EHRNFALEER AR R—K

RB0KEB0K LS °

26. KA RE - ARRRRE

and accruals HE R
2014 2013
—E-mF —E—=F
(US$°000) (US$'000)
(F%E7) (F=mT)
Other payables and accruals E N RIARE G ER 39,325 40,499
Advances from customers TEUBR TR 13,758 11,741
Payroll and bonus payables FERT & RAIEAL 19,227 13,409
72,310 65,649
The above balances are unsecured, non-interest-bearing and Lty mER - TR AEEREK
repayable on demand. BE -

208 HuA HONG SEMICONDUCTOR LIMITED %4788 R A )



Notes to Financial Statementjs
e B LSRR MIEE

27. Interest-bearing bank borrowings 27. st B RITER
31 December 2014 31 December 2013
—E-mE+=A=t+-H —T-—=F+-A=1+—H
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate (%) rate (%)
EMEFIZE  Maturity US$000  EEEFX Maturity US$'000
(%) ) TER (%) I F=r
Current RE
Current portion of RERITER 2.0-6.6 2015 81,690 2.0-7.1 2014 101,513
long term bank EENERER 1 —E-—AF —T—[mE
loans — secured — B
Non-current FERE
Secured bank loans RHEARITER 2.0-6.6 2016-2018 183,031 2.0-7.1  2015-2018 265,012
—E-RZE —ZE—hZE
—E-N\F —T-N\&F
264,721 366,525
2014 2013
—E-NF —T—=4F
US$’000 US$'000
F5ETT FET
Analysed into: DA
Bank loans repayable: FEERBIRITER
Within one year —&FR 81,690 101,513
In the second year FF 62,079 81,831
In the third to fifth years, inclusive FoZhF (PEEEMF) 120,952 183,181
264,721 366,525
Included in secured bank loans were long term loans due RZE—WOF+A=+—H ' BK
within one year of US$38,940,000 and long term loans of FETEREER —FRIBENA
US$41,371,000 as at 31 December 2014 (2013: US$58,764,000 38,940,000 T KW R A E - U &
and US$80,602,000, respectively), which were denominated in A41,371,000 TR B E R (ZF
RMB. All other loans were denominated in US$. — = F: 5 5l A£58,764,000% T &

80,602,000 7T) ¥ A A E B 3 18 -
B A B R LA e -
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27. Interest-bearing bank borrowings
(continued)

As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, the Group’s bank loans
were secured by the pledges of the Group’s assets with
carrying values as follows:

27. s B RITER (&)

R-E—MER-_T—=F+-F=+
—HBH - AEENRTERRBERAEE
MEEEER  BEMNER@EOT :

2014 2013

—2-mEF —F-=F

Note (US$°000) (US$'000)

Hfat FER FET

Property, plant and equipment ME - WENEE 14 458,462 456,687
Investment property "EME 15 191,533 191,098
Prepaid land lease payments A LA E A 16 24,914 25,726
Intangible assets B EE 17 10,599 11,383
685,508 684,894

In addition to the assets pledged above, the Group’s secured
bank loans as at 31 December 2014 and 2013 were secured
by the Company’s 36.23% of equity interest in its subsidiary,
HHGrace.

BRUALBEBEEN  AEBRZZ—
NER-E—=F+=-A=+—HHNEH
ERRITERTIUAARRRREF A A E
TR 8936.23% AR REVEH IR -

28.Government grants 28. BT 76 BY

2014 2013

—E-mF —T—=4F

Note (US$’000) (US$'000)

Btat (FZ%E7x) (F%=m)

At 1 January MW1A18 63,462 56,955
Received during the year FERUE 21,475 28,851
Paid to subcontractors during the year ~ FRAXNFHEHE (1,004) (6,167)
Released to offset cost of sales B A AR SHEH E A 6 (11,034) (10,660)

Released to offset research and DA S 2%

development costs B AR 6 (5,697) (4,566)
Offset with long term assets I RAIEE (3,088) (2,788)
Exchange realignment BEE 5 32 (229) 1,837
As at 31 December M12H31H 63,885 63,462

The Group received government funding for several
government-sponsored projects focusing on the research and
development of advanced technologies.

21 O HUA HONG SEMICONDUCTOR LIMITED 4T+ ER AR
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29, RSB IE

FARLERAERBEREENZSNT

29.Deferred tax

The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets during the
year are as follows:

Deferred tax liabilities: EEBEAE !
Fair value
gains on
investment Withholding
Depreciation property tax Total
REMEN
wE AEEWE S Bl wet
(US$°000) (US$°000) (US$°000) (US$°000)
(F%7x) (%) (F%7x) (F%)
As at 1 January 2013 RZT—=F—A—H 11,953 - - 11,953
Deferred tax (credited)/ FR (FTA),/ 8
charged to profit or loss BRERNET
during the year (note 10) Fi1E (F4FE10) (12,135) 314 2,174 (9,647)
Exchange realignment B 5 SR 182 5 34 221
As at 31 December 2013 RZT—=%
and 1 January 2014 +=-A=+—H
kR —T—mE
—H—H = 319 2,208 2,527
Deferred tax charged to FAMBERRD
profit or loss during LRI
the year (note 10) (HHE10) - 169 9,327 9,496
Exchange realignment B K % = (1) (34) (35)
As at 31 December 2014 R-Z—NF
+=-A=+-8 = 487 11,501 11,988

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign
investors from the foreign investment enterprises established
in Mainland China. The requirement is effective from 1 January
2008 and applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower
withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty
between Mainland China and the jurisdiction of the foreign
investors. The Group is therefore liable for withholding taxes
on dividends distributed by those subsidiaries established
in Mainland China in respect of earnings generated from 1
January 2008.

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the
payment of dividends by the Company to its shareholders.

BREBC(HEARKMBELEMSTE)
R B RMK L WINE BERFAINERE
EEIRREBRI0%HATAID © %
HRER _TTN\F-A-—BELERY
BRAR-_ZEZLF+_A=1t—"REKE
EREN o fi e B A SN IR 8 E P
BrRIZRERGBRBGIHE - AlaL@m
BEMBEMHE - Bt - AEBEARR
FEAMKINZETARE —TTN
F-A—BEEENENADIROKE
BATEH -

7R 2 ) i) L s SRR A+ P B S 48 B 7 A 1)
FISRIER -
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29.Deferred tax (continued) 29. IRFEBIIE (8]&)
Deferred tax assets: BELEBIREE :
Write-down
of inventories
and
Depreciation receivables Accruals Tax losses Total
FERER
il IR &R HEEE - H
(US§'000)  (US$'000)  (US$'000)  (US$'000)  (US$'000)
(F%7x) (%) (F%rn) (F%xn) (F%x)
As at 1 January 2013 R-Z—=%—HF—H 14,361 370 383 104 15,218
Deferred tax (charged)/ FR )/ FA
credited to profit or loss BRRNETHE
during the year (note 10) (Ff#z£10) (14,579) 975 5,279 (38) (8,363)
Exchange realignment BRI 218 27 9 2 342
As at 31 December 2013 R-ZB—=F+_-H
and 1 January 2014 =+—Hk
—T-MF—-H—H - 1,372 5,757 68 7,197
Deferred tax credited/ FNEA/(H8)
(charged) to profitor loss ~ 1BEFKAELEFIA
during the year (note 10) (FzE10) - 610 1,481 (68) 2,023
Exchange realignment [ 5 3% = (6) (23) - (29)
As at 31 December 2014 RZZE—MF
+-A=+—H - 1,976 7215 - 9,191

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the

following items:

ATIERB ¥ EERRLEHRAEE

31 December 31 December

2014 2013

—E—MmF —T—=4F

+=A=+—-8 +t=A=+-~

(US$000) (US$'000)

(F%=x) (F=71)

Unused tax losses RENATIBEE 2,893 5
Temporary differences =R 453,458 455,102
456,351 455,107

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of
these losses as they have arisen in subsidiaries that have been
loss-making for some time and it is not considered probable
that taxable profits will be available against which the tax losses

can be utilised.

The temporary differences are available indefinitely for offsetting
against future taxable profits of the companies. Deferred tax
assets have not been recognised in respect of the temporary
differences as it is not considered probable that taxable profits
will be available against which the above items can be utilised.

21 2 HUA HONG SEMICONDUCTOR LIMITED 4T+ ER AR

HRNRERBEEDRACERZRH
T A7 BANKAREA &R A Al A
RS2 SRR R - L B % F 8
BRREENIREE

TRz E A BRI AAEEER AR
B R FERR DL A > RN AR BER &
ARIE A AT R AE S EIR B - B R
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—z-me+=A=+-8 /) AH E |:|_E

30.Share capital 30. fR A
Number of shares Amount
RHEE KX ]
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E—mEF —T—=F —E-MF T
+=A +=A +=A +=A
=+—H == =+—H =+—H
(’000) ('000) (US$’000) (US$'000)
(FB&) (FH) (F%x) (F=7)
Authorised: (note (a)) SEE ¢ (FiEE(a))
Nil (2013: 1,500,000,000 & (ZZ—=%:
ordinary shares of 1,500,000,000/%
US$0.01 each) SR EE0.01FET
(note(b)) BEER)
(Ff=E(b)) - 1,500,000 - 15,000
Number of shares Amount
R & B 8
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E—{F —E—=F —E-OF —E—=F
+=A +=A +=A +=A
=+—H =+—H Er=E =+—H
(°000) ('000) (US$’000) (US$'000)
(Fr) (&) (F=x) (F=7)
Issued and fully paid: BEITRET
1,033,871,656 (2013: 1,033,871,656%
805,175,656) (ZE—=%F:
ordinary shares 805,175,656/%)
LiEi 1,033,872 805,176 1,550,164 8,052

(a) Under the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), which
commenced operation on 3 March 2014, the concept of authorised
share capital no longer exists.

(b) In accordance with section 135 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622), the Company's shares no longer have a par
or nominal value with effect from 3 March 2014. There is no impact
on the number of shares in issue or the relative entitlement of any
of the members of the Company as a result of this transition.

(a) WIER=F—mE=F = B HEIA
BA L AN (86228) A EMAHE
BB -

(b) 1A EE LA IXG (F6225) £135
1% KAREGRGE —E—WF=A=H
o TEFEEE - EEHREFT
R17 & H &R EA I ER IR
4B o
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30.Share capital (continued)

31 December 2014
—ZT—mE+=-A=+—H

30. & (&)

A summary of movements in the Company’s share capital is as

AR RABRAEHLLT -

follows:
Number of Amount of
shares in issue share capital
BT
RHEE [} NG
('000) (US$°000)
(Fm) (F=x)
At 1 January 2013, 31 December 2013 R-—Z—=F—H—H8 -
and 1 January 2014 —E2—=%+-A=+—H
N—F—mF—A—H 805,176 8,052
Issuance of ordinary shares (note(a)) BITEEAR (K3 a)) 228,696 320,168
Transition to no-par value regime on R-ZE—NFE=A=HBE=E
3 March 2014 (note (b)) mEERMHIE (FEEb)) = 1,221,944
At 31 December 2014 R-E—MNME+=-A=+—H 1,033,872 1,550,164

Notes:

(a) In connection with the Listing of the shares on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange on 15 October 2014, 228,696,000 shares
of HK$0.01 each were issued at a price of HK$11.25 per share
for a total cash consideration, of HK$2,5672,830,000 (equivalent to
approximately US$331,730,000), which have been credited to the
Company’s share capital after deduction of US$11,562,000 listing

expenses.

(b) In accordance with the transitional provisions set out in section 37
of Schedule 11 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.
622), on 3 March 2014, any amount standing to the credit of the
share premium account has become part of the Company's share

capital.

21 4 HUA HONG SEMICONDUCTOR LIMITED 4T+ ER AR

HaE -

(a) tROR=_F—WFE+A+7HEH
KETEWR LT E - 228696,0004% £
f% [E180.018 7T 89 BZ 17 LA & 8 11.25/%
THIEBEET BE2AE (W £
7 E & Ai) 2,5672,830,000/% T (15 &
R #9331,730,0003 7r) #1177 B H
11,562,000 T 45T A A 2 AlfR A -

(b) RIEZE (L EIEDI) (F622Z) &K 11
FEITIEFTE A B - R=ZF—
FZA=ZH  RipEERANZEFREE
JK B AR A H— 5517 -
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31. Reserves

(@) Group

31 December 2014
—T-—mFE+=-A=+—H

31. &

Br RS R AR MY R

(a) =&H

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 150
of the financial statements.

According to the relevant PRC laws and regulations for
wholly-foreign-owned enterprises, which are applicable
to the Company’s subsidiaries in the PRC, profits of
PRC subsidiaries, as determined in accordance with the
applicable accounting rules and regulations in the PRC,
are available for distribution in the form of cash dividends
to the Company after PRC subsidiaries have (1) satisfied
all tax liabilities; (2) provided for losses in previous years;
and (3) made appropriations to the statutory reserve funds.
The Company’s subsidiaries in the PRC are required to
appropriate not less than 10% of their profit after taxation
to the statutory reserve funds until the reserve balance

R B R A A R
K AR B30 B 7 98 % 51508 6
AR BB RS 25 -

RIEFEBEBINEBELRAEE
AR CERRARAMPEFA
A)  RIERN TS RAI MR
PIEEMNFREFRBNEN AR
FEFRBANENAAEREEE
LBEFEBRELERRE  &(Q)
EERBEIFHBBRARSI
BRARARARERDIK ° AR T
BB ABASIBENDRERKR
BBEMENOREREERHES B
EREARET EEMEARNS0% °

reaches 50% of their registered capital.

(b) Company (b) &AF]
Share Other Accumulated
premium reserve losses Total
B0 (e Hitif# e RitEE @gt
(US$’000)  (US$’000) (US$’000)  (US$’000)
(note 30)
(F%x) (F%r) (F%x) (F%x)
(HzE30)
As at 1 January 2013 R-ZE—=%—A—H 1,221,944 (68,260) (2,081) 1,151,603
Loss for the year FAEE = = (28) (28)
As at 31 December 2013 RZZE—=%+_A
and 1 January 2014 =+—8Ak
—Z—mF—-A—H 1,221,944 (68,260) (2,109) 1,151,575
Transition to no-par value BEZERERGHE
regime (1,221,944) - - (1,221,944)
Loss for the year FREE = = (2,888) (2,888)
As at 31 December 2014 R-ZE—NFE+—-A
=+—H - (68,260) (4,997) (73,257)
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32.0perating lease arrangements

(a)

(b)

As lessor

The Group leases its investment property (note 15) to
Shanghai Huali Microelectronics Co., Ltd. (“Shanghai
Huali”), a under an operating lease arrangement, with a
lease term of 20 years. The terms of the lease generally
also require the tenant to provide for periodic rent
adjustments according to the then prevailing market
conditions.

At 31 December 2014, the Group had total future minimum
lease receivables under non-cancellable operating leases
with its tenant falling due as follows:

32.

REHERH

(a) ERHBEA

AEERE-BEEHELH - &
Hig&EW* (f315) BB T LigE
WBEFERAR ([LEBEAN])
HH 205 - sV R — AR IR
HRE AT ARIEE B H R E #7E
SRBELRE -

RZZE-—MOF+_A=+—HB &
SERBETAIBEGEEHONNUAT
5 ) P WOR A B R SR S R A B R
TRAEFEIT

2014 2013

—E-IF —EB—=F

(US$°000) (US$000)

(FZ%E7x) (F=m)

Within one year —FR 13,046 12,797
In the second to fifth years, inclusive FEFRT (PEEREMF) 52,183 51,189
More than five years BARF 133,943 142,904
199,172 206,890

The Group was advanced the future rentals from Shanghai
Huali of US$18,688,000 as at 31 December 2014 (2013:
US$16,094,000).

As lessee

The Group leases certain of its office and dormitory
properties under operating lease arrangements, negotiated
for terms of one to twenty years with an option for renewal
after the end of lease terms, at which time all terms will be
renegotiated.

216 HUA HONG SEMICONDUCTOR LIMITED 4TS R A )

W-_ZE—ME+-_AF=+—8"
AEERE EBEHBENBERA
$£18,688,000E€ T (=T — = F :
16,094,000 7T) °

(b) fEREBEA

AEERBELEHERHEAET
MAEREEWE  KHEESNR
—E_AF AAREBRERETA
B - [EREPTA IR ERTI5 RS o
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31 December 2014
~F-mE+-A=+-A

32.0perating lease arrangements (continued)

(b) As lessee (continued)

At 31 December 2014, the Group had total future minimum
lease payments a under non-cancellable operating leases

falling due as follows:

32.

Fr 755 R 3R B

REMEZRH (]

(b) EREBA (M)
R-ZE—mMFE+-_A=+—H8 K
EEBEBETAIREELEEEORUAT
HREMORRFEREREESE
AT

2014 2013

—E—MmF —T—=F

(US$°000) (US$000)

(F%x) (F==7T)

Within one year —FNR 1,709 350
In the second to fifth years, inclusive F_EZFRT (BIEERWT) 6,599 =
More than five years BiEAF 23,097 =
31,405 350

The Group advanced the future rentals to Huahong Real
Estate Co., Ltd. (“Huahong Real Estate”), a subsidiary of
Huahong Technology Development, of US$3,295,000 as at

31 December 2014 (2013: Nil).

33.Commitments

The Group had the following capital commitments at the end of

the reporting period:

R-ZBE—NE+=-A=+—80 " &K~
SEMESETEXERAA ([
MEE] EUREERANTAAR)
T8 143,295,000 L (ZF — =4 :
) ARKRAS -

33. RIE

AEBRREMRER AT ERALE

2014 2013
—E—-mF —E—=F
US$’000 US$'000
FEx FET

Contracted, but not provided for: BRT4) - BREE
Property, plant and equipment Y - R MEEE 24,176 16,405
Equity investment IR E = 57,406
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34.Related party transactions and balances

34- EQH%EB‘E% &n\ﬂﬁ?
(a) BHEREEE

(a) Name and relationship

Name of related party

Relationship with the Group

B A8 HEALENREF
Huahong Group and its subsidiaries
EUEEREFAH

- Shanghai Huahong (Group) Co., Ltd.
(“Huahong Group”)
— DBZE (RE) ARAR ([EIEE])
- Shanghai Huahong Zealcore Electronics Co., Ltd.
(“Huahong Zealcore”)
— DEEMBEREARAR ([EIRE])
— Shanghai Hongri International Electronics Co., Ltd. (“Hongri”)
— DBITAREEFARAR ([MH )
- Shanghai Integrated Circuit Research and Development Center
("ICRD”)
— DERKERMESL (TRKERME])
— Shanghai Hua Hong Jitong Smart System Co., Ltd. (“Jitong”)
— PEEI AT EARRNERLAE ([5H@])

Shanghai Belling and its subsidiaries
FEEERHETFAR

- Shanghai Belling Co., Ltd. (“Shanghai Belling”)
— FEREROARRR ([ HER%E])

- Hylintek Limited (“Hylintek”) &
—BEBEBRAR ([BHEBE]) S

NEC Corporation (“NEC”)

the holding company of Huahong International
FEERNERAR]

Subsidiary of Huahong Group
FEIEE T AT

Subsidiary of Huahong Group
FEEET AT
Subsidiary of Huahong Group
FEEET AR

Subsidiary of Huahong Group
EUEETFRF

the holding company of Hylintek
BB BENERAR
Shareholder of the Company
ALDERR

Shareholder of the Company

ARRIBR
- NEC Management Partner, Ltd.* (“NEC Management”) Subsidiary of NEC
NECF2R 7]
SAIL and its subsidiaries
ERBAREFAR
- Sino-Alliance International Ltd. (“SAIL International”) Subsidiary of SAIL
i3 7 /N
- Shanghai Huali Microelectronics Co., Ltd. (“Shanghai Huali") Subsidiary of SAIL
— EBENMEFERAR ([ LBEN]) EERF A
- Shanghai EverDisplay Optronics Co., Ltd. (“EDO”) Subsidiary of SAIL
— FENBAEARAR ([MELE]) ik IS/
— QST Corporation (“QST”") Subsidiary of SAIL
EEYERMEBARAR (WERHL]) AT AT
On 1 December 2014, Hylintek Limited entered an agreement & - FE+ = A — A

with Sino-Alliance International whereby Hylintek Limited
conditionally agreed to sell and Sino-Alliance International
agreed to purchase 64,010,100 shares of the Company (the
“Share Purchase”). The transaction had not yet completed as of
31 December 2014 pending certain condition to be fulfilled.

21 8 HUA HONG SEMICONDUCTOR LIMITED 4T+ ER AR

Hy//m‘ek Limited£iSino-Alliance
International# & K 7 B B %
= ## I Hylintek Limited#&
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M. BMAE RGNk (&)

31 December 2014
—T-—mFE+=-A=+—H

34.Related party transactions and balances
(continued)

(a) Name and relationship (continued)

(a) EBWEEAR ()

Name of related party

ket

Relationship with the Group
EAKEHEF

INESA and its subsidiaries

BEZRRHEFLA

— Shanghai INESA Intelligent Electronics Co., Ltd.
(“Shanghai INESA”)

- LEREBREFARAA ([ LEEE])

— Shanghai Nanyang Software System Integration Co., Ltd.
(“Nanyang Software”)

— DEEmFRHEREKRERAR (ARG ])

— Shanghai Nanyang Wanbang Information Technology Service
Co., Ltd. (“Wanbang IT”)

— DEmFEAR M EMERAR ([ &AM i)

Huahong Technology Development

ZINKRER

Huahong Real Estate Co., Ltd. (“Huahong Real Estate”)
ENBEXARAT ([FEUEX])

Shanghai Huajin Property Management Co., Ltd. (“Huajin”)
LEERNXEERRAT (£H))

CEC and its subsidiaries

HEETRHEFAT

— China Electronic Corporation (“CEC”)

—HEAEFEREXEBARAR ([FEEF])

- CEC Huada Electronic Design Co., Ltd. (“Huada”)

— It RPEEREFRABREELE ([EKX])

— China Huada Integrated Circuit Design (Group) Co., Ltd.
(“*Huada IC”")

—HEEAENERRAEEERAR ([EREKER])

- Shanghai Huahong Integrated Circuit Co., Ltd.
(“Shanghai Huahong IC”)

- DEENERERBREEAR ([ DEETRKER])

- Beijing Huahong IC Design Co., (“Beijing Huahong IC”)

— It RENEXERRFAREELE ([IERELAEKERK])

Subsidiary of INESA
EEERT AR

Subsidiary of INESA
BBERT AR

Subsidiary of INESA
BEERT AR

Associate of the Group
AEEHE T

Subsidiary of Huahong Technology
Development
EMMRERF AR

Subsidiary of Huahong Technology
Development
EMMRERFRA

Shareholder of Huahong Group
EMEERR

Subsidiary of CEC
HEEFTFAR

Subsidiary of CEC
HEEFFAR

Subsidiary of CEC
HEEFFAR
Subsidiary of CEC
HEEFFAR

*

NEC Management is previously known as NEC Purchasing
Service, Ltd.

*  NEC ManagementFi##BNEC Purchasing
Service, Ltd.
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34.Related party transactions and balances

i

31 December 2014
—ZT—mE+=-A=+—H

M. BERLIRZREER (&)

(continued)
(b) Related party transactions (b) BHEARS
Group R&EH

BREMBERREMBOMPEER
7 RAERIN  REBRFANC LA
BETETATEARS ¢

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed
elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group had the
following material transactions with related parties during

the year:
2014 2013
—E-MmEF —T—=%F
Us$’000 US$'000
SPEST FET
Sales of goods to related parties (note (i) [AEFEET HES R (MEE())
Huada EK 45,761 41,718
Huahong Zealcore* FE T B H 11,303 6,917
Shanghai Huahong IC EEM KB 10,408 8,679
ICRD SR EREITE 6,204 1,254
Shanghai Belling Bwi=3=E: - 5,323 5,704
Hongri 4T H 1,021 810
Beijing Huahong IC b REA SR E I 705 -
QST*# waRH 408 -
Shanghai Huali EgES 7 -
Purchases of goods from related parties R HEE &0
(note (i) (B =EGiN))
Hylintek BEGE 4,928 2,563
Hongri iTH 3,566 1,652
NEC Management? NEC Management” 559 475
Huahong Zealcore’ FEAT B 448 559
Jitong il 18 =
ICRD SRCE R 1 156
Service fees income from related parties 2K & B55 75 B9 IRTIE B A
(note (iii)) (B (i)
QsT* WAERH! 1,059 =
EDO MEXE = 1,487
Shanghai Huali EBESR = 133
Service fee charged by related parties R T WA AR TS B
(note (iv)) (FF=E(iv))
Nanyang Software* FF B 214 11
Huajin” Rt 205 =
Wanbang IT# B A Rl 39 55
Shanghai INESA* FEESE! 25 9
Huahong Real Estate e - 2,260
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34.Related party transactions and balances
(continued)

(b) Related party transactions (continued)

M. BERLIRZREER (&)

(b) BBLXRZ (&)

Group (continued) rER (&)
2014 2013
—E—-MmEF —T—=%F
US$’000 US$'000
SPEST FET
Rental income from a related party R A B 5 RS U
(note (iii)) (B 3E(ii))
Shanghai Huali* EgE 13,270 12,952
Rental expense charged by RaE WA S S
a related party (note (iv)) (B 3ECiv))
Huahong Real Estate* E N 1,653 =
Expense paid on behalf of AR MR R
a related party (note (v)) (FH5E(v))
Shanghai Huali EEED 25,614 19,105
Entrusted loans ZER
Huahong Technology Development ERERER — T8
— interest 324 2,965

Huahong Technology Development

— principal

EOUMBRER - A%

= 24,500

i The related party transactions in respect of items denoted with
“#” above also constitute continuing connected transactions
as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Note (i):

Note (ii):

Note (iii):

Note (iv):

Note (v):

The sales of goods to the related parties were made
according to the prices and terms agreed between the
related parties.

The purchases of goods from the related parties were
made according to the prices and terms offered by the
related parties.

The rental income and service fee income from related
parties were received according to the prices and terms
agreed between the related parties.

The rental expense and service fees charged by related
parties were paid according to the prices and terms
agreed between the related parties.

The expense paid on behalf of the related party is
interest-free and repayable on demand.

* o ERFIEE [#] RIS X 50
1Bk _E T3 Bl 14A 5 BT SRUE B9 %

BIEE(D) < 171 BE B T i A B T3 AR 5 A2
BT 15 E R BIS R AR -

BaE(i) - B BEEE T 5B B A B dn TS IR R B
BT HE (i (BAE RARFIEM] »

BiEL(iii) - 28 BB 1982 WA R AR
BWA TS IRIZEEBTHE T 155 E 49
1815 R AFFOUCER

BizE(iv) : BEBE T AR 91 2 B 5 R AR5
B IRIEELBIHE T 175 E #1815
RAEFHZ A -

BIEE(v) - (BB 7 X 19 89 B % 43 T &t
B REBEEE -
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34.Related party transactions and balances
(continued)

(c)

(d)

Non-cash related party transaction

In 2014, HHGrace invested RMB10.5 million in QST in the
form of intellectual property transfer in accordance with the
binding term sheet signed by HHGrace on 18 August 2012.
On 18 May 2014, QST and HHGrace signed an agreement
regarding certain products and services provided by
HHGrace to QST for the period from 1 January 2013 to
31 March 2017, including wafer products and masking,
technology development and maintenance services, in
exchange for the aforesaid intellectual property.

Other related party transaction

In 2011, HHNEC and Huahong Group entered into a cash
pooling arrangement. Under such arrangement, HHNEC
and Huahong Group entered into RMB900,000,000 loans
with each other. According to the PRC Contract Law, the
agreement and the mutual understanding of both parties,
the receivables and payables resulting from loans under
such cash pooling arrangement can be set off. The net
balance at 31 December 2013 was zero. On 9 June 2014,
HHNEC and Huahong Group settled the receivables and
payables on a net basis and terminated such loans.

222 HUAHONG SEMICONDUCTOR LIMITED 4388 5 R A )

M. BERLIRZREER (&)

(c) kREMBLRS

RZFB—MF - FARAREBERZ
Z-—F N\ATNBRITHAHR
HEWARIAEZANBEERNT A
A EREIRE ARKE1,0608 7T °
RZZ—NMFREA+N\B - WER
REFURNAELRZIR _F—
=#—-R-—BET—+H=A=
T BUHRRYERRRE‘RET
Em R REFER k- B AAE
EE AR R LB BT RA B B A o AR T
HREN bl KGR EEHE

(d) EftEAB LR 5

RZF——F  FEUNECEHEI &
BT RS ML - BIBZTHE
EUNECHETSEEHIIZAR
BOETLER - REFHERE - &
FTRBHEEBE TR ZASMR
HETHERMEEMNEKRIER
ERTRIAR THE - — T —=F
ZA=ZT—BRMEFEEHRAET - R
T—OFNNANE  FUNECHZE
S ERFRAEL TR KFIER
FETRIR - WIRIEZEFER °
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31 December 2014
~F-mE+-A=+-A

34.Related party transactions and balances

(continued)
(e) EREAEETT 2 MY R A IBERER

(e) Outstanding balances with related parties

Group R&EH

31 December 31 December

2014 2013
—E-IF —EB—=F
t=A=+t—H +t=-A=+—H
US$’000 US$'000
SPES FET

Amount due from related parties JrE Uk R 75 SR IE
Huada YN 21,589 30,068
Shanghai Huali HEER 7,056 4,152
Huahong Zealcore FEQT B 5,303 2,500
Shanghai Huahong IC BT SRR E K 4,149 4,671
Huahong Real Estate B 3,295 5,176
Shanghai Belling BB 1,411 1,056
Hongri A 242 127
ICRD S E R 128 329
QST WER 5 =
Huahong Technology Development EA R ERE - 24,643
43,178 72,722

Amounts due to related parties JFEAS BERS 5 7B
Shanghai Huali HEEH 18,688 20,541
Huahong Real Estate FEITEE 1,774 49
Hylintek BEGE 1,486 1
ICRD SRR E R 1,159 -
QST WER 891 =
Hongri LN =] 783 252
Huahong Zealcore FEAT B 114 181
NEC management NEC management 110 3
Shanghai Belling EBRE 1 7
SAIL International SAIL International = 975
25,006 22,009

Annual Report 2014 201455 E ke 223



Notes to Financial Statements
MR RRIE o

34.Related party transactions and balances

M. BERLIRZREER (&)

(continued)

(e) Outstanding balances with related parties (continued)

Company

(e) EEBL BN ARGEFHRE (H)

N

31 December

31 December

2014 2013
—E-IF —EB—=F
t=A=+t—H +t=-A=+—H
US$°000 US$'000
FER FET
Amounts due from a subsidiary FEUW TR RIFRIE
HHGrace AR N 7,140 998
Amounts due to subsidiaries FENF A FIRIE
Grace Cayman Grace Cayman 69,000 69,000
HHGrace FEATRAN 15,989 10,291
GST TIEEHR 4,546 -
89,535 79,291

HEAB AKX FRRCENEHRRER

Balances with the related parties or subsidiaries were >
B TEEREETERRAR -

unsecured, non-interest-bearing and had no fixed
repayment terms.

(f) Compensation of key management personnel of the () *EEEEEBAESHNHE

Group

2014 2013
—2-mF —F—=F
US$°000 US$'000
FER =
Short term employee benefits 2R BB 2,596 1,956
Pension scheme contributions RSB 37 33

Total compensation paid to IRNTEEEBEAEN
key management personnel [lilear it 2,633 1,989
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35.Financial instruments by category

31 December 2014
~F-mE+-A=+-A

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

Group

Financial assets — loans and receivables

Fr 755 R 3R B

3. REREsHNEMITE

EESMTENBE MUK EER
T

FEE
THMEE - ERRERKEA

31 December 31 December

2014 2013

—E—MmF =4

t=A=+t—HB +t=-A=+—H

(US$°000) (US$'000)

(F%E7x) (F=m)

Trade and notes receivables B S IE L EWE S 107,509 105,525
Financial assets included in FTATENFRIE - He R

prepayments, deposits and HAb EUGRIAR

other receivables (note 23) TEEE (Mf7E23) 4,405 2,284

Due from related parties FE Uk BE B 5 018 43,178 72,722

Pledged deposits [REEEYEE N 2,583 2,072

Cash and cash equivalents HERBEESEEY 646,773 317,045

804,448 499,648

Financial assets — available-for-sale financial assets

ERMEE - THHESHEE

31 December 31 December

2014 2013

—2-mEF —F=F

t=A=t—H +t=ZA=t—-H

(US$000) (US$'000)

(F=x) (F%=T)

Available-for-sale investments AMEHERE 230,512 172,219

Financial liabilities — at amortised cost SRIBE - REHEEK

31 December 31 December

2014 2013

—EF-IF —F=F

+=A=+-8 t=A=1-~

(US$’000) (US$000)

(F=x) (FZ=T)

Trade payables B S ERTFIR 63,532 60,227
Financial liabilities included in ST AHE M RERFRIE -

other payables, advances from AR R E L E RS

customers and accruals (note 26) S EBE (H:F26) 35,999 53,908

Interest-bearing bank borrowings SHEIRITER 264,721 366,525

Due to related parties JE 1~} B HGe 75 k1B 25,006 22,009

389,258 502,669
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35.Financial instruments by category

(continued)

Company

i

31 December 2014
—ZT—mE+=-A=+—H

Financial assets — loans and receivables

EN|

3. REHETWERMTE (F)

TRMEE - ERRERKEA

31 December

31 December

2014 2013

—E-IF —EB—=F

t=A=+t—H +t=-A=+—H

(US$°000) (US$'000)

(GrE2m) (F=T)

Other receivables Hi el kI8 1,577 972
Due from a subsidiary FEURF A EIZI8 7140 998
Cash and cash equivalents HERIRSEEY 327,811 6,989
336,528 8,959

Financial liabilities — at amortised cost

TRAE - ZEBHERER

31 December

31 December

2014 2013
—E—MmF —T—=4F
t=A=+t—H +t=-A=+—H
(US$°000) (US$'000)
(F=x) (F%=T)
Financial liabilities included in T AR AL ERFRIA -

other payables, advances from AR R E G BN
customers and accruals TRAE 82 37
Due to subsidiaries JEHFRRIFIA 89,535 79,291
89,617 79,328
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36.Fair value and fair value hierarchy of B.EMIANAFERLAFE

financial instruments

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash
and cash equivalents, pledged deposits, trade and notes
receivables, trade payables, financial assets included in
prepayments, deposits and other receivables, financial
liabilities included in other payables, advances from customers
and accruals, amounts due from/to related parties, the current
portion of interest-bearing bank borrowings and amounts due
from/to subsidiaries approximate to their carrying amounts
largely due to the short term maturities of these instruments.

The fair value of the non-current portion of interest-bearing bank
borrowings has been calculated by discounting the expected
future cash flows using rates currently available for instruments
with similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities. The
Group’s own non-performance risk for interest-bearing bank
borrowings as at 31 December 2014 and 2013 was assessed
to be insignificant. Management has assessed that the fair
value of the non-current interest-bearing bank borrowings of
the Group approximates to their fair value due to their floating
interest rates.

The Group’s finance department headed by the finance
manager is responsible for determining the policies and
procedures for the fair value measurement of financial
instruments. The finance department reports directly to the chief
financial officer. At each reporting date, the finance department
analyses the movements in the values of financial instruments
and determines the major inputs applied in the valuation. The
valuation is reviewed and approved by the chief financial
officer. The valuation process and results are discussed with
the board of directors annually for annual financial reporting.

=

EEEEHEREAREEEY BE
HEXR - BZREFKBALREBKRRE - &
ZEMNFIE - FFARMNHE  BEMHE
ERFENEREE - st AHRMEN
FE - ARERALREGEERNEREA
& - FEYFERTRAEE T 5RIE - HEERTT
fEREVREN BB 19 KR UL FE A F R B
HAFE REHEEREERS
ITE2RHRZETAGREHANIE -

STEIRITREEIERHIMH N AFETSE
BEAEFELER - FERR X T %
FIEARE R T AR B AE A 2 L R AL
BHAKRBESRETE - AEEXHFR
—E-NE+-_A=+—HBAKR-_T—=
F+_A=+— B BRTEENT
BHRBEIEATTEK - KEEE
E - ARZEFIREER - AN EIEA]
HEt BRITEEN AT EEE QA FEE

4+

Eo

AEBBETUMBRLERENT B A
EEFeMIARTEAENBRLE
e UBHBERAMBAERS - RE
BEEH MEHLsERTANEE
PP EFHETEANTIED AR
& MERMEREEZRIME - {E
BREMERBEFEESFH AR N
EITFEPBHR -
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37. Financial risk management objectives and

policies

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise bank
loans, cash and short term deposits. The main purpose of
these financial instruments is to raise finance for the Group’s
operations. The Group has various other financial assets and
liabilities, such as trade and other receivables and trade and
other payables, which arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments
are interest risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity
risk. The board of directors reviews and agrees policies for
managing each of these risks and they are summarised below.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to risk of changes in market interest
rates relates primarily to the Group’s interest-bearing bank
borrowings with a floating interest rate. The Group’s policy is to
manage its interest cost using a mix of fixed and variable rate
debts.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably
possible change in interest rates, with all other variables held
constant, the Group’s profit before tax (through the impact on
floating rate borrowings).

37.

P mEkEEE B ERBER

AEENFTESHMIABRERITER
RelEER - ZFeMTANTE
REDR/RAEENEEEEES - K
BEZREZAEELELNEMER
BENBE  WEHKEAMERIAN
5B 5 M EMBEN KA

AEEEBRTAMELNEERR ST
KE - HNERR - FERBRERBE
TRR - EEZTERFRBEEESEZ
FRBRAEER - BRABCRBEN FX -

F =@
AEEEEHN TSN EEFEREE R
AEBIZF BN R B SRITER
B - ARENRRS  UEERFZE
EBAE T N EEF SR

TREREME LB RRRTRNE
ST+ A BB AT ) (L8R g
ROBE) HAEH AR LB BN
R -

(Decrease)/
Increase/ increase in
decrease in  profit before
interest rate tax
MEEFH A BAn=ER
TR CE2), &
(US$’000)
(F%5x)
Year ended 31 December 2014 HE-ZT U4
+—A=+—HLtFE +1%/-1% (2,647)/2,647
Year ended 31 December 2013 He—_T—=%F
+ZA=+—RHILFE +1%/-1% (165)/165
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37 Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)

Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposure. These
exposures arise from sales or purchases by its significant
subsidiary operating in Mainland China in US$ other than the
subsidiary’s functional currency which is RMB. During the
year, approximately 52% (2013: 55%) of the Group’s sales are
denominated in currencies other than the functional currency
of the subsidiary making the sale, whilst 66% (2013: 65%) of
costs of sales are denominated in the subsidiary’s functional
currency.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of
the reporting period to a reasonably possible change in RMB
exchange rate, with all other variables held constant, of the

N BEEBREEAER KK

(&)

NS ELB

AEBEABRRISIINERE - ZFEKBE
EEEEREANMKEHEE TR AN
FLHETMNEE MIIEUEINES
AREEHEIT - RER - AEERNHEER
h4952% (— T — =4 : 55%) JhLA#E
THENTARIMINREE B UK EEE
ETE - HEUL R 88 KA 466%
(ZZ—=%F :65%) JYATREIMINAE
EHATE -

TRETEMBEREMEERIFTENIS
AT R E HRE R A & B AR A
(ANEREERABRFEES) HA

Group’s profit before tax (due to changes in the fair value of REEXRNSEMEBNTRE :

monetary assets and liabilities):

Increase/
Increase/ (decrease) in
(decrease) in  profit before

USS rate tax
EnER BANRF
EFCRER) i, (GRD)
(US$000)
(F=75)
Year ended 31 December 2014 HE—_ZT—UF
+-—A=+—BLtFE
If US$ weakens against RMB WETHARBRE 5% 2,508
If US$ strengthens against RMB HETHAREAE (5%) (2,508)
Year ended 31 December 2013 HE-_Z—=%
TZA=1T—HLEE
If US$ weakens against RMB WETHARBRE 5% 5,735
If US$ strengthens against RMB HETRARKIE (5%) (5,735)

Annual Report 2014 201455 E ke 229



Notes to Financial Statements
B IS SRR M RE o,

37. Financial risk management objectives and N EEABREEEERERK

policies (continued)

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third
parties and related parties. It is the Group’s policy that all
customers who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to
credit verification procedures. In addition, receivable balances
are monitored on an ongoing basis and the Group’s exposure
to bad debts is not significant.

All the Group’s cash and cash equivalents are held in major
financial institutions located in Mainland China and Hong Kong,
which do not have a recent history of default.

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, trade
receivables and financial assets included in prepayments,
deposits and other receivables included in the consolidated
statement of financial position represent the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk in relation to its financial assets. The
Group has no other financial assets which carry significant
exposure to credit risk.

Liquidity risk

The Group’s policy is to monitor regularly the current and
expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed lines of
funding from major financial institutions to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and long term.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at
the end of the reporting period, based on the contractual
undiscounted payments, is as follows:
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FERRE

AEEERERREERFNE=
REAMARS - AEBHBRME B
BEREERETARSNEFPHEBBE
RZERRF ° I - R FE S UK
REHRETEE  MAKERERER
WARERX e

AEENMERERRNEFEMHEB
NRPEABEEENEREREER
B WEHEMHMENESL -

HEMBAREKARE KRS EEY -
B HREFBERGARNTE  BE2R
HEUFENEREENRAESA
SERESREEMABRNEAEER
%o AEBYEEMFEEANEERR
MEREE °

RBE S @

AEENBRESTERERR K RBHR
HESFEE  UBRERSZEHNHRSH
BRETZCHEBES EANBE X
BRHE UERHERHAMRHRDES
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™= °
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37 Financial risk management objectives and N EEBREEEEREE
policies (continued) =)
Liquidity risk (continued) RBESREE (&)
Group R&EH
31 December 2014 —E—FEF=—A=4+—H
Less than 3to 1to
On demand 3 months 12 months 5 years Total
REX  OSRZ@BR ZE+=fiA —25F At

(US$000)  (US$'000)  (US$000)  (US$'000)  (US$'000)
(%) (F%r) (F%£x) (F%£x) (%)

Interest-bearing HERITER
bank borrowings - - 83,871 197,619 281,490
Trade payables B S ENFE 7,216 56,316 = = 63,532
Other payables, Hit 508 -
advances from BREPERR
customers and accruals EHER 35,999 - - - 35,999
Due to related parties JE RS 7B 25,006 - - - 25,006
68,221 56,316 83,871 197,619 406,027
31 December 2013 —E—=Ff+-—A=+—H
Less than 3to 1to
On demand 3 months 12 months 5 years Total
REK PR=[EA =E+=fEA —ZE0F @5t
(US$'000) (US$000) (US$'000) (US$000) (US$'000)
(F=1) (F%m) (F%1) (F=x) (F=x)
Interest-bearing HERITER
bank borrowings - 3,303 110,262 282,668 396,233
Trade payables B S ENFUE 8,565 51,662 = = 60,227
Other payables, HitEHI50E -
advances from BREPERR
customers and accruals BRHER 53,908 = = = 53,908
Due to related parties FEf AR 2B 22,009 - - - 22,009
84,482 54,965 110,262 282,668 532,377
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37 Financial risk management objectives and N MBEERABREEEEREE
policies (continued) (%)
Liquidity risk (continued) REBESEE (F)
Company /N
31 December 2014 —E-WES—H=1—H
Less than 3to 1to
On demand 3 months 12 months 5 years Total
REX  OSRZ@BR ZE+=fiA —25F At

(US$000)  (US$'000)  (US$000)  (US$'000)  (US$'000)
(%) (F%r) (F%£x) (F%£x) (%)

Other payables, Hit 508 -
advances from BREPERR
customers and accruals THER 82 - - - 82
Due to subsidiaries BNFARZIA 89,535 - - - 89,535
89,617 - - - 89,617
31 December 2013 —E—=Ff-_H=1—H
Less than 3to 1to
On demand 3 months 12 months 5 years Total
REK PR=@A =ZE+_f@A —Z0fF @5t
(US$000) (US$000) (US$'000) (US$000) (US$'000)
(F=1) (F%m) (F%1) (F=x) (F=x)
Other payables, HitEHIF0E -
advances from BREPERR
customers and accruals BHER 37 = = = 37
Due to subsidiaries FERFRRIFIE 79,291 - - - 79,291
79,328 - - - 79,328
Capital management EXRER
The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are AREBEAEENEERZE  BHEAN
to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern EENBELCEENMERRTNER
and to maintain healthy capital ratios to support its business tbE UERFEEBRERRREER
and maximise shareholders’ value. Ak e
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37. Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)

Capital management (continued)

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to in light of changes in economic conditions.
To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders or issue new shares. The Group is not subject to
any externally imposed capital requirements. No changes were
made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing
capital during the year.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is
net debt divided by total equity attributable to owners of the
parent plus net debt. The Group includes, within net debt, trade
payables, other payables and accruals, interest-bearing bank
borrowings, and amounts due to related parties, less cash and
cash equivalents. The gearing ratios as at the end of each of
reporting period were as follows:

N BEABRBEEEEREE

(&)

BEXREE (#)

ARG BIRBEBEAN I B B IR K R
HERRE - BBEFAHBELARE
AEELSRHBERN TRROKE - @A
BRERBIEE RN BITHI - XAEETR
TR M E RZRKRR - RF
N AREEEEANBR - BRNKIE
Frif AT 25 -

AEBUEERBLRERER  BE
BELXRZFAERNATRRHEA AR
EREAEMMFRETE - AKEKE
ZEMNKIE - RN RIBREGHE
A FHRRITIE - EASRERE DT SR
BRRERREEFEVFAFEE - TR
SHEANEERMBLEMOT

2014 2013

—E—-mE =4

(US$000) (US$'000)

(F%E7x) (F=m)

Trade payables B HENRIA 63,532 60,227
Other payables and accruals E At FRIE

REEER 58,552 53,908

Interest-bearing bank borrowings STRRITER 264,721 366,525

Due to related parties FE SR8 5 I 25,006 22,009

Less: Cash and cash equivalents B RERBEEEY (646,773) (317,045)

Net debt FEE (234,962) 185,624

Equity attributable to owners of the parent HARIER AE(ERE 1,465,479 1,056,219

Capital and net debt BARRFAG 1,230,517 1,241,843

Gearing ratio EEBELLE (19.09%) 14.95%

The negative gearing ratio as at 31 December 2014 was mainly
due to the IPO proceeds received in October 2014, all of which
had not been utilised up to 31 December 2014.

R-ZE—NME+_-_HA=+—HBEEARE
LhERABBHEERR AT —NF+A
ESHERARABEMSHRIE &SN
§ﬁ§:§*E¢+:ﬂE+*EH*
}Eﬁ °
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Notes to Financial Statements
M HRRMEE o

38.Event after the reporting period 38. HEHIREIR
There is no material subsequent event undertaken by the KABIAEER_ZE—HOF+=A=
Company or the Group after 31 December 2014. +—RABYEZLEFTMNEAREHES
I8 o
39.Approval of the financial statements 39. I B IR AVRLE
The financial statements were approved and authorised for PHBRERERZE—RAF=-A=+MA
issue by the board of directors on 24 March 2015. BEEgEREERE -
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A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and

non-controlling interests of the Group for the last four financial

years, as extracted from the published audited financial statements

is set out below.

Financial Summary

MEHE

DB AR B R El A B R B SR AR
NREE BENRFERESNSRE 64
EMNRRAE T REELTHHRE

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=1+—HLHFE

2014 2013 2012 2011
—E—-NmF —T—=F —ECF —T——F
(US$’000) (US$'000) (US$'000) (US$000)
(F%x) (F=1) (F%71) (F%71)

RESULTS EY |
CONTINUING OPERATIONS ;@& & £
REVENUE SHEWA 664,586 584,719 571,480 609,844
Cost of sales HERK A (466,815) (459,270) (458,559) (459,172)
Gross profit EF 197,771 125,449 117,921 150,672
Other income and gains EH U A R IeEs 23,886 30,605 26,492 50,998
Fair value gain on an REMED

investment property AHEE 1,127 2,095 944 1,322
Selling and HE R

distribution expenses DHER (7,206) (8,052) (8,831) (10,290)
Administrative expenses EEEM (85,053) (69,043) (55,097) (61,327)
Other expenses Hi B (2,433) (199) (448) (5,618)
Finance costs H%ER (12,136) (16,479) (16,928) (19,168)
Share of profits of DE—KEE

an associate AN A A 4,856 6,437 3,619 -
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BLATRA 120,812 70,813 67,672 106,589
Income tax expense Frig i< (27,722) (8,964) (7,993) (10,966)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FRBR 93,090 61,849 59,679 95,623
Attributable to: A& IERES,

Owners of the parent (SYNCIEZ=PN 93,090 61,849 59,679 83,881

Non-controlling interests IR = - = 11,742

93,090 61,849 59,679 95,623
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Financial Summary

MEHE

Assets, liabilities and non-controlling interests BE BENRFEZERES

As at 31 December

R+t=—A=+—H

2014 2013 2012 2011

—E-F = —E——F —T——F

(US$’000) (US$'000) (US$000) (US$'000)

(F%x) (F%1) (F%1) (F=x)

Total assets BE®E 1,990,069 1,647,617 1,607,974 1,672,162
Total liabilities BEBEE (524,590) (591,398) (644,217) (769,889)
Non-controlling interests IR A - - - -
1,465,479 1,056,219 963,757 902,273
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